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Chairman’s Statement

EREHRE

Dear Shareholders,

| present on behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) the
annual report of Sam Woo Construction Group Limited (the
“Company”) together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2020.

The business environment of the construction industry has
been very challenging during the year. As mentioned in the
past years, the construction market has been hard-hit by the
prolonged debates in the Legislative Council, leading to a
large logjam in funding approval for public works. Besides,
investments in the private sector development have also been
hampered due to the social incidents happening in Hong
Kong in the last year and the outbreak of COVID-19 this year.
This has resulted in a substantial drop in the number of open
tenders in the market, and, in turn, intense competition and
suppressed contract prices.

Amidst the challenging environment, the Group obtained
a major contract for the Airport Logistic Centre during the
year. This is a main contract for the foundation works and is
valued at about HK$500 million. The project has commenced
in mid-2019 and is expected to be completed by mid-2020.
Contributed together by a few other public works projects,
the Group recorded a significant increase in contract revenue
up to HK$917 million and a net profit of HK$73 million for the
year. Throughout the year, the Group has maintained a healthy
financial position and a net cash balance.

Against the current backdrop of COVID-19 which leads to
economic uncertainties in the global environment and also the
interruption in the operation of Legislative Council, we foresee
that it will take longer before the construction market can fully
recover. While we anticipate more construction works under
the Airport Third Runway Program and Kai Tak Development to
roll out gradually, the price competition will remain keen and we
anticipate the next year to remain tough.

Provided that the government increases its efforts to stimulate
economic growth, and public and private sector investments
in commercial, residential and infrastructure construction
projects, the Directors believe that the construction industry will
regain its momentum.
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As mentioned by the government earlier that it attaches great
importance to the Hong Kong 2030+ Development Strategy.
The Directors have been viewing it as a guideline for fulfilling
the great demand for housing and infrastructure in the medium
and long term, reinforcing the sustainable social and economic
development of Hong Kong. We hope that when the current
uncertainties in the economic and political arena are overcome,
those development plans for projects mentioned in the Policy
Address, such as the Energizing Kowloon East can ride back to
a normal track.

Our establishment in Hong Kong for almost 30 years with job
references both in iconic public infrastructure projects and the
private development sector, as well as the commitment of our
strong management team and dedicated staff to provide quality
work and services to our customers, built up the Group’s
reputation for its excellence in expertise and experience.
These have enabled us to withstand the ups and downs in the
market that we experienced the past few decades. The Board
remains prudently optimistic about the long term prospects
of the construction market. We are confident that the Group,
as one of the most dependable contractors in the foundation
segment with an extensive range of specialised machinery
and equipment will secure more projects and participate
instrumentally in landmark projects in the future.

I would like to take this opportunity to express my respect
for and appreciation to my fellow Board members,
the management team, all staff members, suppliers,
subcontractors and other business partners and, most
importantly, our shareholders and customers for their support.

To reward and thank our shareholders for their unwavering
support, the Board recommends payment of a final dividend of
HK2.0 cents per share.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWED

The Board hereby presents the annual results of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2020 (the “Year”/“2020”), together
with comparative figures from the previous year ended 31
March 2019 (the “Previous Year”/“2019”).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
Group Revenue and Gross Margin

The Group’s revenue for the Year increased by 103% to
HK$917 million (2019: HK$452 million). The Hospital Expansion
project and two new major projects commenced during the
Year, i.e. Airport Logistic Centre project and Tseung Kwan
O Cross Bay Link project, were the main contributors of the
Group’s revenue and gross profit for the Year.

The gross profit and gross margin of the Group for the Year
was HK$127 million and 14% respectively (2019: HK$4 million
and 1% respectively). The profitability for the year improved
mainly because the increase in the Group’s revenue so that
the overhead costs such as equipment depreciation and labour
costs could be shared among several major projects.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED »

EEGHE N2 WMAEEE E2020F3 A31
HIEFE([AFE]T20206]) HFEE
45 EREZE2019F3A31H I FFE
(TEF]/T2019F ) LR IE -

XBOERRE
£ B A R AR 2

RAFE AEBEHKRAZINO3%E
917,000,000/ 7t (20194F : 452,000,000
AT - BlEEEE U RMERAFE
FaamERAR (AIEEMRTORSEE
REEEEEAR) EAKENORA KA
FEEMHERERFIR -

RAFE  AEBMEMNRFEERS R A
127,000,000/ 70 & 14% (20194 : 5 Bl &
4,000,000/ 7T K 1% ) ° KFE W R F 8
NE FERERANEEMU AL -
Bt SR YT I B Tk A S R A AN AT A
WEEEZEEDE-

ANNUAL REPORT 2020



Major Projects

Airport Logistic Centre
HEMRR O

Hospital Expansion

BixmRAA

Tseung Kwan O Interchange
BERTER

Tseung Kwan O Cross Bay Link
REREEEER

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEN WD

Completion status
as at

31 March 2020
R202053A31H
TR MR

93%
93%

Almost complete
BRI

80%
80%

Completed
B%T

Note: The above remaining contract values were determined with

reference to internal estimates based on currently available

information, and may be subsequently revised.

Airport Logistic Centre

The Group acts as the main contractor for the foundation
works for the development of a logistics centre at Hong
Kong International Airport. The contract value amounts to

approximately HK$500 million.

This project commenced in mid-2019 and contributed to about
51% of the Group’s total revenue for the Year. Around 93%
of the project was completed as at 31 March 2020 and all the
construction works had been completed as at the date of this

report.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE WA

Hospital Expansion

In July 2015, the Group won the main contract for foundation
and associated works in relation to the expansion of United
Christian Hospital from the Hospital Authority. The total
contract value amounts to HK$1,780 million, including
contingent and/or provisional sums.

More than half of the project value is for demolition of existing
buildings, site formation and road reconstruction to prepare
the site for expansion of the hospital with the remaining
representing foundation piling works.

This project contributed about 30% of the Group’s total
revenue for the Year. The construction works of this project
were almost completed as at 31 March 2020.

Tseung Kwan O Interchange

This project, commenced in mid-2018, is a subcontract for
marine bored pile works for a part of the Tseung Kwan O — Lam
Tin Tunnel. The contract value amounts to approximately
HK$170 million.

The project contributed about 3% of the Group’s total revenue
for the Year.

As at 31 March 2020, around 80% of the project was
completed and the project is expected to be completed by the
third quarter of 2020.

Tseung Kwan O Cross Bay Link

This project is a subcontract for bored pile works for a
part of the Tseung Kwan O - Lam Tin Tunnel. This project
commenced in mid-2019 and was completed by early 2020.
The contract value amounts to approximately HK$70 million

and this project contributed about 7% of the Group’s total
revenue for the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Against the current backdrop of COVID-19 which leads to
economic uncertainties in the global environment and also the
interruption in the operation of Legislative Council, we foresee
that it will take longer before the construction market can fully
recover. While we anticipate more construction works under
the Airport Third Runway Program and Kai Tak Development
to roll out gradually, the price competition will remain keen and
we anticipate the next year to remain tough. Given the size of
contracts on hand and number of tenders the Group is likely
to be awarded in the near-term, the Group expects that its
contract revenue in the next half year will be significantly lower
than that of this year. Overhead costs which may not go down
proportionately will hard-hit the Group’s profitability in the
short-term.

The directors of the Company nonetheless share the view
that the financial position of the Group remains healthy, as
highlighted by zero net gearing as at 31 March 2020. The
Group will therefore be able to brace against operational
pressure and be confident to recommend a final dividend
of HK2.0 cents per share, representing a payout ratio of
approximately 46%.

The Group will use its best endeavour to bid for new projects,
but before landing major profitable projects, it expects to
operate in a tough environment in the coming financial year.

Investment in a property holding company

In March 2017, the Group acquired 5% equity interest in
a property holding company, Gold Champion Enterprises
Limited (“Gold Champion”). The purpose is to provide a
springboard for the Group to explore opportunities in property
investment or property development. During the year, Gold
Champion has received enquiries from parties interested in
the land development or interested to acquire the land parcel.
Meanwhile, in view of the economic slowdown recently, Gold
Champion sees it an appropriate time to study on the feasibility
of a development plan whereas a lowering of development
costs is anticipated. Accordingly, Gold Champion will keep it
open to any development proposal that is viable in view of the
persistent demands in the property market of Hong Kong.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE WA

FINANCIAL REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

The Group recorded a net profit of HK$73 million for the Year
(2019: net loss of HK$50 million). The net profit arose mainly
because (a) revenue derived from construction contracts
increased more than 100% to HK$917 million for the Year;
and (b) there were no such impairment losses of approximately
HK$25 million on retention receivables as recorded in the
Previous Year.

The Group’s financial position remains healthy, with current
ratio at 1.7 times (2019: 1.5 times) and total cash and bank
balance amounted to approximately HK$210 million (2019:
HK$200 million). Net borrowings were 0 (2019: 0), with the
Group in a net cash position as at 31 March 2020.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased by 15% from HK$38
million in the Previous Year to HK$43 million for the Year.
The increase in administrative expenses is mainly because of
(a) the reduction in exchange gains arising from outstanding
Euro loans to about HK$1 million (2019: HK$3 million) amidst
the relatively modest fluctuation of Euro dollar and the partial
repayment of Euro loans during the Year; and (b) the increase
in motor vehicle expenses to about HK$3 million (2019: about
HK$2 million) for the Year due to the increase in traffic needs
between several construction sites.

Finance Costs/Income

The Group recorded net finance cost of about HK$0.1 million
for the Year (2019: net finance income of HK$1 million) mainly
attributable to the net cash position of the Group.

Taxation

The effective income tax rate for the Year was 13% (2019:
12%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Capital Expenditures and Capital Commitments

The Group generally finances its capital expenditures by
internal resources, long-term bank loans and leases. During
the Year, the Group invested approximately HK$21 million
in machinery and equipment (2019: HK$14 million). As at
31 March 2020, the Group’s capital commitments relating
to purchase of machinery and equipment was nil (2019: nil).
During the Year, save as disclosed herein, the Group did not
make any material acquisitions or disposals of assets.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had plant and equipment
of carrying amounts over HK$540 million in total, which
consisted of an extensive range of machinery and equipment
for foundation construction works. This fleet of plant and
equipment enables the Group to undertake both public and
private sector projects in order to generate revenue and profit
for the Group. The management considers that the fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use of these assets are
higher than their carrying amounts and therefore no impairment
provision is necessary.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing
Liquidity

The Group generally meets its working capital requirements
by cash flows generated from its operations and short-term
borrowings. During the Year, the Group generated a net cash
inflow of approximately HK$13 million from operating activities
(2019: a net cash outflow of HK$63 million). Together with
short-term bank loans and overdraft facilities available, the
Group’s daily operations had been financially sound throughout
the Year.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s net current assets were
approximately HK$181 million (2019: HK$90 million) and
current ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities) was
1.7 times (2019: 1.5 times).

Cash and Bank Balances

As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s total cash and bank
balances amounted to approximately HK$210 million (2019:
HK$200 million), and are mainly denominated in Hong Kong
dollars.

BB R

BARX REREE

AEE-—REBRNPER RHPRTE
HAEHEBNEERAAE - AEBERK
£ F & #721,000,0005 7T (20194 :
14,000,000 7T) B B W KB H - R
2020FF3A31H - AEBEHF BB ERT &
BEHERNEESEATHEIT (20194 -
TETL) c NAFE - BRAXFTEEN
AEBUVEBIMNEAEEBENRDE -

MR2020F3A31H » RNEE A 1w

H B & 7R E (A #8540,000,000%
T EFRE RV AR EERRTREN
TN Se RS o L HEM A N AR R B AN E A
W ATLERRNIEE K AREES
RRARFE - EEBRABZSEENR
FEREEXKARGEAEESNERERR
B BUBEFEDRERME-

nBEL  UHERREERMELR

)2

A

U
5N

AEB-—BUNEGCEEANBReRKEE
HEERNHEEEEST R -RAFE -
AREBKEEHEEREESRAFEY
13,000,000/ 7T (20194F : IR &7 L F 58
63,000,000/ L) » il FREAER R EH
RITES  AEBRAFENAEEESH
FEFBUEfRE -

R2020F3A31H  REBHFRY
B E % 5181,000,000/8 7T (20194 -
90,000,000/ 7T) * MBILL & (3L RENE
ERNURBEEFTE) B1.715 (20195 -
1.5F) o

B2 RRITAE AR
M2020563H31H - AEEMR & RIRTT

EERHAEAXY B210,000,0008 7T (20194 ¢
200,000,000 7T) * EZ LB LEHE °

CEIEEFR o ZHNEEEEFIRDA

11



12

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE WA

Borrowings

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had total borrowings
of approximately HK$119 million (2019: HK$96 million)
denominated in either Hong Kong dollars or Euros. Borrowings
generally include short-term and long-term bank loans, finance
leases and overdrafts bearing floating interest rates. Of the
total borrowings, approximately HK$101 million (2019: HK$80
million) was short-term bank loans and approximately HK$8.5
million was the current portion of long-term bank loans with
maturity dates within 12 months (2019: approximately HK$13
million was the current portion of long-term bank loans and
obligations under finance leases with maturity dates within 12
months) .

Gearing Ratio and Total Equity

As at 31 March 2020, the Group did not have net gearing (net
borrowings divided by total equity), instead, it had a net cash
position (2019: same). The Group’s net cash position was
mainly attributable to the profits from operations accumulated
during the previous years and the repayment of the majority
of the borrowings financing the investment in machinery and
equipment in the past years. For the purpose of calculating
the Group’s net gearing ratio, net borrowings refer to the total
borrowings less cash and cash equivalents and restricted bank
balances.

The Group’s total equity as at 31 March 2020 was
approximately HK$698 million (2019: HK$626 million).

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Operations of the Group are mainly conducted in Hong Kong
dollars. The Group’s revenue, expenses, cash and bank
balances, borrowings, other monetary assets and liabilities are
also principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Other than
the purchases paid in Euros and Singapore dollars and such
short-term Euros borrowings for settlement, the Group was not
exposed to any significant foreign currency risk and had not
employed any financial instrument for hedging.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2020, save for guarantees of performance
bonds relating to three foundation works and ancillary services
projects of the Group of approximately HK$50 million, HK$18
million and HK$17 million, respectively (2019: approximately
HK$18 million and HK$17 million, respectively), the Group did
not have any material contingent liabilities. The performance
bonds are expected to be released in accordance with the
terms of the respective construction contracts.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2020, the net book amount of right-of-use
assets (2019: plant and equipment held under finance lease)
approximately HK$16 million (2019: HK$64 million) and plant
and equipment approximately HK$52 million (2019: HK$76
million) was pledged for lease liabilities and long-term bank
loans, respectively. None of the banking facilities of the Group
were secured by the Group’s bank deposits (2019: none).

RELATIONSHIPS WITH CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND
EMPLOYEES

Customers

The Group emphasises its ability to deliver quality work on time
to customers and within the pre-determined project budget.
To execute the quality assurance policy of the Group, we
have maintained a quality management system which follows
the I1ISO 9001 standards. Quality assurance functions are
performed throughout the foundation works process from the
construction materials procurement stage to the completion
stage to ensure that the foundation works and ancillary
services meet the standards required by each customer. In
addition, members of our management team communicate
with our customers on a regular basis during the course of a
project to better understand and respond to our customers’
specific requirements. As our foundation business operates
on a non-recurring and project-by-project basis, we have not
entered into any long-term master contract with any of our
major customers. However, through this continued relationship
development, our Group aims to attract further business
from these customers and referrals from these customers.
Our directors consider that our Group has established good
relationship with our customers by delivering constructive
solutions and quality service to them.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE WA

Suppliers

We enter into contracts with our suppliers for construction
materials and subcontractors on a project-by-project basis
without a long term contract. Meanwhile, we maintain a
pre-approved list which admission is subject to assessment
of their background (including track record, pricing, market
reputation, timely delivery, financial conditions and after-sales
service) and the satisfactory quality of their construction materials,
and review and update the list from time to time. We also
acquired machinery and equipment from Asian and European
manufactures. We will check the product qualities and make
payments according to the contract terms. The directors consider
that we have maintained good business relationships with these
suppliers, subcontractors and manufacturers. During the year,
there was no material delay or dispute related to them causing
disruption to our operations. Some of them also have developed
good trading history of over years with our Group.

Employees

We believe that our employees are important assets to our
Group. Our directors recognise the importance of attracting
and retaining staff by providing a healthy and safe working
environment and job security. Our staff receive training to
enable them to acquire the prerequisite skills and knowledge
on health and safety related procedures before they are
assigned to carry out foundation works and ancillary services
on sites. Our Group also performs regular maintenance checks
on the machinery and equipment since our Group regards
regular maintenance as an important element to ensure safety
at the work sites. There was no fatal accidents happened in
the Group’s projects during the year and the accident rate was
lower than the industry average for the construction industry.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had approximately 331
(2019: 175) employees. The remuneration package we offer
to our employees includes salary, discretionary bonuses and
allowances. In general, we determine employee salaries based
on the individual’s qualifications, position and performance
(where applicable). We have designed an appraisal system to
assess the performance of our employees, which forms the
basis of our decisions with respect to salary raises, bonuses
and promotions. Our directors believe that the relationship
and co-operation between our management team and our
employees has been good.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

Qur Group also places an emphasis on environmental
protection when undertaking our foundation works and
ancillary services. Our Group’s activities are performed with
the utmost attention to quality, safety and with respect to the
environment. It is the policy of our Group to ensure that all
its activities are carried out in a manner that causes minimum
adverse impact on the environment through the establishment
and implementation of a management system which aims to
achieve environmental targets, comply with environmental
legislation and regulations, foster employees’ awareness
of their responsibilities for the environment; and review the
Group’s performance in respect of environmental matters and
strive to achieve continual improvement of its performance
and prevention of pollution. Trainings are provided to all staff
including the sub-contractor staff on the statutory and other
relevant requirements on environment and the implications of
not complying therewith.

In recognition of the policies and procedures undertaken by
our Group to address potential environmental issues with its
foundation works and ancillary services, in particular, large
diameter bored piles (with bell-out) and rock socketed steel
H-piles in pre-bored holes, our Group was awarded the ISO
14001:2004 (environment management system accreditation)
and renewed the certificate after passing the relevant audits
conducted by external certification body. Our Group also
implements an ISO 50001-based EnMS (energy management
system) that helps us to ascertain our current status of energy
use in order to devise corresponding measures to promote
efficient energy use in machinery and facilities and to formulate
a clear framework to promote continual improvement in energy
management and raise staff awareness on energy efficiency
and conservation. Our Group also monitors continuously on
the compliance with the customer’s environmental protection
requirements and relevant laws and regulations. During the
year, our Group had not been prosecuted by any governmental
authority for any purported breach of any applicable
environmental laws and regulations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

1. OUR REPORT

1.1.

1.2.

1.8.

Overview

This report provides the corporate social
responsibility performance of Sam Woo
Construction Group Limited (the “Group”) (HKEx
Stock Code: 03822) in environmental, social and
governance from 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020.
This report is in compliance with the “comply or
explain” provisions of Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (ESG Reporting
Guide) under Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited and contains all recommended
disclosures therein.

Scope of Reporting

This ESG Report covers the operation of the
Group’s headquarters office and the foundation
works project of Tseung Kwan O and the Airport.

Feedback

Your comments and advices will help determine and
reinforce the Group’s future sustainability strategy.
In order to enable the Group to comprehensively
understand and improve the performance related to
corporate social responsibility work, we eagerly look
forward to your feedback via the following contact
information:

Sam Woo Construction Group Limited
“HNREEEBRAA
Address H# i :

Tel B : (852) 2332-0783
Fax {8 X : (852) 2385-0793

E-mail & F 4§ : info@samwoo-group.com
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BRI - HERERERE

1.4. Reporting Principles 1.4, ERERA

18

We have considered the following reporting
principles in preparing this report:

Materiality: We communicate regularly with
stakeholders to better understand their concerns
about sustainability issues that affect them.
When we examine the status quo, materiality
and disclosure of sustainability issues, we will
regularly refer to local and regional sustainability
standards and those of our peers to ensure that our
sustainability priorities and strategies are aligned
with those standards.

Quantitative: Our data collection and analysis for
the Report were based on relevant guidelines and
standards, such as ISO 14064 for our greenhouse
gas emissions and the guidelines issued by the
Government of HKSAR for energy and carbon audits
for our buildings. Furthermore, figures may not add
up to the total due to rounding.

Balance: Our goal is to maintain a balance of
reporting and make fair disclosure of the progress
and ongoing challenges in the key areas of
the Group’s performance in order to enhance
transparency.

Consistency: Since 2017, we prepare this report
in accordance with the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide of the Stock Exchange
to allow for meaningful comparisons of our ESG
performance over time.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED »
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ENGAGEMENT OF STAKEHOLDERS

We believe that sincere communication with stakeholders
is the key for the Group’s business development and
growth and is also an indispensable part of our efforts
in sustainable development. Therefore, we deeply
understand the concerns of different stakeholders to
meet their demands and continue to improve, and thus
also enhance the Company’s management capabilities of
sustainable development and drive the realization of the
Company’s strategic objectives.

In order to better understand the stakeholders’
expectations and comments on the Group’s ESG issues,
we continuously communicate with a wide range of
stakeholders. According to the requirements of the Listing
Rules, we regularly disclose the Company’s operating
performance and project progress on the information
disclosure website designated by the Stock Exchange
(HKEXnews: www.hkexnews.hk). All disclosures
are prepared and published in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules, to ensure that they
are up to date with our latest developments. In addition,
the Group maintains close contact with customers and
contractors through meetings, telephone conferences and
e-mails. They may also have access to more information
by referring to publications about the Group.

By communicating with the stakeholders, we have
identified the following issues which are important to the
sustainable development of the Group. Those issues are
classified as the sustainable development focuses of the
Group.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R - HERERRE

Environmental Aspects Social Aspects

BREFH

HESE

° Pollution Control

o TR
° Use of Resources
e EZMER
° Promoting Green
Operation
MBI L&

Equal Employment

FEER

Occupational Health and Safety
BERERAZE

Training and Development
BEIlERE

Protection of Rights and Interests
R IE

Supply Chain Management
frrEEER

Quality Products

BEEM

Corporate Governance
BERE

Giving Back to Society

[ §8 4t [&@
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

CARE FOR THE ENVIRONMENT

Management approach and policies

The Group understands that conducting construction
works will cause potential impact on the environment.
Therefore, the Group carefully considers its impact on
the environment in the process of business development,
to minimize the effect that are detrimental to our
environmental while making positive contribution to
the environment. The Group has adopted ISO 14001
Environmental Management System and ISO50001
Energy Management System and conducts internal and
external assessments regularly to evaluate the system
effectiveness for continuous improvement, so as to
reduce and avoid unnecessary pollution to demonstrate
our commitment on environmental management.

The Group has strictly complied with all applicable
environmental protection laws and regulations, and
there were no cases of prosecution due to violation of
the relevant environmental protection laws during the
reporting period.

3.1. Pollution Control

Waste Gas Emission

The Group has been focusing on the issue of
waste gas emission. Our main waste gas emission
is the dust generated during construction and the
emissions from the Group’s vehicles. We follow
the construction advice of the main contractors to
adopt all appropriate mitigation measures, such as
sprinkling water on dry ground to reduce blowing
dust. In addition, only a small number of private cars
in the Group are used for employees’ short-distance
transport, so there has been no significant impact
on the environment.
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Solid Waste Management

The Group understands that handling and disposing
of waste is an increasingly serious environmental
issue, and knows that the large amount of
construction waste generated on construction
sites will place a heavy burden on waste disposal
facilities. Therefore, we promote the waste reduction
from the source, assess production procedures
regularly, identify the source of waste to formulate
policies to reduce the generation of hazardous
waste, and facilitate recycling to treat waste in a
responsible manner. In order to handle construction
waste properly, the Group has formulated complete
construction waste management plan, including
recycling, handling, transferring and disposing of
construction waste.

The hazardous waste and non-hazardous waste
generated by the Group’s Tseung Kwan O project
is collected, handled and disposed by the main
contractors. Although we do not handle hazardous
waste and non-hazardous waste directly, we
strictly comply with the main contractors’ waste
management measures. For example, we will carry
out separation of hazardous wastes, and put them
into designated containers and storage areas
separately.

For the management of hazardous wastes that
generated by the projects for the Airport, we will
separately store hazardous waste in designated
container with appropriate labels for identification.
For the disposal of hazardous wastes, we strictly
comply with relevant laws and regulations, a
licenced waste collector would be appointed
for disposal of the hazardous waste. During the
last Reporting Period, no hazardous waste was
generated from the Group.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED »
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3.2.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Non-hazardous wastes generated due to foundation
works for the Airport during the Reporting Period
are set out below:

Waste Unit
BEY B
Non-hazardous waste tonnes
BEBEEYD 73

Non-hazardous waste intensity (output) tonnes/output (tonnes)

BEREVMEE NEEEE)

Reduction of wastewater discharge

The Group deeply agrees that the shortage of
water resources is a serious problem facing the
world. The Group handles sewage discharge
carefully, minimizing the impact on the surrounding
environment. The construction wastewater would
be treated at the sewage treatment tank first before
discharging into sewage drains to ensure the
compliance with the requirements of the sewage
discharge license. Meanwhile, the Group has been
promoting the concept of wastewater recycling to
reduce wastewater discharge and conserve water.

Use of Resources

To make good on the Group’s promise on achieving
environmentally sustainable development, we have
formulated the code of practice and technical
guidance, which summarize our environmental
protection requirements on employees, contractors
and suppliers and provide more specific
management suggestions and measures to the
employees, to ensure all resources, including
energy, water and other natural resources, are used
in an efficient and conservative manner.
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Energy conservation and consumption reduction

The Group has always been committed to
promoting the environmental protection
performance and reducing energy consumption.
For effective energy management, we have already
adopted the ISO50001 Energy Management System
and have been certified for many years. With this
systematic management, we expect to lower energy
costs, reduce greenhouse gas emissions and
achieve the Group’s sustainable development goals.

Water conservation and efficiency enhancement

The Group deeply agrees that the shortage of
water resources is a serious problem facing
the world. To strengthen the management and
protection of water resources, the Group to strictly
control the emissions of waste water, adhere to
the objective “save water, use water wisely”. We
actively promotes the concept of using recycled
water on the construction sites. The construction
wastewater would be reused for water spraying for
dust reduction and for equipment cleaning after
treated by sewage treatment tank, which helps to
reduce water consumption and control pollution
simultaneously. In addition, the Group is also
committed to raising the employees’ awareness
of water conservation, we publicize water
resources management measures to employees
in environmental trainings; meanwhile, the Group
also strengthens the maintenance, inspection and
management of water-consuming equipment to
avoid leakage caused by pipeline damage, thus
achieving the purpose of water conservation of the
Group.
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During the reporting period, the major resources

consumed by the Group during its operation and

production are summarized as follows:

Resources
BiR

Electricity

BN

Gasoline (mobile sources)
ol ORER)

Diesel (mobile sources)
Sm OREIR)

Diesel (stationary sources)
Sm (B EIR)
Acetylene

7R

Fresh water

RIK

Paper materials

mEYE

Unit
B

kWh
TR
litres
T
litres
R~
litres
AT
kilogram
Aff

mS
SR
kilogram

D
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673.05

26,950.89

82,382.98

3,888,044.00

245.52

80,608.00

818.36

25



26

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIE - H8RER

3.3. Green Operation

HE

Advocating green office

3.3. #BEE

AR E W

The Group proactively integrates environmental REFBBREBEETRAR
responsibility into its daily operations. In this regard, TEBELETAYT  HIERK

we have established the green office policy and
the management measures of green operation to
reduce environmental impact and the consumption

PRI SLAF BN = BUR AR
BEENEEER  WREY
%%&Q?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ’]iéﬁ ° 3

of natural resources. We will continue to examine SR BERAHLYERNAI TR
feasible strategies and measures for energy B N HE 0 /=n?izﬁf7ﬁﬁﬁﬁu
conservation and look for more opportunities for TR e o

energy conservation and carbon reduction.

Measure name

EieaE

Green office
BORANE

Measure details

BEREAR

Adopting zoning control for lighting and air-conditioning
systems in the office
MAENRAREFHZGRA D RZES

Encouraging paperless office by replacing traditional paper
documents with electronic documents

SREAEHRA  AREFXERRERAE R

Setting air conditioners’ temperature to 25°C

REEFRAER25T

Arranging for the supplier to collect toner cartridges to
minimize the production of hazardous waste

mHESLHREEREDY - Bl BRERVNES

Advocating utilization of recycled paper in response to the call
for cherishing the earth’s resources
REEBBEEAEZRZEHIRER
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Measure name

EieamE

Promoting Green Concepts
in the Supply Chain
EHERP S EHRR

Providing Environmental
Protection Training
RAERFREI

RiR - HEREABRE

Measure details
BEAR

° All contracts entered into with suppliers contain all
requirements on environmental protection. Suppliers are
required to comply with environmental protection laws and
regulations and the standards of the Group

e HEEFEIINARPEIRRRENMERT  HEFALT
BRREREBRERNANEENRLE

o The Group will also use posters and emails from time to time
to encourage sub-contractors to comply with environmental
protection measures

o AEENTRERGHRNE FEHEEBS 2R EBIRKRERE

o The Group provides environmental protection training
for every new employee for them to understand the
requirements and standards of the industry and the Group on
environmental protection

e ZAEEHERMABNETRHRREI - BMABEBEITER
AEEBHRBERETENERRRE

o At day-to-day meetings, we remind and educate employees

and workers on our environmental protection efforts
e HERFGRTHUERERHEEIRIAEBRRIE

CEIEEFR o ZHNEEEEFIRDA
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Measure name

EieamE

Green purchase and
management

mEeRBERER

Measure details
BEAR

Give priority to models that are energy efficient and low in
emissions to support environmental protection when they
meet the Company’s requirements

ERARRERBAT  BREZRSRRUG MRS BERE
SRA X FFRIR

After completion of a project, tools and equipment that are in
good condition would be transported back to the warehouse
to be used for other projects

EIREEHTIR KERFNIAREEETLERE  UE
Hith T2 B A

The Group would procure materials based on the actual
needs of the project and would record the quantity used for
monitoring to prevent wastage due to lack of management
RIBERF2AERBEOMBNYDE YA ENRE
R ORERARREEMEBRE

Regular inspections and maintenance are carried out in order
to increase energy efficiency and slow down the damage and
prolong the working life of the machineries
FEHETREREMNRE ARTT RS MR 18 s 1812 -
JER T eSS
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Green Construction

The major pollution source generated by the Group
is from the daily operation of construction site. To

RiR - HEREABRE

AREM T

WERAFTEFEEENTIRE
ERRNKIRZ— BBMR

effectively control and manage as well as focusing EEHIEIEKERERR

on various environmental discharges, the Group
has in place a “Green Construction Program”
for control and strict monitoring. It ensures that
constructions are carried out in accordance

SEE-E[HREHmITERINA
B MBS B MR TR
AR EAR T - U
EHIEREINBEYEEDN

with relevant environmental protection laws and REFEREHER -

regulations to minimize the environmental impacts of

the project construction process on the surrounding

environment.

Airborne dust prevention

55 % EE

Noise suppression

R E

Site Management
TihEE

Adopting effective dust prevention measures on site (for
example, water sprinkling, hard-paving ground, fencing,
netting and sealing)

WISRM AR EREE (B wEEL BiE Z8E

= BHEFE

Ensuring the airborne dust control meets the requirements of
“Air Pollution Control Ordinance” and “Building Environmental
Assessment Method Plus for New Buildings”

R LS5 EEGIREI(ERE SRS M RZRFT —
FIEREIRTE

Noise shall not exceed the requirements of the “Noise Control
Ordinance” and “Building Environmental Assessment Method
Plus for New Buildings”

BRETEBE(RIEHIEROD MCRRRT —FRREE)RTE

Regulating and controlling noise instantly on the construction
site
T s 3% 57 4 188 2 #E 17 BV Iy B 081 B8 42 1

CEIEEFR o ZHNEEEEFIRDA
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Wastewater treatment
YEIKEE R

Waste management
BEEYER

Site Management
TihEE

Applying for wastewater discharge permit according to the
discharge requirements

12 IR PE B SR B B 5 K BE IR A RE

Assigning qualified units to monitor wastewater quality

LA BB ELETREARKE SR

Ensuring the wastewater discharge meets the requirements of
the “Water Pollution Control Ordinance”
HER )T 7K BERUE B OOF 28 S BI) 89 48 7

Setting a temporary storage site for waste
R EEYEGR T 75

Conducting waste classification with clear categorization

o R B AR AV IR

Hazardous solid waste is required to be classified and placed
in a confined area

EEERERMVBANBERE  URBEFNR

When certain amounts are stockpiled, local certified collector
is engaged to dispose of the waste
BE-—EHERAAZXEHAERNKERR BB

Ensuring the requirement of the “Waste Disposal Ordinance”
are met

R E(EDEERID R
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3.4. Tackling Climate Change

Carbon Footprint

On the issue of climate change, the Group has
tried its best in its own sphere. We have formulated
regional procurement measures in accordance
with the guidelines of “Building Environmental
Assessment Method Plus for New Buildings”. In
compliance with the conditions we require, we
prioritize using local suppliers and regional materials
to reduce energy consumption and greenhouse gas
emission that arisen from additional transportation.

The Group strives to absorb new technologies and
equipment which can improve production efficiency
and also promote environmental performance,
reduce energy consumption and carbon
emissions. The Group conducts regular equipment
maintenance to improve the operation efficiency and
minimise the additional emissions that caused by
equipment failure.

In addition, to understand and manage our
business’ impact on climate change, we regularly
monitor and inspect the Group’s greenhouse gas
emission volume to determine the future response
policy.

Direct emissions
BHEER

(tCO,-e)

(A _8LiRE S

10,472.65

Energy-related
indirect emissions
BE R R B HE
(tCO,-€)
(ARS8t EE

0.34

3.4.

SRR
i

EREECHEE L AEEF
e anER LFH &
KRB N LMSRGERER
P EEE) MRSl IR
TRARREERBOEE &
HARMELOEET B
A SRR M ERA L
ERYE - DR E BN E
B A2 M 18 AN BE R E FE SR
EREBAOBE

R 6 B B AN T IR K AR
B BRARSEEREI R
B Al (e ERIRRIR - A
BERBREEIN - A E S E Y
REETHERE  UWREER
BETHER  FEERERK
S FRIN DR

SN - BT RAE IR IR
HRIEEECHTE  BFED
ERMmAEEAREREH
ME - ABHEERKNEL T
B o

Total greenhouse gas emissions

CEIEEFR o ZHNEEEEFIRDA

BERBHEKRAE
(tCO,-6)
(RS /eikE =

10,472.99
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Total consumption

wmiEaE
Electricity 673.00 kWh
& FEE
Gasoline (mobile sources) 26,950.89 litres
ol ORER) N
Diesel (mobile sources) 82,382.98 litres
gem OREIR) N
Diesel (stationary sources) 3,888,044 litres
g0 (EEIR) nFH
Oxyacetylene 245.52 kilogram
[ 2 YNIY

Extremely Bad Weather

The Group understands that the arrangement of
outdoor works are subject to the weather condition.
In case of bad weathers such as typhoon, heavy
rains and heat wave, the management needs to
re-deploy their manpower and take precautionary
measures, to prevent workers from being injured.
To respond to the sudden attack of bad weathers
such as typhoon, heavy rains and heat wave, the
Group will adopt corresponding measures according
to the “Guide on Safety at Work in times of
Inclement Weather” and “Code of Practice in times
of Typhoons and Rainstorms” issued by the Labour
Department, and the “Guidelines on Site Safety
Measures for Working in Hot Weather” issued by the
Construction Industry Council. For the staff works at
office, we will arrange our employees in respect of
reporting for duty and release from work according
to the “Code of Practice in times of Typhoons and
Rainstorms” released by the Hong Kong Labour
Department.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED »

Carbon emissions

WH N E
0.337 tCO,e
N —ELiRE E
71.687 tCO,e
A _AtiEE
226.562 tCO,e

AR EE

10,173.573 tCOe

AW —S(LIREE
0.830 tCO,e
NWE— S CiRE 2

15 H KR

SETHRPINTIENTH+D
XRRAFE B BLEHE -
RNAHERAEESLRR 1
ABEFBHPHAFNRIEAED
Bt AR TAREG - MR
% 72 4 E 2R BN 5 o KSR 20 e
B Z2REERE SE2R
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4, GROWTH AND WIN-WIN 4. BEHEE
4.1. Equal Employment 41, TERRE
Overview of the Group’s employees AEENREEME

Gender distribution of employees

ETHRIDH

Y/

B Male [ Female %

Male 5 312
Female & 19
Age distribution of employees

BIFRAMH
5%

[ Age 18-30 M Age 31-45 M Age 46-60 [ Age 61 or above
18-30%% 31-45%% 46-60%% 6153k A b
Age 18-30 18-30%% 17
Age 31-45 31-453% 87
Age 46-60 46-605% 161
Age 61 or above 615%3k A 66

CEIEEFR o ZHNEEEEFIRDA
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Management approach and policies

To become the “best employer”, we endeavour to
build a working environment that features mutual
respect, harmonious coexistence and safety first;
and we also provide training courses and career
development opportunities to employees for
improving in work. We have a dedicated human
resources committee to regularly review and
improve the relevant policies, so as to ensure that
they are in compliance with local laws and industry
guidelines. During the reporting period, the Group
did not find any violations or receive complaints
concerning discrimination or recruitment.

Equal opportunity and diversity

We implement a policy of diversity and
non-discrimination to demonstrate our
determination to create a non-discriminatory
working environment for employees and job
applicants. We ensure that each job applicant has
corresponding right, and that employees are treated
fairly and impartially in recruitment, probation
period, promotion, resignation and other aspects.
In considering the recruitment and promotion of
an employee, we refer to his/her job performance,
experience and personal ability of the employee
as the promotion criteria, and will not discriminate
against or disregard him/her on the grounds of
sex, age, marital status, family status, pregnancy,
disability, race, ethnicity or religion. Furthermore,
we also prohibit various kinds of illegal harassment
conducts, including sexual harassment, disability
harassment and racial harassment.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED »
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Employee benefits

To attract top talents, we regularly refer to the
industry salary benchmark to ensure that we provide
competitive remuneration package. Meanwhile, we
enter into employment contracts with employees
in accordance with “Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance” to protect employees’ legal rights and
interests and ensure they are entitled to paid leave,
sick leave, work-related injury leave and maternity
leave in accordance with statuary standards.
Moreover, if an employee has suffered from an injury
or died as the result of an accident at work, the
Group would pay a reasonable compensation to the
employee and their family in accordance with the
labour law. The Group’s policy is strongly against
overtime work for employees. Prescribed overtime
pay and compensatory leave would be given for
overtime work.

Meanwhile, the Group is attentive to the physical
and mental health of employees. To facilitate the
work-life balance and the physical and mental health
of employees, our Tseung Kwan O site also hosts
recreational activities from time to time to help
employees relieve work pressure and to enhance
employees relations, so as to strengthen contact
among employees and enhance team cohesion.

Employee communication

Having a dedicated and committed team is essential
to the continuous prosperity of the Group. We
encourage bilateral communication between the
management and employees to build mutual trust,
increase productivity and boost staff morale. We
use different channels to inform our employees
of the latest news of the Group and collect their
opinions. Our senior management will regularly
review their suggestions and propose solutions to
the problems.

CEIEEFR o ZHNEEEEFIRDA
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ETEH

RBMIERAA - BPEH2
EITRFMEE BREREHR
ABFNNHFEMENGE - [
B R RR(EBRERER
1) B8 TR ERA #IAR
R THAERE  YHRER
BEwumBEY - mR- TER-
ERE - METHERHT
BER R TERTEINGE K
SEHERSTENEE TR
REFLAERE - AREK
OB oRE B THER TE
B TAE IR A T8 75 £ RV iR
SR R

RARAEE+2TEEINS
DR BTIREBIHMIE
S A SE SR 5 OO BN
B 15 BB SR ) A8 I T BRF 52 % SR
EEEBBTIFETIERENR
EHEBTRIER  UINRET Y
MROBEREABBRES -

ETE#

BE-ERATEREARE
BOBERHAEENEER
A BN A R o HPIE B E IR
EMETZHETERER
MEE(E  REEENT
BETER - RAEABTRR
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HEE ML AR L AR TT 5 -
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4.2. Occupational Health and Safety

Management approach and policies

The Group attaches great importance to the safety
of the construction sites and never compromises
on safety. We strive to create the safest and most
suitable working environment with zero accidents
by implementing various management measures to
prevent potential risks of occupational diseases and
industrial casualties. We have established site safety
management system to enhance the overall safety
performance of construction sites. Meanwhile, we
also conduct regular inspections and assessments
of the system. During the reporting period, the
Group has passed certification of OHSAS 18001
Occupational Health and Safety Management
System to verify the effectiveness of the system.

During the reporting period, there was no case of
violations of local occupational health and safety
laws and regulations, nor any work-related fatalities
in the Group. But, unfortunately, there was one site
worker injured at work, as a result, 32 work days
are lost. We will carry out immediate investigations
after the accident, and then develop mitigation
measures and strengthen its monitoring, in order
to avoid any further recurrence and protect our
employees.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED »
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The Group’s work-related injury statistics for the last EERI2ENIERTHT

two years are as follows: [N

Health and safety Year

BREEZZ FE

Work-related fatalities (persons) 2019/20 0

AIT (AZ) 2018/19 0

Number of days lost due to 2019/20 32

work-related injuries (days)

HIEEEXBEH(R) 2018/19 0

Evaluation of site safety risks T Hh 22 & 5 5F 1

To identify all health and safety-related hazards RETHEEERMZ 2 IERE

and risks, we will conduct initial inspections of HmEELER BRfeAES

operations and site work to identify potential risk MIRG TEETHISEE - A

levels and provide risk assessments for high-risk BRIPTEE RER R R - W

work to develop control measures of varying SR E TERER R

degrees. For work processes involving significant LASIE SRR E R 4L S HE 5 ©

risks, we will set targets to achieve more ideal WY REANRRHNIREE @@

management results. BEITEEE NEBFIEEY
BEMR -
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Management of site safety

The Group has also carried out a safety inspection
scheme, our Occupational Safety and Health
Committee will be responsible for monitoring the
health and safety performance while trying to
minimise the potential risks during the business
operations. We hold safety meeting each month
to review the performance of each subcontractor
in occupational safety and health and the
environmental protection, and jointly formulate
effective improvement and corrective measures.
We often remind employees of relevant safety
matters in the pre-work briefings, for high risk
jobs, the management staff would determine the
appropriate personal protective equipment for the
employees to ensure their safety. In addition to a
series of mandatory measures, we would select
and reward frontline workers who have outstanding
performance in occupational safety and health
and the environment every month; and thereby to
encourage more workers to pay attention to affairs
concerning occupational safety and health and the
environment.

Safety training

Meanwhile, as a responsible employer, we provide
industry-related safety trainings for the employees.
All staff entering the site for work are required to
take safety guidance training courses in advance.
The safety supervisor will provide relevant trainings
including introducing safety-related laws, safety
operation guidelines, potential hazards and
emergency response at the construction sites to
enhance their awareness of safety operation. We
have also established a training allowance scheme
to subsidise staff to attend external courses
which are essential to the safety of our business
operations.
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4.3. Talent Development

Management approach and policies

The success of the Group relies on the efforts of our
employees and we also understand that continuous
improvement is the key element of our business
success. As such, we encourage employees
to engage in life-long learning, actively provide
trainings for employees, facilitate employees’
individual development, and expect that they can
grow with the Group together.

Training System

The Group has sponsored and provided
opportunities for employees to participate in
various trainings to enhance their knowledge and
skill, for example providing mechanical operations
training for technician trainees and sponsoring
their license examinations. Furthermore, the
Group would nominate a number of employees
to attend operations trainings, for new machine
models, provided by the manufacturers; and
would also participate in the exhibitions to visits
latest mechanical developments. Through such
programs, employees would be able to gain
more comprehensive knowledge on mechanical
operations and grasp new skKills faster to help
driving the Company’s development.

The Group has always been concerned with
managing the career development of young
junior employees. In daily operations, the Group
will arrange team leaders to provide on-the-job
training for them and arrange experienced staff
to offer practical advice to them and to share
valuable business and life experiences with them.
In addition, managerial staff would attend seminars
on construction industry management or new
developments, organised by industry or professional
organisations to enhance their knowledge in
management and broaden their horizons. If a
department deems it necessary, employees may be
allocated to other positions to acquire knowledge
and experience from different fields.

RE > HE8RER

4.3.
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HERERHRE

4.4. Protection of Rights and Interests

Management approach and policies

The Group and its subsidiaries prohibit the
employment of child labour. The Company does
not employ any child labour and forced labour in
any form. During recruitment, we would check the
applicants’ identity cards and other valid certificates
for age verification. During the reporting period, the
Group found no cases of child labour and forced
labour.

5. OPERATIONAL COMMITMENT

5.1.

Supply Chain Management

Management approach and policies

As a responsible company, the Group not only
commits to complying with all operation-related
laws and regulations but also expects to create a
better and greener future with our supply chain.
In order to give them a clear understanding of the
Group’s commitments to social, environmental
and occupational health and safety excellence, we
clearly set out requirements and standards during
the tendering and procurement processes, and set
up effective mechanisms to ensure that both parties
act in strict accordance with laws and regulations.
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Supplier selection criteria

The Group has established an internal policy
to regulate the tendering and quoting process,
which requires that detailed assessments must be
performed on suppliers and contractors to ensure
that they meet the Group’s internal requirements;
the policy covers suppliers’ and contractors’
past performance, labour rights, performance in
occupational safety and health and environmental
protection, financial position and business ethics.
Moreover, all departments within the Group maintain
close communication to monitor and ensure that
the tendering and procurement process meets the
standards and is fair and transparent.

Stringent regulation

The Group adopts a comprehensive supply chain
management mechanism, including a code of
conduct and a supplier assessment system, to
monitor and assess the performance of suppliers
in areas ranging from product and service quality
to business ethics. We will conduct regular
assessments of the suppliers’ social, environmental
protection, occupational health and safety
standards to ensure that they comply with the law.
Any non-compliance may result in exclusion from
the tender list and termination of the contract.

Furthermore, the project management team of
the Group would continuously monitor the skill
and labour safety performance of the contractors,
recording the relevant inspection results for follow
up work. We would also hold regular meetings with
contractors to review the quality and speed of work
of the contractors. The Group has implemented
environmental protection and occupational, safety
and health guidelines for contractors. These
include construction and engineering design,
material selection, pollution control and other good
practices. Additionally, the Group would instruct
suppliers and contractors to provide training related
to the operations of the Group’s environmental
management system.
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Sustainable development supply chain

In addition to actively consolidating its internal
sustainable development management, the Group
is also committed to promoting the operation model
of sustainable development through the value chain,
jointly contributing to sustainable development
with suppliers, customers and other stakeholders.
We require suppliers and contractors to comply
with the Group’s environmental protection and
occupational health and safety policies and strict
corporate governance standards. Furthermore, we
also support freedom of association, firmly believe
that all employees in the supply chain should be
free from discrimination, and will never tolerate child
labour and forced labour practices by suppliers. We
regularly review the performance of suppliers and
contractors to ensure that they comply with relevant
regulations and continue to make improvements.

Quality Construction
Management approach and policies

The Group has always regarded the quality of
products as the key to our business success.
Therefore, we strive to provide customers
with high-quality, healthy and safe foundation
engineering service in accordance with all applicable
laws and regulations. We have in place a complete
safety and quality management system which
enables us to prevent major accidents and provide
quality products and services to meet customer
requirements. The Group has continuously obtained
ISO 9001 Quality Management System Certification.

During the reporting period, there was no violation
of laws and regulations on the health and safety of
products and services, labelling, and privacy, and
did not have any cases of product recall for safety
or quality reasons and received no complaints.
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Product safety

In order to ensure all piles meet relevant safety
standards, we conduct product testing with specific
and effective methods to make sure that our
products meet quality and technical requirements.
We have developed testing and inspection plans
for different stages of the construction project,
and run various appropriate tests on all piles in
accordance with the relevant contractual provisions
upon completion of projects; of which, quality
control tests cover a wide range of areas, including
inspection of the angle of inclination of the bored
pile, the quality of concrete and fractures, the
binding force between the concrete and rocks,
and a series of incoming quality control to ensure
the quality and safety of the product in all aspects.
The Group would also provide customers the test
reports of all piles to guarantee the stability of the
pile structure.

Customer service

The Group is committed to becoming a
professional and reliable business partner, and
firmly believes that reliability, fairness, high quality
and transparency are the key to the success of
long-term close cooperation. In addition to serving
with care, our product services also cover quality
assurance after completion of the project. We
would, in accordance with the relevant contract
terms, be responsible for fixing any construction
defects within the warranty period. Typically,
the warranty period is within one year after the
completion of the project. In addition, we set up
multiple channels for customers to give feedback
and ensure that we can collect customers’ opinions,
so as to improve product and service quality.
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5.3.

HERERHRE

Protection of consumer data privacy

The Group focuses on information security and
confidentiality, all employees are required to comply
with the privacy policy regarding personal data and
Hong Kong'’s privacy ordinance to protect customer
data. The Group stands by the confidentiality clause
in the signed contract with the customers, ensuring
that the information and documents provided by the
customers would be properly stored.

Advertising and Labelling

As a responsible company, the Group understands
the importance of advertising and sales pitches.
Accordingly, our business units strictly comply with
all laws and self-discipline practices relating to the
labelling and promotion of products and services. In
addition, we regularly review management approach
to make sure that the publicity information is timely
and accurate and complies with relevant laws and
regulations.

Corporate Governance
Management approach and policies

The Group firmly believes that fairness, honesty
and integrity are important business assets.
We will never tolerate any forms of corruption,
including bribery and solicitation, fraud, and money
laundering. As such, to create and maintain an
ethical corporate culture, we have formulated
regulations on professional ethics in economic and
business activities, requiring business partners
to sign a commitment letter of cooperation unit,
regulating their companies and business personnel
to abide by the provisions of professional ethics,
and jointly maintaining a “simple, transparent, clean
and fair” partnership.
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Preventive regulation

In order to prevent any conflict of interests, we
have established conflict of interests mechanism,
and employees should first make a statement to
the board of directors through reporting channels.
We have also formulated fair, open and impartial
procedures for product or service procurement
or tendering to inhibit any potential corruption. In
addition, the Group employs independent auditors
to audit the Group’s financial statements, to
ensure that the Group’s accounts are correct and
to strengthen financial oversight to protect the
interests of shareholders.

Whistle-blowing procedures

As a part of anti-corruption measures, we have
established a reporting system, and have developed
relevant policies to effectively implement internal
monitoring and risk management. The policies
provide reporting guidelines and channels for
employees, and help increasing employees’
alertness towards fraud, corruption and other
misconduct.

Based on the above-mentioned monitoring and
prevention measures, there were no cases of
corruption involving either of the Company or
individual employees during the reporting period,
and no corruption was found.
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5.4.

5.5.
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Giving Back to Society

With the mission of giving back to the society and
the philosophy of “taking from the society and giving
back to the society”, the Group fully understands
that our responsibility not only lies in our direct
contribution to social economy, but also includes
the influence and effect of our business operation
and public welfare projects on the whole society.
The Group actively contacts community groups
with similar corporate responsibility concepts as the
Group to understand the needs of the community.
In order to fulfill its duty as a corporate citizen
and serve the community, the Group donated to
more than 10 different charitable institutions and
community organizations in the past year. In the
future, we will continue to look for more non-profit
organisations of different types to collaborate with,
expecting to bring benefits to more people.

Award and Achievement
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B HEREARE

SUSTAINABILITY PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW AEEHEREHME

ENVIRONMENT

BiE
Polluting emissions Unit
FRERY B
Solid waste
EREED
Hazardous waste ' kg
BEREEY NS
Hazardous waste intensity kg/per cubic metre of concrete
BEBEEYNEE INEESIVE =)
Non-hazardous waste tonnes
BEEREEY NI
Non-hazardous waste intensity tonnes/per cubic metre of concrete
BEEEVEE YN VSV Y Y e
Greenhouse gas emission and intensity
BERBHEREREE
Total greenhouse gas emissions tCO,-e
MEREERAE AE—EIREE
Direct emission tCO,-e
HEHEW AW _EILiRE S
Energy-related indirect emissions tCO,-e
BE R B HE PR AW _EILIRE S
Emission intensity tCO,-e/per cubic metre of concrete
PR E AT S LiREE /YA KRERLT
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BRI - HERERERE

Polluting emissions

SRR

Energy use

BEIRER

Power purchased?
BEHNE N

Power use intensity
Gasoline (mobile sources)
Aol ORER)
Gasoline use intensity
ARERTE

Diesel (mobile sources)
50m OREIR)

Diesel use intensity
SRmEREE

Diesel (stationary sources)
gem (B E IR )

Diesel use intensity

S8 52 P 2
Acetylene

7R

Acetylene intensity
LIREE

Water®

ks

Water use intensity
FKEE

Usage volume of other materials

Httm R ERE

Papers

Aok
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kWh
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kWh/per cubic metre of concrete
TRE G KERLT

litres

ﬂ_

litres/per cubic metre of concrete
F @R KRR+

litres

9’_'_

litres/per cubic metre of concrete
F G H KRR

litres

ﬂ,

litres/per cubic metre of concrete
Ft/ B KRR

kg

NI

kg/per cubic metre of concrete
DT/ B FHKERL

m3

377K

m?3/per cubic metre of concrete
SRS G KRR
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B HEREARE

Notes: it -

1: As the non-hazardous waste and hazardous waste generated by 1: HRAEBNBERIEEAELAN
the Group’s Tseung Kwan O project are collected, handled and BERZEYNEEREEYE HEERE
disposed of by main contractors, no relevant data is available s REREE BHARESHA
during the reporting period. W8 BB -

2:  As power use of construction sites is provided by main 2. BARIMWHNE IR BAREDRIR

contractors of the sites, only the power use of the Hong Kong Ho B BREEARAENAE
office is contained, and therefore, the number of employees in E-HMHEAEENRAZTETHAAR
the Hong Kong office is used for the calculation of intensity. VEAZETE -
Reference guide on each of carbon emission factors EWmHERESEED
Stationary combustion Guidelines to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and
(Hong Kong) Removals for Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional Purposes) in
Hong Kong
EER (F8) - BERREY (A% A HAE) AERBEMERRNEST MREES
Mobile combustion Guidelines to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and
(Hong Kong) Removals for Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional Purposes) in
Hong Kong
wnER () ERREY (A% ETHAHBE) AERBEMIRBRNES MRS ES
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BRI - HERERERE

Employees

]

Total number of employees
BT A

Age distribution
Fieof

18-30 years old
18-307%

31-45 years old
31-455%

46-60 years old
46-605%,

Age 61 or above
61 &AL

Gender distribution
Bl 5
Male

==
>
Female

X

Health and safety
REHETE

Work-related fatalities

HTERRILT AR

Social

HE

Number of work days lost due to work-related injuries

AIBERIERH

Anti-corruption

R &8

Number of concluded corruption cases brought against
the issuer or its employees during the reporting period

REBRMAHBTAREBRERIYCESED

BESRARMFNER

Unit
B

persons

A

persons
AE
persons

A

persons

A

persons

ANE

persons

A

persons

A

persons

AE
days
H

cases

IR
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HONG KONG STOCK EXCHANGE ENVIRONMENTAL,

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE
INDEX

ESG Reporting Guide Subject Areas/Aspects/“Comply

or Explain” Provisions
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A. ENVIRONMENT
A BB
Aspect A1 : Emissions
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance, and strives to maintain transparent
and responsible management practices that will create long
term value for the interests of shareholders. The Board will
continuously review and improve the Group’s corporate
governance practices, and maintaining a high standard of
business ethics across the organisation.

The Company had complied with all the code provisions set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) under
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) throughout the year ended 31
March 2020.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made
specific enquiry with all directors, the directors confirmed that
they had complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2020.

As required under the CG Code, the Board has established
guidelines no less exacting than the Model Code for relevant
employees in respect of their dealings in the securities of the
Company.
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THE BOARD

The primary role of the Board is to protect and enhance
long term shareholders’ value. The Board oversees the
management, business, strategies and financial performance
of the Group. It also ensures that good corporate governance
policies and practices are implemented within the Group. In
the course of discharging its duties, the Board acts in good
faith, with due diligence and care, and in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders. The management is
responsible for execution of the strategies in the Group’s daily
operations and implementation of the risk management and
internal control systems.

The Board currently comprises 7 members whose biographies
and family relations are set out in the “Profile of Directors and
Senior Management” section on pages 63 to 66 in this annual
report. The posts of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company are separately held by Mr. Lau Chun Ming and
Mr. Lau Chun Kwok, respectively, to maintain an segregation
of duties between the Chairman’s responsibility to manage
the Board and the Chief Executive Officer’s responsibility to
manage the Group’s business and oversee the management.
The directors bring a good balance of skills and experience to
the Company. The independent non-executive directors serve
the relevant function of bringing independent judgment on the
development, performance and risk management of the Group.
The directors have been made fully aware of their collective
and individual responsibilities to shareholders.

The executive directors have entered into service contracts
with the Company and each of the independent non-executive
directors has been appointed on specific term of three years.
Notwithstanding the specific term of appointments, the articles
of association of the Company provides that every director
shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at
least once every three years. At each annual general meeting,
one-third of the directors for the time will retire from office by
rotation and being eligible for re-election by the shareholders.
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Board meetings

The Board held four meetings during the year ended 31
March 2020, at approximately quarterly intervals. All directors
attended these meetings, at which business development,
investment strategies, financial performance and potential risks
relating to the daily operations of the Group, were discussed.

Directors’ induction and development

In the year ended 31 March 2020, all directors complied
with the provision of the CG Code in relation to continuous
professional development and submitted their training records
to the Company. In doing so, the directors have undertaken
various forms of activities that have included attending a
presentations given by external professional advisors, and
reading materials relevant to the Company’s business,
directors’ duties and responsibilities.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established certain Board committees to
oversee specific aspects of the Company’s affairs and help
it in the execution of its responsibilities. These committees
each have specific written terms of reference which clearly
outline the committees’ authority and duties, and which
require the committees to report back on their decisions or
recommendations to the Board.
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Audit Committee

The audit committee is responsible for the engagement of
external auditor, review of the Group’s financial information and
oversight of the Group’s financial reporting system, internal
control procedures and risk management system. It is made up
of three independent non-executive directors including Mr. Ip
Tin Chee, Arnold (chairman), Professor Wong Sue Cheun,
Roderick and Mr. Chu Tak Sum.

The audit committee held two meetings during the year ended
31 March 2020, which was attended by all of its members,
to review, among other matters, the consolidated financial
statements, internal control review report and continuing
connected transactions of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2019, and have a private meeting with external auditor
without the presence of the management; and the unaudited
interim financial statements of the Group for the six months
ended 30 September 2019.

Nomination Committee

The nomination committee held one meeting during the year
which was attended by all of its members. It is responsible for
annually reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board (including its mix of skills, knowledge and experience),
making recommendations on proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of directors, and assessing the independence
of independent non-executive directors. It also oversees
the implementation of the Company’s policy on diversity of
directors. It is made up of four members including Professor
Mr. Chu Tak Sum,
Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold, being independent non-executive

Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick (chairman),

directors, and Mr. Lau Chun Ming, an executive director.

RE R

W
il
i3

ERA

EZLZE AR EMIMNEZEED - FHA
El%%§ﬂ~&gﬁﬁl%%ﬁ%§

NEEEZEF REREE RS - HA
:%E\#%ﬁ%%@ﬁ'@%%%%ﬁ
E(ER)  FTHEEHERREHREE -

ERZ BN E2020F3A318 ILEE
BOITMAEEH TEKEHEE  UE
B (HReiE) A&EEEZE2019F3H31H
IFFEMNGREMBRERANIBEEEHR
EURBERER S  UHEBEEELRF
BN T BRSNS AZ BRI RIT T — A AP
# LRBEHAKBEEZE2019F9H30LER
BRAMREEZPEAMERE -

RHZEE

REZBENFRBTT —REZ - 28
KREHBELFE EEERTEFENR
B RREAK (BREKE AR RER
MAS) BEREFREESRIES -
HEARRNBIREREAEARAN R ERE
MEEEFRNEFTSRLEZ  LFEB
VERTEENE UM - REEZEETEA
AERARREARRNERER - #R
EXNEABETME - REZEEHOE
REHRK  BIEBUIFRTEEIHEH
B(XE)  REBEREERERBELEUR
MITEZRIRALE -

CEIEEFR o ZHNEEEEFIRDA

55



56

Corporate Governance Report

TEERHRE

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.
The Company has a diversity policy of Board members. Under
this policy, the diversity of the Board is considered in terms
of factors such as gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments are
based on merit, and candidates are considered against various
objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board. Selection of candidates will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives appropriate to the requirements
of the Company’s business operations and environment as
well as the industry in which the Company operates. The
nomination committee will continuously monitor and review
the implementation of this policy and the progress towards
achieving the measurable objectives.

The Board currently comprises 6 male and 1 female directors
with different age, educational background, skills and
experience. The nomination committee considers that our
directors have extensive experience in different fields and
professions that are relevant to the Company’s business, which
enable them to provide valuable and relevant insights to the
Board.

The nomination committee is responsible for the development
and implementation of the nomination policy which aims at
setting out the criteria and process in the nomination and
appointment of directors of the Company; ensuring that the
Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the Company; and ensuring the
Board continuity and appropriate leadership at Board level.

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship,
the following criteria should be considered: character and
integrity; qualifications; measurable objectives in achieving
Board diversity; independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules; potential contributions the candidate can bring to the
Board; time commitment; and such other perspectives that are
appropriate to the Company’s business and succession plan.
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The nomination committee will conduct regular review on
the structure, size and composition of the Board and the
policy and where appropriate, make recommendations
on changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy and business needs. Upon receipt of the
proposal of appointment of new director and the biographical
information of the candidate, the nomination committee should
evaluate such candidate based on the objective criteria it has
set forth to determine whether such candidate is qualified
for directorship. For directors standing for re-election, the
nomination committee will review the contribution of the retiring
director and the level of participation and performance on the
Board.

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee held one meeting during the year
which was attended by all of its members. It is responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all the directors
and senior management of the Group and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy for approval by the Board. It is made
up of four members including Mr. Chu Tak Sum (chairman),
Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick, Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold,
being independent non-executive directors, and Mr. Lau Chun
Ming, an executive director.

In determining the remuneration of the Directors and the senior
management, the Remuneration Committee would consider
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the Directors and the senior
management, performance and contributions of the Directors
and the senior management and the change in market
conditions. Details of the remuneration paid to the directors
and the other five highest paid employees are set out in notes
30(a) and 7(c), respectively, to the consolidated financial
statements.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard
shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets, and
reviewing their effectiveness of annually through the audit
committee. The audit committee reports to the Board on any
material issues and makes recommendations to the Board.

The Group has maintained an operation manual, which
provides a comprehensive internal control guidance and
procedures on the Group’s operational cycles relating to
revenue, purchase and expenditure, inventory and human
resources etc., to ensure proper accounting records are
kept so that reliable financial reporting can be provided,
effectiveness and efficiency of operation can be achieved,
compliance with applicable laws and regulations and
safeguarding of assets can be maintained. These procedures,
together with the Company’s compliance manual, have also
shaped the control environment at which and how the Group
operates in, including the budgeting controls, investment
decision making, risk assessment and practices of corporate
governance. These systems are designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance and protection against
errors, losses and fraud.

The Company does not establish a standalone internal audit
department, however, the Board has put in place adequate
measures to perform the internal audit function at different
aspects of the Group which are discussed below.

The Company has appointed an internal control adviser to
conduct annual review on the risk management and internal
control system of the Group for the year and reported their
findings and recommendations to the audit committee and the
Board. It is designed to review the effectiveness of the Group’s
material internal controls so as to provide assurance that key
internal control measures are carried out appropriately and are
functioning as intended. During the year, risk assessment and
management, overall management controls, financial budget
and forecast cycle, management accounting information
system, financial statement reporting process and general
ledger cycle were reviewed and found that adequate controls
are in place.
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For the foundation works business, the Group has to comply
respective requirements and pass the regular reviews in order
to retain its listing in the Development Bureau Specialist List
(Group 1) in large diameter bored pile (with bell-out), the
Housing Authority List of Piling Contractors (large diameter
bored piling category) Probation and the Buildings Department
Registered Specialist Contractor — Foundation Category.
The Group has also implemented a management system in
accordance with the requirements under ISO 9001, ISO 14001,
ISO 50001 and OHSAS 18001 to ensure that the Group’s
services meet the requisite health and safety, quality and
environmental requirements. During the year, the Group passed
the audits conducted by external consultants and renewed
these certificates. Upon completion of pile construction,
the Group is required to engage external professionals to
conduct various applicable tests on all piles based on the
relevant contractual requirements and ensure full compliance
with customer requirements. Subject to these piling records
available to the customers for their testing and inspection,
the authorised persons employed by the customers certify
the value of the works completed in the payment certificates
issued to the Group. Therefore, stringent on-going controls and
monitoring systems have already been embedded in the daily
operations of the foundation works business.

The executive directors held monthly meetings with senior
management to review and monitor the business and financial
performance against the targets, the progress of certification
and contract receipts from the customers, the efficiency
in the use of the Group’s resources in comparison to the
budgets, and the operational matters to ensure the Group has
complied with the regulations that have material impact to the
Group’s business. The aim is to enhance the communication
and accountability of the directors and management so that
significant strategic, financial, operational and compliance
risks or potential deviations are timely identified and dealt
with in a proper manner, while significant issues are reported
back to the Board for their attention. The Company also
compiles monthly reports to the Board (including independent
non-executive directors) to update the latest financial
performance, position and prospects of the Group.
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The Company also has a policy for disclosure of inside
information. While any potential inside information will be
escalated to the executive meetings or the Board via the
established reporting channels, the directors will assess and
determine if inside information of the Company exists where
timely disclosure is required to be made by an announcement
published on the Stock Exchange website. On the other hand,
in order to enhance the communication with the market, the
Company will publish voluntary announcements to update
the public on the latest development of the Group’s business
to enhance the transparency of the Company, whenever
practicable.

The Board reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control system at its Board meeting
on 23 June 2020, including its financial, operational and
compliance controls, and its risk management functions.
The Board’s review included a consideration of the internal
control evaluations conducted by the executive management,
the findings of the external auditors during the annual audit
and the internal control review reported by an internal control
adviser engaged by the Company. There was no material
fraud or errors came to the attention of the Board from all
these sources. Therefore, the Board was satisfied that the
risk management and internal control systems were in place
and implemented effectively during the year without significant
weakness identified.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Total auditors’ remuneration for year ended 31 March 2020
in relation to statutory audit work of the Group amounted
to HK$1.7 million (2019: HK$1.5 million), of which a sum
of HK$1.4 milion (2019: HK$1.2 million) is paid or payable
to PricewaterhouseCoopers, independent auditor of the
Company, in respect of the audit services related to the audit
for the year ended 31 March 2020.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of financial statements which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. In preparing
the financial statements which give a true and fair view, it is
fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are selected
and applied consistently. The reporting responsibilities of
the Company’s external auditor on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group are set out in the independent
auditor’s report on pages 79 to 89 of this annual report. The
directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company’s company secretary Mr. Chan Sun Kwong
coordinates the supply of information to the directors and is
the primary contact person within the Company for all matters
relating to the duties and responsibilities of the company
secretary. All directors have access to the company secretary
to ensure that board procedures and all applicable laws, rules
and regulations are followed. During the year, he had taken no
less than 15 hours relevant professional training as required
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. Please refer to his
biographical details which are set out on page 66 of this annual
report.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

We endeavour to ensure that shareholders are treated fairly
and are able to exercise their shareholders’ rights effectively.
Shareholders are entitled by the articles of association of
the Company and are also encouraged to participate in the
Company’s general meetings or appoint proxies to attend
and vote. Shareholder(s) holding not less than 10% of the
Company’s paid-up capital may request the Board to convene
an extraordinary general meeting and put forward proposals.
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
company secretary for the such purpose and specify the
transaction of any business to propose in such meeting.
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If a shareholder wishes to nominate a person for election as
director in a general meeting, the particulars of the candidate
must be stated in a nomination notice signed and deposited
together with a notice of willingness signed by the candidate to
the company secretary at the Company’s headquarters or at
the Registration Office (Tricor Investor Services Ltd., Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong) of the
Company. The notice should be given at least seven days prior
to the date of such general meeting.

There was no amendment made to the constitutional
documents of the Company during the year ended 31 March
2020.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

We are committed to maintaining effective and timely
dissemination of the Group’s information to its shareholders
and the market. We have established a shareholders’
communication policy which emphasises the importance of
regular communication to the shareholders and the market to
ensure they have the available information reasonably required
to make informed assessments of the Group’s strategy,
operations and financial performance. The annual shareholders’
meetings and other shareholders’ meetings of the Company
are the primary forum for communication by the Company with
its shareholders and for shareholder participation. In addition,
the Company’s website (www.samwoo-group.com) contains
extensive company information which is easily accessible.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
payout ratio. The Board considers a number of factors in
declaration and payment of dividends, including the financial
condition, results of operation and level of cash; statutory
and regulatory restrictions; future prospects and any other
factors that the Board may consider relevant. The Board
has the discretion to declare and distribute dividends to the
shareholders of the Company to the extent that the Company
shall maintain adequate cash reserve for meeting its working
capital requirements and future growth.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lau Chun Ming, aged 77, is an executive director, the
Chairman and founder of the Group. He is also a director of
various subsidiaries within the Group. Mr. Lau is responsible
for the overall strategic planning and business development
of the Group, overseeing the tendering and quotation
process, research and development and formulation of overall
corporate policies of the Group. Mr. Lau has been involved
in the foundation works business since 1990. He is a brother
of Mr. Lau Chun Kwok and Mr. Lau Chun Ka, the spouse of
Ms. Leung Lai So and the father of Ms. Lau Pui Shan.

Mr. Lau Chun Kwok, aged 68, is the chief executive officer
and an executive director. He is also a director of various
subsidiaries within the Group. He joined the Group in the
1970s. He is responsible for the overall management of
foundation works and ancillary services projects of the Group.
He has been involved in the foundation works business since
1990. He is the brother of Mr. Lau Chun Ming and Mr. Lau
Chun Ka, brother-in-law of Ms. Leung Lai So and uncle of
Ms. Lau Pui Shan.

Mr. Lau Chun Ka, aged 66, is an executive director. He
is also a director of various subsidiaries within the Group.
He joined the Group in the 1970s. He is responsible for the
overall management of maintenance and repair of machinery
and equipment of the Group. He has been involved in the
foundation works business since 1990. He is the brother of
Mr. Lau Chun Ming and Mr. Lau Chun Kwok, brother-in-law of
Ms. Leung Lai So and uncle of Ms. Lau Pui Shan.

Ms. Leung Lai So, aged 73, is an executive director. She
is also a director of various subsidiaries within the Group.
She joined the Group in the 1970s. She is responsible for
the administrative and human resources management of
the Group. She obtained a diploma in smaller company
management from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in
July 1997. She is the spouse of Mr. Lau Chun Ming, mother of
Ms. Lau Pui Shan and sister-in-law of Mr. Lau Chun Kwok and
Mr. Lau Chun Ka.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick, aged 75, was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company in September 2014. Professor Wong holds a
bachelor’'s degree of arts from San Diego State College in
the United States of America, and a doctoral’s degree in
mathematics from the University of Alberta in Canada. He is
a Fellow of the Royal Society of Canada, and Chevalier dans
I’Ordre National de la Légion d’Honneur of France, and elected
as a member of the European Academy of Sciences. Professor
Wong is currently an independent non-executive director of
BExcellent Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1775) and
G&M Holdings Limited (stock code: 6038), which shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chu Tak Sum, aged 72, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
September 2014. Mr. Chu is a registered architect in Hong
Kong under the provisions of the Architects Registration
Ordinance (Cap. 408 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and has been
engaged as an architect for about 44 years. Mr. Chu obtained
a bachelor’s degree of arts in architecture studies from The
University of Hong Kong in 1971. He is also a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Architects and holds Class
1 Registered Architect qualification of the PRC. Mr. Chu is
currently the managing director of T.S. Chu Architects Limited.
He had been an independent non-executive director of Henry
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 859) until February 2018.

Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold, aged 57, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
September 2014. Mr. Ip obtained a Master of Arts degree
from Trinity College, Cambridge University. Mr. Ip is chairman
of Altus Holdings Limited (stock code: 8149), which group
companies focus on providing corporate finance services
to listed and unlisted companies in Hong Kong, as well as
property investments.
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Mr. lp is an independent non-executive director of Pioneer
Global Group Limited (stock code: 224), Pak Fah Yeow
International Limited (stock code: 239), and Icicle Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8429), each of which is a
company listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ip worked for
Standard Chartered Asia Limited and was a director of Yuanta
Securities (Hong Kong) Limited thereafter until January 2001,
specializing in a range of corporate finance and advisory
activities for companies based in Hong Kong and China. From
1984 to 1988, he worked at Arthur Andersen & Co in London
specializing in taxation and qualified as a Chartered Accountant
in 1988.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wu Kwai Keung, Peter, aged 65, is the Deputy General
Manager of the foundation division. He is responsible for the
business development, tendering and overall management
of the foundation works and ancillary services projects of the
Group. He obtained a master degree in arbitration & dispute
resolution from City University of Hong Kong in 2003. He has
more than 35 years of experience in the construction industry
both locally and abroad. He is a member of the Institution of
Civil Engineers and Hong Kong Institution of Engineers.

Mr. Ho Ting Leung, Robin, aged 64, is the Deputy General
Manager of the foundation division. He is responsible for the
managing, supervising and actuating the current projects of
the Group. He has over 35 years of experience, working in
the construction industry, since graduated in 1981 from Civil
Engineering Department of Hong Kong Polytechnic.
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Mr. Kwok Kan Kuen, Lawrence, aged 56, is a project
manager of the foundation division. He is responsible for the
supervision of the related foundation projects of the Group.
Prior to joining the Group in July 2012, he has over 20 years of
experience in the engineering field. He obtained a bachelor’s
degree in civil engineering from the Chu Hai College in 1987
and a master’s degree of science in international construction
management and engineering from the University of Leeds
in the United Kingdom in 1994. He is currently a registered
professional engineer under the Engineer Registration
Ordinance (Cap. 409 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and a
member of each of the Institution of Civil Engineers of the
United Kingdom and the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers,
respectively.

Ms. Lau Pui Shan, aged 46, is the chief financial officer of the
Group and a director of certain subsidiaries within the Group.
She joined the Group in September 1999. She is responsible
for financial accounting, treasury and banking matters,
investors relation and information technology system of the
Group. She obtained a bachelor’'s degree of commerce in
accounting and finance and a master’s degree of commerce in
international business from the University of New South Wales
in Australia. She is a fellow certified practicing accountant of
CPA Australia and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. She is the daughter of Mr. Lau
Chun Ming and Ms. Leung Lai So.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Sun Kwong, aged 53, is the company secretary
of the Company. He obtained a diploma of business
administration from the Hong Kong Shue Yan College (now
known as Hong Kong Shue Yan University) in 1990. He is
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries, the Chartered Governance Institute in the United
Kingdom, the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
in the United Kingdom and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He is an accredited mediator of The
Hong Kong Mediation Centre. He has over 25 years company
secretarial experience.
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The directors of the Company submit their report together
with the audited financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Group is principally engaged in the provision of foundation
works and ancillary services. The principal activities of the
subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements. The segment information of
the operations of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020
is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review and principal risks of the Group for
the year are included in the Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis in this annual report.

The environmental policies and relationships with key
stakeholders are included in the Management Discussion and
Analysis in this annual report. Further details of the above are
included in the Corporate Social Responsibility Report in this
annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
on page 90 of this annual report.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK2.0 cents per share, amounting to HK$33.6 million,
representing approximately 46% dividend ratio on an annual
basis. Such payment of dividends will be subject to the
approval of shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on 7 September 2020
and are payable to shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company at the close of business
on 14 September 2020. It is expected that the proposed final
dividend will be paid on or about 29 September 2020.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the published results and of the assets and

liabilities of the Group for the last five years is set out on page
204 of this annual report.
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DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the
year amounted to about HK$10,000.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 March 2020,
calculated under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised), of the Cayman Islands, amounted
to HK$201 million (2019: HK$201 million).

SHARES ISSUED IN THE YEAR

No shares were issued in the years ended 31 March 2020
and 2019. Details of share capital are set out in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association and there was no restriction
against such rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro
rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended 31 March 2020.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted pursuant
to a shareholders’ written resolution of the Company passed
on 15 September 2014. No options have been granted,
exercised or cancelled under the Scheme since its adoption up
to the date of this annual report.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED »

AEBRFAFELES REMES
10,000/ 7T, ©

s
>
\]|
/|

A] 7 Ik 1

R2020F3H31H - ARAIREBERESHS
AR E22E (R ENEY (19616 /A0l = -
KA RIBFIAR) FTEN AR IREER
201,000,000/% 7t (20194 : 201,000,000
BIT) °

FAEBRITRG

RELZE20204F K2019F3A31HILFEET
E|EITIRD - BRAFBEHNGETEHRE
FiEE19 ©

BrRBER

ARBMAMERAUL EEHELEE
B MASESAMTESZSE
MR F - REARBBRLHIRIRE
BERIRZ D ©

BE HEFWMEEXQARA LHES

AR B s E AT A Y /B A B A B 2202043
ASTHILFEMERE  HEKELAR
AR ETHES -

fBRE

RAFRER2014F9 150 BB IR E
EEAZRER - R —IEERER S ([%E
2 BERMZTEBREAFTFRABA
IF - WERRZETEIRY  ITHESGEHEE
AT R AR 4 o

ANNUAL REPORT 2020



The purpose of the Scheme is to attract and retain personnels
to remain with the Group and to motivate them to optimise
their performance and efficiency for the benefit of the Group by
providing them with the opportunity to acquire equity interests
in the Company. The Board may, at its discretion, grant
options pursuant to the Scheme to the directors (including
executive directors, non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors), the directors of the Company’s
subsidiaries and employees of the Group and any other
persons (including consultants or advisers) whom the Board
considers, in its absolute discretion, have contributed or will
contribute to the Group.

Total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to the Scheme and any other share options schemes
of the Company shall not exceed 10% of the shares in issue
on the Company’s listing date, i.e. 16 October 2014, being
40,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each on the listing date
(or equivalent to 160,000,000 shares of HK$0.0025 each
subsequent to share subdivision effective on 23 December
2015) (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”). The Company may
renew the Scheme Mandate Limit with shareholders’ approval
provided that each such renewal must not exceed 10% of
the shares in the Company in issue as at the date of the
shareholders’ approval.

The maximum number of shares underlying all outstanding
options which have been granted and have yet to be exercised
pursuant to the Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in the
manner as set out in the Scheme, the maximum number
of shares underlying the options granted to each eligible
participant (including both exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1.0% of the shares in issue for the time being.

The period during which an option may be exercised by
a grantee (the “Option Period”) shall be the period to be
determined and notified by the Board to the grantee at the time
of making an offer, which shall not expire later than 10 years
from the offer date.
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Subject to any restrictions applicable under the Listing Rules, an
option may be exercised in whole or in part by the grantee at any
time during the Option Period in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme and the terms on which the option was granted.

The grantee shall pay HK$1.00 upon acceptance of an offer of
an option.

The exercise price shall be determined by the Board but in any
event shall not be less than the highest of: (a) the closing price of
the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange on the offer date, which must be a trading day;
(b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five trading
days immediately preceding the offer date; or (c) the nominal value
of the shares on the offer date of the relevant option.

The Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years after
the date of adoption.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Lau Chun Ming (Chairman)

Mr. Lau Chun Kwok (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lau Chun Ka

Ms. Leung Lai So

Independent non-executive directors

Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick
Mr. Chu Tak Sum
Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold

In accordance with article 84 of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Lau Chun Ming, Mr. Lau Chun Ka and Mr. Chu
Tak Sum will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considered all of the independent non-executive
directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
any member of the Group which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’/CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS THAT ARE
SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE GROUP’S
BUSINESS

Save for disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, no
transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company’s
subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its parent companies was a
party and in which a director or controlling shareholders of the
Company and the directors’ connected party had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of directors and senior management
are set out on pages 63 to 66.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2020, the interests and short positions of
directors in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO, or as notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, are as follows:

(@) Directors’ interest in the Company:

Number of ordinary shares

Name of director of HK$0.0025 each held (long position)

EsnA

Mr. Lau Chun Ming 1,200,000,000

BlRm L
Ms. Leung Lai So 1,200,000,000
REHRLT

(o) Directors’ interest in associated corporations of the
Company:

Name of associated

Name of director  corporation Number of shares
Esps HEEEERE ROHE

Mr. Lau Chun Ming  Actiease Assets Limited 61 shares
IRALE 61

Mr. Lau Chun Ming  Silver Bright Holdings Limited 10,000 shares
BIRALE 10,0008

Ms. Leung Lai So Actiease Assets Limited 61 shares
REEHIT 618

Ms. Leung Lai So Silver Bright Holdings Limited 10,000 shares
ZEEHIL 10,000%
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Percentage of

shareholding Capacity

ERESH 5

71.43% Founder of a discretionary trust
PREANEBA

71.43% Beneficiary of a

discretionary trust
PREANZHEA

b) EBEERARRBEOEZENERS

Percentage of

shareholding Capacity

FRESL 54

100% Founder of a discretionary trust

SREFNAITA

100% Founder of a discretionary trust

RREFNERA

100% Beneficiary of a
discretionary trust

PREFHZHEA

100% Beneficiary of a discretionary
trust

PREFRNREA
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So far as the directors are aware, as at 31 March 2020 the
interest and short positions of the persons, other than a director
or chief executive of the Company, in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 336 of the SFO are as follows:

Directors' Report
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TEFFTA - R2020F3A31H * M T A
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ARG ARG EER B ISR
1 (5 ) 530616 B T 7 B M B R M AT
BB AR

(c) Substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions in

the Company:

Name of shareholder

EE4E

Actiease Assets Limited

Silver Bright Holdings Limited

Managecorp Limited
as trustee of a unit trust
({EBEMEFEHTAN)

IQ EQ (NTC) Trustees Asia
(Jersey) Limited (formerly

Number of ordinary shares of
HK$0.0025 each held

P58 IR E{E0.00257% T Y
EBER#EA

Long position 1,200,000,000
%&£ 1,200,000,0000%

Long position 1,200,000,000

#F£1,200,000,0008%

Long position 1,200,000,000
#¥%£1,200,000,000/

Long position 1,200,000,000
#7#&1,200,000,0000%

) FEBRRRARBNERIKE

Percentage of

known as First Names
(NTC) Trustees Asia Limited)
(R 78First Names (NTC)
Trustees Asia Limited)

Notes:

1. 1,200,000,000 shares were held by Actiease Assets
Limited, a company wholly owned by Silver Bright Holdings
Limited which is indirectly owned by a discretionary trust of
which Ms. Leung Lai So is the beneficiary.

2. Silver Bright Holdings Limited is 100% held by
Managecorp Limited as trustee of a unit trust, of which
issued units are 100% held by IQ EQ (NTC) Trustees Asia
(Jersey) Limited (formerly known as First Names (NTC)
Trustees Asia Limited) as trustee of a discretionary trust
set up by Mr. Lau Chun Ming.

CEIEEFR o ZHNEEEEFIRDA

shareholding Capacity
ERBESL 5%
71.43% Beneficial owner
ERHEBA
71.43% Interest of a controlled
corporation
XESEERNER
71.43% Trustee
XA
71.43% Trustee
XA

1,200,000,0000% f% 13 4 Silver
Bright Holdings Limited® &
# A ®) A A]Actiease Assets
LimitedPT 5 & -+ MSilver Bright
Holdings Limited (3 & 5%z A A3
BRI REEMEEES -

Silver Bright Holdings Limitedf
B i 1= 5T 19 & 5L AManagecorp
Limited 100%# A& © m
Managecorp Limitedf) B 77
BAIEIAEIQ EQ (NTC) Trustees
Asia (Jersey) Limited (i f8First
Names (NTC) Trustees Asia
Limited) £ & 21k 83 5 A 58 3L /Y
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The controlling shareholders have confirmed to the Company
of their compliance with the non-competition undertakings
provided to the Company under a deed of non-competition
dated 15 September 2014.

In addition, the Company requested and obtained the
information of the companies owned by the controlling
shareholders of the Company. The independent non-executive
directors, based on their review of the confirmation, noted that
no engagement in competing business had been reported by
the controlling shareholder of the Company during the year
ended 31 March 2020; and there was no particular situation
rendering the full compliance of the undertakings being
questionable.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s five largest customers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 98% (2019: 100%) of
the Group’s total turnover. The largest customer accounted for
approximately 51% (2019: 72%) of the Group’s total turnover.

During the year, the Group’s five largest suppliers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 52% (2019: 95%) of
the Group’s total purchases. The largest supplier accounted
for approximately 44% (2019: 86%) of the Group’s total
purchases.

To the best of the knowledge of the directors, none of the
directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in these major
suppliers or customers.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions entered into by
the Group during the year set out in note 27 to the financial
statements included transactions that constitute connected/
continuing connected transactions for which the disclosure
requirements under the Listing Rules have been complied with.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group had the
following continuing connected transactions:

Tenancy Agreements

Name of landlords Term of lease agreements

REEW o Y

Directors' Report
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BBALRS
AEBRAFEIINBEARBIZER
B MARI 27 - RIEBKEEFER
BRXHNR G MAKBERZER5E
ST EMAR RV FEARTE

RE Z2020F3A31HIEFE » REEH
SERIER ST ¢

HE &

Monthly rent Annual rent
BRHEE EFHES
(HK$) (HK$)

(B7T) (B 7T)

Leasing of storage property for use as open storage and service depot for the Group

HEFEYENRERAEENEREEREELS
Cheer Crown Limited 1/8/2017 ~ 31/7/2020

EEBERAIQA

180,000 2,160,000

Leasing of residential properties and car parking spaces for use as quarter for the directors

HEXTEYERFEVUAEESHNEARN

Cheer Wealth International 1/8/2017 ~ 31/7/2020
Development Limited

ERERERAR AR

East Ascent Enterprises Limited 1/8/2017 ~ 31/7/2020
RACEARAA

Cheer Profit International 1/8/2017 ~ 31/7/2020
Enterprise Limited

ENBEREEARAR

Long Ascent Development Limited 1/8/2017 ~ 31/7/2020
RAZRARAA

Healthy World Investment Limited ~ 1/8/2017 ~ 31/7/2020
fEEREBR DA

Total transaction amounts for the year ended 31 March 2020
BZE202053A31ALFENRZHAE

Annual cap EELR
For the year ended 31 March 2020 & ZE2020%E3A31 A LEE

CEIEEFR o ZHNEESEEFR

73,000 876,000
3,800 45,600
3,800 45,600

50,000 600,000

50,000 600,000

4,327,200
4,327,200

nFE
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The rents paid by the Group to the above landlords were
determined on an arm’s length basis and reflected the
prevailing market rents at the time. The relevant tenancy
agreements were also entered into by the parties on normal
commercial terms.

Relationships with Connected Persons

As Mr. Lau Chun Ming, Mr. Lau Chun Kwok, Mr. Lau Chun
Ka and Ms. Leung Lai So, each a director, and Ms. Lau Pui
Shan, a daughter of Mr. Lau Chun Ming and Ms. Leung Lai So,
owned the beneficial interests in the above landlords, each of
the landlords above was therefore considered as a connected
person of the Company and hence the transactions referred
above constituted continuing connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Review of Continuing Connected Transactions

The continuing connected transactions mentioned above have
been reviewed by the independent non-executive directors
of the Company who have confirmed that the transactions
have been entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Company; (b) on normal commercial terms or
better; and (c) according to the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the Company’s shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group on
pages 69 to 70 in this annual report in accordance with rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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Save as disclosed above, a summary of significant related party
transactions that did not constitute connected transactions
made during the year is disclosed in note 27 to the financial
statements.

MARKET CAPITALISATION

As at 31 March 2020, the market capitalisation of the listed
securities of the Company was approximately HK$168 million
based on the total number of 1,680,000,000 issued shares of
the Company and the closing price of HK$0.10 per share.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules
during the year ended 31 March 2020 and as at the date of
this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year and up to the date of this report, the Group
had complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in the
places where we operate in all material respects.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company’s Articles provides that every director is entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against
all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of duties of his/her office or otherwise in
relation thereto provided that such indemnity shall not extend
to any matter in respect of fraud or dishonesty which may
attach to the director.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ liability
insurance throughout the year, which provides appropriate
cover for the directors.

Directors' Report
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ESgHRE

EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

After the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19
outbreak”) in early 2020, a series of precautionary and control
measures have been and continued to be implemented across
Hong Kong.

The Group has paid close attention to the development of
COVID-19 outbreak and kept evaluating the impact on the
financial position, cash flows and operating results of the
Group to prevent the outbreak from having material adverse
effects on the businesses. However, if the COVID-19 outbreak
continues for a longer period of time, the financial performance
of the Group for the year ending 31 March 2021 might
be affected but the financial impact cannot be reasonably
estimated at this stage.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2020 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers,
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Lau Chun Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 June 2020
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION
GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Sam Woo
Construction Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 90 to 203, which
comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2020;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2020, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION "4

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED »
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) RS =E(2)

Key audit matters identified in our audit are FH{IEFTR AN BEREFTSERAMLOT :
summarised as follows:

o Accounting for construction contracts o BEREAN SRR

. Estimated useful lives and residual values of o  #éHREREN G EAEHERFBEE

plant and equipment

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
AEENSEE BN EFOAEERRETSE
Accounting for construction contracts EEEANGTERE

Refer to note 2.18 in the summary of significant Our procedures in relation to management’s
accounting policies, note 4(a) in the critical accounting for measuring the progress towards
accounting estimates and judgements and note 5  satisfaction of the performance obligation, revenue,

to the consolidated financial statements. cost and profit recognition of construction contracts

F2HEANSTRERBENE2.18 » 4R A M EHHAKX  included:

Bistd(a) B E & 5Tt K HI T LA R M55 © ?f%ﬁ%ﬁr%%"%i’?%%mﬁr BES B
A ARG BERNSETRE - BMEERRONEFS
13

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group

recognised revenue amounted to HK$916,831,000 - We assessed and tested the key controls over

from construction works, with the related the project costs budgetary process.

construction contracts costs amounted to - RPE: G AR EEKNATEE BETNFTEE

HK$756,249,000. £ o

B Z202063A31HILFE - BEEEER

916,831,000/ TR AT R B 2L T2 - BMEBEE - We selected, on a sample basis, contracts

S8 XA B756,249,0005 7T © to examine management’s budget of the

cost component, such as costs of materials,

Revenue on construction contracts is recognised subcontracting fees and labour costs, etc. We

over the period of individual contract by measuring compared the budgeted cost components to

the progress towards complete satisfaction of supporting documents including but not limited

individual performance obligation. The Group to price quotation and rate of labour costs.

recognises revenue using either input method - M ELESNUEREEEEM KA

or output method, with the selection of method BBERANAEKANSERANERILEDHTEE - 1

dependent upon which method best depicts the BB AR I D BB TS -

way the Group satisfies its performance obligation FEREEIRRRESEREBEHNAELE -

over time. The decision as to which method to

use is made for each contract, after considering - We inspected material construction contracts

the nature of the goods or services that the Group of the Group and agreed contract sum and

promised to transfer to the customer. variations, if any, to management’s records.

BESHNNBABRAEERT2RBITENBAZE - BMERR BEEENERBESAWIKRERRE

BHEEEEMNSOBATUER - EEEHAR EHRHERHNSERERE (WEF) -

NES B HERR WA - TEREERURNRWE TS
AR HL SEBEERRBETENERNT
X -HEESNTHRAFNETNEZLEE BEEEA
RHEBREPNERAMBOEERIRE -

CECEEFR o ZHEESEEFIRAA
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B ABERE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRETSE

Under input method, revenue on construction
contracts is recognised with reference to actual
costs incurred by the Group up to the end of the
reporting period as a percentage of total estimated
costs for each contract. Under output method,
revenue recognition is based on the stage of
completion of contract activity by reference to work
performed at balance sheet date as a percentage
of the total contract value.

BERANE BERAONNKARLZEEEZHREH
R BEEEEREENKNERSHNMEETHEIERE
BBEDLLMER - RIFH L)L BABRSERE
2EXEAMETIREASNEBEERI L BRES
HEEE T TREER o

Recognition of revenue, cost and profit on
contracts require significant judgement and
estimates in (a) measuring the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation; (b) estimating total budgeted costs
and profit margin for each projects; and (c)
estimating the expected recovery of costs arising
from variation of work scope during the contracts
periods. We focused on this area as a key audit
matter due to the significance of the revenue and
the related costs to the Group’s consolidated
financial statements and the significance of the
judgement and estimates involved.

BHEWA -~ A Fa MERT ZH (@ 2ER T
ERTENEBNEE  OEFFEEONTEERK
BERAMEE  RofhsaOPRRETEHREE
ﬁﬁimﬁﬁﬁzﬁw HRRAREBERAY &
SEFEMBHRRNEEZ WA RE P R H E &
MErEEN AR SEREFTFEMZ IR
Itk S0 o

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

RAREESER(E)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMWESNTEEBRENSE

We tested, on sample basis, actual costs
incurred to supporting documents including, but
no limited to, suppliers’ invoices and labour cost
allocation schedules.
ﬁﬁem#&fxﬁ(a%ﬁTﬁﬁfﬁﬁm%
FEMETHRADER) HESRSHBERKAE
AR -

We assessed the competence and
independence of external quantity surveyors
involve in selected contracts.

BAFEL2EMEL ZEOMINETRAEM 2
EERADSE VA E

For projects where revenue was recognised using input
method:
HRARNEBRWAWNIEE M E :

We compared the actual costs incurred against
the budgeted costs to understand the status
of the project completion, identified whether
there are any cost overruns or variation of
work scope. Where applicable, we checked
these changes from the original work scope to
supporting documents.

BB EHRENBEREN RN ERE R AETHR
NTBIEE TR  BEREFEERKAR
R TFHIRNEE - EEANBR  HfIgR
BERBTIEHB 2 BB OEZ XM -

We compared the project’s stage of completion
under input method with quantity surveyors’
certificates at period end, where available. We
inquired management in respect of significant
differences noted and checked such differences
to supporting documents.

WMIEE BEIRA IR SR ERSE - KMIEHEIE
BERAETH T IREERETLR - HMEMR
BEMNBEAZEMEEERHEEH  WIREBES
NHREERER -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BERETSE

—EoBEEH
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MEETSEA(E)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMHWESNTEEBRENEE

Furthermore, for projects where revenue was
recognised using output method:

BESN - MR A G AR ANEEM S ¢

- We checked the completion status specified in
quantity surveyors’ certificates and compared
the status/amount with revenue recognised.

= BAERETHASMEBERERTAN T IR
WisE BARR S REEE BRBAMELE -

- We discussed with the project managers
about the status of the projects, to identify any
variations of contracts and claims, and to obtain
explanations from management for fluctuations
in margins and changes in budget as well as the
expected recovery of variations.

= M HEIE B & BB B AR - LAREA
WEERBR - WA EEEE - ﬁ”m@&ﬁ
MR WEENEETRSEIREATA -

- We inspected the correspondence with
customers and sub-contractors, on a sample
basis, for corroboration of management
explanations.

= BEmERGEEEF Ry BE MR - )
EEEREERGHA -

We found the judgement and estimates adopted
by management in determining the revenue, cost
and profit recognition of construction contracts are
supported by available evidence.
BMRAEEBEETEES AW A « KA KnfliE
REFFTEBEHE RARAB G T EHE BERAEE
T HF e

ZNEEEBARAA
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRETSE

Estimated useful lives and residual values of
plant and equipment

Refer to note 2.6 in the summary of significant
accounting policies, note 4(b) in the critical
accounting estimates and judgements and note 14
to the consolidated financial statements.

F2HERSTBEMENT2.6 - 476 BB« M
EI4( ) Kau+1ﬁu+&%‘Jl%ﬁL/{&MT?14 °

As at 31 March 2020, the carrying value of plant
and equipment amounted to HK$543,67 1,000, with
depreciation charge for the year ended 31 March
2020 amounted to HK$23,896,000.

M202063H31H M ERBEZEEHER
543,671,000/ 7T M & £2020F3 A31 H I F & 27

E ¥ 1 523,896,000/ 7T ©

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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RAREESER(E)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMWESNTEEBRESNSE

BHRBRENETAEAFHRREGRER

Our procedures in relation to management’s estimated
useful lives and residual values of plant and equipment

included:
REBEIEB R ZENG A ERAFEERRFSRERE -
ZMEFDRNEF 2

We discussed with the management on trends
of prevailing market values for equivalent
aged assets for each category of plant and
equipment and the value of scrap metal at year
end. We performed independent research to
corroborate with the management’s assessment.
HAIE B E IR E & o S R N R ) [ AR e
BEMBITMEEZREHRNERNEME - &M
BETEVMENEEEREEMNT MG -

We sample checked market quotations or
recent scrap metal price to assess whether
the residual value of each type of plant and
equipment is within reasonable range.

FAPTE AR T 15 3R 8 SR 88 A0 3 BB (B A5 DA ST
HEBRBRERENRSKEEBSEHE -

We reviewed the sensitivity analysis performed
by management on financial impact of
fluctuation on residual values to depreciation.
B EHEEEURKEERS ETENITE
FEETHRRMESN -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BERETSE

Management estimates useful lives of the plant and
equipment by reference to the industry practice,
expected usage of the assets, expected repair
and maintenance, and if there is any technical or
commercial obsolescence arising from changes
or improvements in the market. Residual values of
the plant and equipment are determined based on
prevailing market values for equivalent aged assets
taking into account the condition of the relevant
assets or the value of scrap metal. Depreciation
expense would be significantly affected by the
useful lives and residual values of the plant and
equipment as estimated by management.
ERENSETXEN  EERPRE RHEE
RRE - UAREEAEEAETSZ AR ZEHD
R E RS EER - At R R &R A R F
H o Bk REONBKEENREARNSERKEE
MRITHEETE @ Yt REHEEENRTREED
BE - EIPERTIAFT MR S 2% 5 10 mT 2 A 5 5 2 )
HREEKENTEERAFEATE -

We focused on this area as a key audit matter
due to the fact that the carrying value of plant
and equipment represented 93% of non-current
assets and 52% of total assets of the Group, and
significant judgement is involved in determining
the useful lives and residual values of plant and
equipment.

MR AR RENREES ESEERDEEN
93% I #8 & EE H52% » LA K AE 78 TE Mk K sk f Y AT
ERFHRRREERR S REEZHE - RPARLS
BT FIAM N LS -
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RAREETER(F)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNWESNTEEBRENEE

We assessed useful lives by benchmarking to
other industry players and performing research
to consider whether there are changes or
improvements in the market which could
potentially result in technical or commercial
obsolescence. Furthermore, we tested, on
a sample basis, usage of the assets among
different construction projects and expenditure
of repair and maintenance.

FAPT DA HL fth 36 SR ) B E ST ik A {58 PR F B RGE AT A
RUERES M5 E (R E M Al e B Bl
HEFRTEBE - B HAIE MR AR

LERNEEREURBERRENRAX -

We tested, on a sample basis, whether
additions to plant and equipment have been
recorded in proper categories with relevant
useful lives and residual values, for the
calculation of depreciation.

AT RRITE - RAIS MO ARMEREBEOARE
EBENEEN AR ERFHRRGRERR
Bl o

We found the judgement and estimates in determining
the useful lives and residual values of plant and
equipment are supported by available evidence.

BARS  REERWR LR ENAERFHERGRER
FERM G RMATRERHBEIFM
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED »
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED »
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chan Hin Gay Gabriel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 June 2020
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 Eﬁ;‘%ZO‘é‘O@-@EgjﬂiiJﬁ“ % -
: e .

e
s

Revenue from contracts with customers BEAAWA

Cost of sales SHE KA

Gross profit E7

Other loss, net HibEia— 558
Other income H A g A
Administrative expenses THAX

Impairment losses on retention receivables [E U R ¥ & 2 (B E B

Operating profit/(loss) A, (1)

Finance income ﬁﬁ”ﬁl]\

Finance costs BEER

Finance (costs)/income, net B (BA) WA —
FEE

Profit/(loss) before income tax BR FT 15 Bt Al 7,
(E’ 8)

Income tax (expense)/credit BfH(FEX) e

FREM,(EBR)

Profit/(loss) for the year

ENNETE: S-SR
AR, (B 18)

Profit/(loss) attributable to equity
holders of the Company
Profit/(loss) for the year FE=HM/(EE)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Hipzm (BE) WA
Items that may be subsequently ARERABEF 72
reclassified to profit or loss B HE

Fair value (losses)/gains on financial assets BAFESAEMRE
at fair value through other comprehensive WA @REEZ A

income FIE (B518) s
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FEEBRA S (BE)
for the year B
Total comprehensive income/(loss) KRAE=FEA 45
attributable to equity holders of the ZEBA S (EBE
Company k]

Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share S RREAR R#ERF
(&518)

The notes on pages 95 to 203 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

MW'

Sta g ﬁmmheﬁswe Income
e é@ﬂ&”% e “’“""’“ —

‘P

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED e« ANNUAL REPORT 2020

2020 2019
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B = FHET TAT
5 916,831 452,268
7 (790,165) (447,886)
126,666 4,382

6 (535) (1,000)
6 832 484
7 (43,147) (37,503)
- (25,009)

83,816 (58,646)
8 2,287 3,481
8 (2,424) (2,332)
8 (137) 1,149
83,679 (67,497)
9 (10,661) 7,127
73,018 (560,370)

73,018 (50,370)

73,018 (50,370)
(800) 400

72,218 (49,970)

72,218 (49,970)
2020 2019
HK cents HK cents
AL B

11 4.35 (8.00)

F95E2038 M AL E4RE M B &

ZHRE D o



Assets

Non-current assets

Right-of-use assets

Plant and equipment

Deferred income tax assets

Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Deposits and prepayments

Current assets

Trade and retention receivables

Deposits, prepayments and other
receivables

Contract assets

Income tax recoverable

Restricted bank balances

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

Balance

?éheet:

2019
HK$'000
FAEIT

563,615
8,547

20,920
2,098

595,180

45,858

5,852
8,616
2,389
3,075
196,964

857,934

4,200
621,716

625,916

— il NG
= e R, W I:l‘ﬁE
;:H_"““'«-::“? As at 31 Mareh 2020 52020434318
7 | |
- 2020
Note HK$’000
Bt THET
BE
FERBEE
FREEE 13 19,284
Ak K2 5% A 14 543,671
EIEFTIS A E 20 2,877
BAFEFAEMEE
WAZEBEE 15 20,120
e RIBFRIE 16 836
586,788
REBEE
[EWESZEBERREE 16 236,663
B FBAZEEEM
& U SR IE 16 6,984
AHNEE 17 379
Al Y B AT 1S AR 2,090
PR HIER 1T 45 54 18 3,145
HeRIBEEEY 18 207,321
456,582
EEHE 1,043,370
e
f& 7 19(a) 4,200
15 19(b) 693,727
B 697,927
SECEESH o —NERSEEERAT
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As at 31 March 2020 122020434316

Consolldated-BgLanzé»-Sh

Mw" ik =

2020 2019
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B = FET TFAIT
Liabilities a&
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Borrowings — non-current portion B3 —IEREN 2B 1D 23 10,045 3,400
Deferred income tax liabilities EEMESHREE 20 56,423 53,062
Amount due to a director EfN—REEHIE 22, 27(d) 3,145 3,075
69,613 59,537
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and retention payables ENESHBERREE 21 124,299 34,833
Accruals and other payables & &t R I8 N E At FE {5
E/ QI 21 24,655 9,921
Contract liabilities SREE 17 11,366 34,311
Borrowings — current portion B —mE B 23 109,437 92,498
Lease liabilities HEAE 13 4,364 -
Income tax payable FET TS HR 1,709 918
275,830 172,481
Total liabilities aEeE 345,443 232,018
Total equity and liabilities xR aE8E 1,043,370 857,934
The consolidated financial statements on pages 90 to 203 FI0E2038 ZirE Mk B 1R 20204F
were approved by the Board of Directors on 23 June 2020 and 6H23HREEESHE  WAH T ALR
were signed on its behalf. REE
Lau Chun Ming Leung Lai So
2| 4 53 RE &
Director Director
EZE EZE
The notes on pages 95 to 203 are an integral part of these FO5E203B 2 Mt At E 54 B s Rk
consolidated financial statements. ZHRER D o
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Balance at 31 March 2018
as originally stated

Changes in accounting
policies (note 2.2)

Balance at 1 April 2018
as restated

Comprehensive income
Loss for the year
Fair value gains on financial

assets at fair value through

Total comprehensive loss
for the year

Balance at 31 March 2019

Balance at 31 March 2019
as originally stated

Changes in accounting
policies (note 2.2)

Balance at 1 April 2019
as restated

Comprehensive income
Profit for the year
Fair value losses on financial

assets at far value through
other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive
Profit for the year

Balance at 31 March 2020

consolidated financial statements.

~ Financial
assets
Available- at fair value
for-sale through other
financial ~ comprehensive
Share Share assets income fair Other Retained
capital premium reserve value reserve reserves earnings Total
BATEHALL
UfEE 2EMACHEE
kA& RARE SHEERE ZAVERE bRt REET &3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn Thn Tin Thn Tin Tin Tin
R2018F3A31A 245
(WREZ5) 4,200 104,087 770 - 10,500 476,163 685,720
S HRED (H.2)
- - (770) 770 - (9,834) (9,834)
R018F4A1R 2 5
(=5 4,200 194,087 - 770 10,500 466,329 675,886
2EHA
EEER = = = = = (60,370) (50,370)
BATEFALBZERA
LEREEIATR
other comprehensive income Wiz - - - 400 - - 400
FE2AFELE
= = = 400 = (50,370) (49,970)
R2019E3A31H  £8 4200 194,087 - 1,170 10,500 415,959 625,916
2019538318 24
(WRE25) 4,200 194,087 - 1,170 10,500 415,959 625,916
Sin%E (Mik2)
- - - - - (207) (207)
R2019F4A18 24
(&E3) 4,200 194,087 - 1,170 10,500 415,752 625,709
2EKA
ERET - - - - - 73,018 73,018
BATEF AL ZERA
LEREEIATERE
- - - (800) - - (800)
EERANAEE
- - - (800) - 73,018 72,218
R2020F3A31H 2 &5 4,200 194,087 - 370 10,500 488,770 697,927
The notes on pages 95 to 203 are an integral part of these HEO5FE203E M A ER A RE
ZHEKE D o
SE-BEER o —NREEMERAT 93
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Consolldated St ﬁﬁt bf' Cash Flows

SESTES S Eon

For the year ended 31 March 2020 @52020@?;5 NBIEFE

_—

Cash flows from operating activities RE KL EZHNRERE

Net cash generated from/(used in)
operations

Interest paid

Interest received

Interest elements of lease payments

Interest elements of finance lease
payments

Restricted bank balances

Hong Kong profits tax paid

Net cash generated from/(used in)
operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of plant and equipment

Proceeds from sales of plant and
equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Capital elements of finance lease payments
Drawdown of long-term bank loans
Repayment of long-term bank loans
Drawdown of short-term bank loans
Repayment of short-term bank loans
Principal elements of lease payments

Net cash generated from financing
activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at
end of the year

2020 2019
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 7E FET FA&T
LIRS, (FTHR)

b b - 26(a) 13,426 (62,552)
B F B (1,847) (1,486)
B U B 2,287 3,481
HENRHFEE D (507) =
B E M E R

MEEH 8 - (791)
PR I SR 1T A4S R 18 (70) (55)
BN EEFEH (540) (1,789)
LESEERE, (FTA)

HEFHE 12,749 (63,192)
REREZHNHRERE
R B R (21,225) (13,562)
S &R ER

Fri8 3/ 38 26(b) 68 -
RAZRBFARSFE (21,157)  (13,562)
REBMEZHNRERE
MERENFNEARIL S - (17,125)
REEHBETER 19,961
EERIEITER (8,219) (18,932)
TREVE AR 1T E X 290,144 193,624
EEEHRITER (268,506) (140,250)
HENZKZAEZBH (14,615) =
METHERESTFE

18,765 17,317
BeRBESEEY

#in, CRd) BHE 10,357 (59,437)
REJHIRE &

HEEEY 196,964 256,401
RELNBEERES

£EY 18 207,321 196,964

FO5FE203B 2 Mk Bt FirE M HRK

The notes on pages 95 to 203 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Sam Woo Construction Group Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
address of the Company’s registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally
engaged in foundation works and ancillary services in
Hong Kong and Macau.

The shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the
Group have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and requirements of Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance Cap.622. The
consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared under the historical cost
convention except for the financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income (note
15) which are stated at fair value.

CECEEFR o ZHEESEEFIRAA

e

Notes to th—e-Co,n_é@fdﬁtéﬁéﬁ@géI‘§f‘atements
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e ARSI

—REHR

=MEEEEFRAR ([ARF])
RIBERESESEFE20E(RRE)
(1961 5£ B3 « & 47 & RIBFTA)
ERSHSTMKIABEREER
NN/ L= 0 P i =Y b e
P Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands °

RRARRREZERAT - MENB
RE (MBI AEE]) TEREE
KB P 55 3 2L T A2 % Bff /B8 AR 75

ARRZBNREERERZ A
[RARER LM ©

SRR BRI - BRA M BERERIAE
(AT 25 -

EXREBREE

REU E R A MIERRARANE

SAFBREN T - R HER
EIN REBRRAEEIFE—
HEREHN -

21 RBEEE

RNEE iR E @R TR
BESSHMAE ([HEE
TR A® ) M 2T E &
REBTBHREEL ([
Mg mEER]) REBED
FO22E BB N AUEH 2 38
ERE - NEBZERE M
BERABERAERR - 1
RAFEFAREMBEERA
ZemmEE (Ms15) BT
NTEFNERBRAN o
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2 SUMMAR? OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of the consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements, are
disclosed in note 4.

(a) New and amended standards and
interpretation adopted by the Group

The Group has adopted the following new and
amended standards and interpretation for the
first time for their financial reporting period
commencing 1 April 2019:

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements 2015-2017
Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(FRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

2

‘Statements

BEAETHERE ()
21 HREEE(E)

RIBFBM B RE LR
HAMBHRRAERE TH
BEsHhEt - EEERER
AEB G BRERAEL
HIE - % R % HE R BE
o AABERR R AR
BMBHRREERTZENE
SO MY R4 R -

@  AEEEFRAEFET
RASIERTER R 2 FE

NEEE H2019F481H
77 4 ) B 765 3 25 A P R R
MPATH ] RS ET £ R &
BZE

EANEREEN 20158 E017F B
2B BEUBREEN
FEYE
BREIER BB BRALE
F195 253
BEEHEN  WBELAARAELE
FBHoBT  (RIER
BEUBREE ARAEREZ
EO% 23T ANFERS
BRUBREEN HE
216%
FE(ARUER MEHEEL
LREZEE) TRt
REEDH
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCO-“UN‘T'ING“ o

POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(a) New and amended standards and

interpretation adopted by the Group
(Continued)

The Group had to change its accounting policies
as a result of adopting HKFRS 16. The Group
elected to adopt the new rules retrospectively
but recognised the cumulative effect of initially
applying the new standard on 1 April 2019. This

is disclosed in Note 2.2.

The adoption of the other amended standards,
amendments and interpretation did not have a
significant effect on the financial statements or
result in any significant changes in the Group’s
significant accounting policies, except for certain

changes in presentation and disclosures.

—ECEEFR o =NERELEEERLT

EAEHEEEE (2)

2.1

mBERE(F)

@  AEEERAFET
RAEIETER R iz FE

(4&)
NEBREFEMR T B BHER
SRR M S Bk H

BETER - AEBEEEE W
FNZERA - EERN
201954 A1 8 ¥4 B 4 5
EAMRFTE - FRATE
BERME2.2

R A EIERTER - EFT
RREYEHARENTB
BRERBEATE  IHE
REFBRELEMFNE
- ﬁzﬂ&ﬁ%%%?“
BIBRID
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BERETBEBE(E)
' POLICIES (Continued)
2.1  Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REEE(E)
(b)  New and amended standards, amendment (b) AN E KR

ATRATIEATRE - 15
BT RATISATRER IER

and revised conceptual framework not yet
adopted by the Group

AT RASIERT R - &
FIREEIHSERE SR
B 2019F 4 A1H sk
2 1B FRE B BUEE M AR E
B ARG ARIRTEER :

The following new and amended standards,
amendments and interpretation have been
issued but are not effective for the financial year -
beginning on or after 1 April 2019 and have not
been early adopted:

98

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as BEETENE1 BEBEIBARY
Current or Non-current © KB EESE
Amendments to HKAS 1and ~ Definition of Material 1 EHOEET EAMEEY
HKAS 8 KREEE
ERIESS 2
5|
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of Business ! BAUBREEN EBHTEY
FE35 2 B3]
Amendments to HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (! EBROENE  FIREEKEN
HKFRS7 and HKFRS 9 305 BEE
BREERET
KRERYH
REER HO%
BT
Conceptual Framework for Revised Conceptual Framework for N1BEHBRE EBITHHRE
Financial Reporting 2018 Financial Reporting BaER BafERY
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets BEIHRLED REEEHEENG
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its FI0RREE  HAELENEE
Associate or Joint Venture SiHERE8  HIEHTEY
K2 B3]
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts @ EARBREEN RBRAKPY
175
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19 Related Rent ERUBREEN ARREBHRAEN
Concessions F16k2B  HEERC

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING - .
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards, amendment
and revised conceptual framework not yet
adopted by the Group (Continued)

M Effective for the Group for annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

@ Effective for the Group for annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

@ Effective for the Group for annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

@ Effective date to be determined.

©® Effective for the Group for annual period
beginning on or after 1 June 2020.

None of these HKFRSs is expected to have a
significant effect on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

Changes in accounting policies

This note explains the impact of the adoption
of HKFRS 16 “Leases” on the Group’s financial
statements.

Nature of change

As indicated in Note 2.1 above, the Group has
adopted HKFRS 16 “Leases” retrospectively from
1 April 2019, but has not restated comparatives
for the 2019 reporting period, as permitted under
the specific transition provisions in the standard.
The reclassifications and the adjustments
arising from the new leasing rules are therefore
recognised in the opening balance sheet on 1
April 2019. The new accounting policies are
disclosed in Note 2.22.

it

2

ZNEEEBARAA

EARHBEME (4)

2.1

2.2

BRELE(F)

(b)  AEEEAREREIFT
FTRAEIEETEA - &
FIRAEEET LR HER
(&)

m 202051 A1H 8k 2
E IR FE B
REEBK -

@ R2021F1 1B 5 2
1% R 16 /9 4F [Z B A
REEFK -

® MR2022%F1 A1B 8 2
% BA M B Y
REBEHFK -

@ EREARERFETE -

® HR2020F6 A1H 5 2
% BA M B Y
REBEFK -

Ity 5 F B B S 3R X B 38 51
TeHRNEEHNGAS B ER
REKEATE -

mE>

R
AU BB R BB TR
% 3% B B 16% [ &) # A&
EEHBHREZHE -
BHIE

a0 £ SCKY RE2. A frat o A
£ B B2019F4HA1BHE &

BERABBH GRS LERE
165% [HE] - L ERE

A I RF TE BB AR SCRT R AT
E52019F | E HIM L B &K
T o Hitt %ﬂﬂ%‘f%ﬁﬁuﬁﬁﬁ
ERER D ERFAEER
2019F4H1H E’J,Hﬂ%ﬂ,%:i
= o TRt BERE BN
2.22 0
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

Impact

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised
lease liabilities in relation to leases which had
previously been classified as ‘operating leases’
under the principles of HKAS 17 Leases. These
liabilities were measured at the present value
of the remaining lease payments, discounted
using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as
of 1 April 2019. The weighted average lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease
liabilities on 1 April 2019 was 4%.

For leases previously classified as finance leases
the entity recognised the carrying amount of
the lease asset and lease liability immediately
before transition as the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset and the lease liability at the
date of initial application. The measurement
principles of HKFRS 16 are only applied after that
date. No remeasurement to the lease liabilities
was recognised as adjustments to the related
right-of-use assets immediately after the date of
initial application.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED »

2 EXETHRBE (&)

2.2

SHEERD (£)
e
PR B B E

1655 0F + AL B BT AIRE
ARG ERE17H [ HE ]
ZRAIDEAEEHE | &
HERRHESE - %F

EiRp THEN R RET
= WEAABEAEZE2019
FAR1B 2B ERFIREE
I o fE A R2019%F 4818
ZTHE B B AT A EF
B IEEERFNEH4% o

%%m“ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁmﬁ

s AEBEREEEE
REE A BEEEREANEK
EERERAYIGER A BFE
AEEERAESBENERR
B - AN BRELERE6
SRR 2 R ANE B AR % B
Mk WEABEEENE
Mt ERRAYEEYRIE
RBEH%ZBAERAEEE
B FHEE o
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING - _ 2 EASHBEBE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.2  Changes in accounting policies (Continued) 22 @EFEEREH (&)

Impact (Continued)

(i) Practical expedients applied

In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time,
the Group has used the following practical
expedients permitted by the standard:

o Applying single discount rate to a
portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristic.

° Relying on previous assessment on
whether leases are onerous.

° Accounting for operating lease with a
remaining lease term of less than 12
months as at 1 April 2019 as short term
leases.

o Excluding the initial direct costs from the
measurement of the right-of-use assets.

The Group has also elected not to reassess
whether a contract is, or contains a lease at the
date of initial application. Instead, for contracts
entered into before the transition date the Group
relied on its assessment made applying HKAS
17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease.

CECEEFR o ZHEESEEFIRAA

FE(E)

)  FRANEEATTEE
iy

REREREEMERESE
AIF165%E - ARBEERA
AT B A FFRERAT
BETIE

. HBBAEBELY
AEAAERE— R
% -

. CETHERTHR
AR KB BEE
A o

. #% 820194818
@ﬁ%Tﬁ%m#m
& B e & E
Wﬁﬁﬁﬂ\o

. AHEEREEERK
BRI ERRA -

AEENDEEBETENNG
BHNEBRERABHRES

REEXESHE - HR

HREB®E R ZATE L
MEH  AEBEKEHEER
TR G EREITHR RE
B (BRYHERERERE
) — RERIREELH
= EBREE [EL A -
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2 SUMMAR-Y OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2  Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
Impact (Continued)

(i) Practical expedients applied (Continued)

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group
reclassified the assets under finance leases
amounted HK$64,386,000 (mainly machinery
and equipment and motor vehicles) from plant
and equipment to right-of-use assets, and the
liabilities under obligations under finance leases
amounted HK$9,151,000 from borrowings to
lease liabilities for presentation purpose.

(ii) Measurement of lease liabilities

Operating lease commitment disclosed as at
31 March 2019

Discounted using the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate of at the date of initial
application

Add: finance lease liabilities recognised as at

31 March 2019

Less: short-term leases not recognised as a

liability

Less: low-value leases not recognised as a

liability

Lease liability recognised as at 1 April 2019

Of which are:
Current lease liabilities
Non-current lease liabilities

102 SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED o
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCO--‘UN‘T'ING“ AL 2

POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

Changes in accounting policies (Continued) 2.2

Impact (Continued)

(iii) Measurement of right-of-use assets

The associated right-of-use assets for property
leases were measured on a retrospective basis
as if the new rules had always been applied,
adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or
accrued lease payments relating to that lease

recognised in the statement of financial position

as at 31 March 2019.

The recognised right-of-use assets relate to the

following types of assets:

Machinery and equipment
Motor vehicles
Properties

Total right-of-use assets
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POLICIES (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.2  Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

Impact (Continued)

(iv) The table below summarises the impact

on the adoption of HKFRS 16:

Consolidated balance sheet

(extract)

Non-current assets
Plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Current assets

Deposits, prepayment and other

receivables

Equity
Reserves

Non-current liabilities

Borrowings — non-current portion
Lease liabilities — non-current portion

Current liabilities

Borrowings — current portion
Lease liabilities — current portion

v) Lessor accounting

RREEAMER
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*
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#
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B

RBAE
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BRE-
B ER D

The Group did not need to make any adjustments
to the accounting for assets held as lessor under
operating leases as a result of the adoption of

HKFRS 16.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED »

2 EXETHRBE (&)

22 EFTBRE®(E)
FE(E)
(v)  TXERERAEEE
BHEERFE 1652
At 31 March Effects of

2019 as the At 1 April
originally adoption of 2019
presented HKFRS 16 Restated
N20195F HRMBEHK 20194
3A31H HEER 4A1H
(MEEZ5]) E16HmZTE (RE)
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FHET TET FET
563,615 (64,386) 499,229
- 74,347 74,347
5,852 (340) 5,612
621,716 (207) 621,509
3,400 (1,431) 1,969
- 4,699 4,699
92,498 (7,720) 84,778
- 14,280 14,280

v) N ST T %
$$@ﬂmlﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁ

&2 A 165 M B K E

MEBETERHBEARED
BEMNGTREELERR

ﬁEﬁZo

ANNUAL REPORT 2020



2

Notes to the CQDM%T'H‘ét

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

Changes in accounting policies on 1 April 2018

This note explains the impact of the adoption of
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements on
1 April 2018.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS 39
that relates to the recognition, classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities, derecognition of financial instruments,
impairment of financial assets and hedge
accounting.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
from 1 April 2018 resulted in changes in
accounting policies and adjustments to the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements. The accounting policies are set out in
Note 2.8 below.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers from 1 April 2018
which resulted in changes in accounting policies
and adjustments to the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements. The
accounting policies are set out in note 2.18.
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SUMMAR? OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

Changes in accounting policies on 1 April 2018
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, a receivable is recognised
only if the Group has an unconditional right to
consideration. If the Group recognises the related
revenue before being unconditionally entitled to
the consideration for the promised goods and
services in the contract, then the entitlement
to consideration is classified as a contract
asset. Similarly, a contract liability, rather than
a payable, is recognised when a customer pays
consideration, or is contractually required to pay
consideration and the amount is already due,
before the Group recognises the related revenue.

The following tables show the adjustments
recognised for each individual line item. Line
items that were not affected by the changes have
not been included. As a result, the sub-totals and
totals disclosed cannot be recalculated from the
numbers provided.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING - _

POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

Changes in accounting policies on 1 April 2018

(Continued)

Consolidated balance sheet

(extract)

Non-current assets

Available-for-sale financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Deferred income tax assets

Current assets
Contract assets

Amounts due from customers for

contract works

Equity
Retained earnings

Available-for-sale financial assets

reserve

Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income

reserve

Current liabilities
Income tax payable
Contract liabilities

Amounts due to customers for

contract works

e e, -
7 |
© 2 BARHREME ()
22 SIHREH(E)
R2018%F4 A 1H &) & 5 B
31 March
2018 1 April
SABESEX  As originally 2018
(BE) presented HKFRS 9  HKFRS 15 Restated
R2018% BB BRNK R2018%
3A31H HEER HEER 481H
(MEEXEZ5) 5595 155 (BE5)
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i
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2 SUMMAR-Y OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

Principles of consolidation

2.3.1 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group
(note 2.3.2).

Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

Principles of consolidation (Continued)

2.3.2 Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless
of whether equity instruments or other assets
are acquired. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises
the fair values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business, the equity interests issued
by the Group, the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, and the fair value of any
pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net
identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

Principles of consolidation (Continued)

2.3.2 Business combinations (Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred,
amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity, and acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquired
entity over the fair value of the net identifiable
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those
amounts are less than the fair value of the net
identifiable assets of the business acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in profit or loss
as a bargain purchase.

2.8.3 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED »

2 EXETHRBE (&)

2.3

BARZRA (&)

232 REAEG(E)

PREERE  TBEERED
TR ERERERE AR
PR B B 88 2 B (T (T #E ot

WiE B R AP EBH MK
WAl AR EEFEQTED
ERCHAEE - WEEFR
BRI P YR S 75 10 7T 38
BEFENRAFE  BIEHE
HEENBSTRASRKES

E [

2.3.83 BIHEREK

RHTE R B 2R E TR A
BB EAR - RABERE
BEEREERE - HERRZ
RETBARFIRE W E
Yol BB ARR o

A SRR B AR NEIR
ids HﬁF‘ﬁZiEH&U\ %EEJZ
MR B M RERARE Z
FHEBBRRE N ZEE
FE(BERE) REEMH

BRAZEREE  BIRBZ
FRERRREE - AHR
B A B 2 B HETTIRE AR
E?t o

ANNUAL REPORT 2020



2

o DX

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4

2.5

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments, has been identified
as the executive directors that makes strategic
decisions.

Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HK$, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the profit or
loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, within
finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on a net
basis within other gains/(losses).
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

— assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing exchange rate at the date of that
balance sheet;

- income and expenses for each statement
of comprehensive income are translated
at average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation
of cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case

income and expenses are translated at the

rate on the dates of the transactions); and

= all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as in other comprehensive
income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
financial instruments designated as hedges
of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation
is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net
investment are repaid, the associated exchange
differences are reclassified to profit or loss, as
part of the gain or loss on sale.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of

the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets’
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of
the asset can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance are expensed in
the profit or loss during the financial period in

which they are incurred.

Depreciation of both owned and leased plant and
equipment is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their costs to their residual
values over the estimated useful lives, as follows:

Machinery and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles

The assets’

reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end

of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount of the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its

estimated recoverable amount (note 2.7).

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and
are recognised in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

2.8

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Investments and other financial assets

(@) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at
fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”); and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s

business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING - _

POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(a) Classification (Continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss
or other comprehensive income (“OClI”). For
investments in equity instruments that are not
held for trading, this will depend on whether the
Group has made an irrevocable election at the
time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when
and only when its business model for managing
the assets changes.

(b) Recognition and derecognition

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.
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2 SUMMAR-Y OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(c) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVPL”), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction cost of financial assets carried
at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset.

(1) Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in the consolidated income
statement. Impairment losses are charged within
operating profit in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING — _ 2 EASHBEBE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued) 28 HERHMEMEE (&)

2.8

(c) Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

2) Fair value through other comprehensive
income

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through other comprehensive income,
except for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in the
consolidated income statement. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity
to profit or loss. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in other gains/(losses) and impairment expenses
are presented as separate line item in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(c) Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in OCI,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair
value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends
from such investments continue to be recognised
in profit or loss as other income when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI
are not reported separately from other changes in
fair value.

(d) Impairment

The Group’s financial assets measured at
amortised cost are subject to HKFRS 9’s new
expected credit loss model. The Group assesses
on a forward looking basis where the expected
credit losses associated with its assets carried
at amortised cost. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk. Note 3.1(c) set
out the details on how the Group determines
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING - .
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(d) Impairment (Continued)

For trade and retention receivables, other
receivables and contract assets, the Group
applies the simplified approach permitted by
HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses
to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables. The provision matrix is determined
based on historical observed default rates over
the expected life of the contract assets and trade
receivables with similar credit risk characteristics
and is adjusted for forward looking estimates.
At every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

Impairment on other receivables is assessed
on a 12-month expected credit losses. If a
significant increase in credit risk of a receivables
has occurred since initial recognition, then the
impairment is measured as lifetime expected
credit losses.
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SUMMAh; OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount reported in the balance sheet where
the Group currently has a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts, and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
The Group has also entered into arrangements
that do not meet the criteria for offsetting but
still allow for the related amounts to be set off in
certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the
termination of a contract.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING - .
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Trade and retention receivables, and deposits

and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for goods sold or services performed
in the ordinary course of business. They are
generally due for settlement within 90 days and
therefore are all classified as current. If not, they
are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and retention receivables, and deposits
and other receivables are recognised initially
at the amount of the consideration that is
unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value. The Group holds the trade
receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures
them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

See Note 16 for further information about the
Group’s accounting for trade and retention
receivables and deposits and other receivables,
and Note 2.8(d) for a description of the Group’s
impairment policies.
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SUMMAR-Y OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents include cash on hand and
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturity of
three months or less.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and retention payables, and other payables

Trade and retention payables are obligations
to pay for goods or services that have been
acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as
non-current liabilities.

Trade and retention payables, and other
payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Borrowings

ey

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the profit or loss over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of
the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the
fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To
the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of
the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated
balance sheet when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the balance sheet date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15

2.16

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are charged to the profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount can be reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value
of the expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.
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POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the year
is the tax payable on the current year’'s taxable
income based on the applicable income tax
rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in
deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

(@) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Group
operates and generates taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences
and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between
the carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in foreign operations where the
company is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and when the
deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are
offset where the entity has a legally enforceable
right to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.
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POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Revenue recognition 218 AR

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and
represents amounts receivable for goods
supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and
value added taxes. Revenue is recognised when
goods are transferred or services are rendered to
the customer.

Depending on the terms of the contract and
the laws that apply to the contract, service may
provide over time or at a point in time. Service is
provided over time if the Group’s performance:

o provides all of the benefits received
and consumed simultaneously by the
customer; or

o creates and enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs;
or

° does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to
date.

If service transfers over time, revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation.
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the
asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Revenue recognition (Continued)
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If the Group expects the reference to progress
certificates issued by the customers, with
additional adjustments where necessary, depicts
the Group’s performance in transferring control
of goods or services promised to customers
for individual projects, the Group satisfies the
performance obligation over time and therefore,
recognises revenue over time in accordance
with the output method for measuring progress.
Under output method, revenue recognition
is based on the stage of completion of the
contracts, provided that the stage of contract
completion and the gross billing value of
contracting work can be measured reliably. The
stage of completion of a contract is established
by reference to the construction works certified
by independent surveyors.

If construction projects have no alternative use
to the Group contractually and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment from the customers
for performance completed to date, the Group
satisfies the performance obligation over time
and therefore, recognises revenue over time in
accordance with the input method for measuring
progress. Under input method, revenue on
construction contracts is recognised based on
the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of
the performance obligation, by reference to the
contract costs incurred up to the end of reporting
period as a percentage of total estimated costs
for each contract.

When the outcome of a contract cannot be
estimated reliably, foundation work and ancillary
service is recognised only to the extent of
contract costs incurred that are likely to be
recoverable.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payments are included in supply and foundation
work and ancillary service to the extent of
contract costs incurred that are likely to be
recoverable.

A contract asset is the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for the services that
the Group has transferred to a customer. In
addition,
a new contract,

incremental costs incurred to obtain
if recoverable, are capitalised
as contract assets and subsequently amortised
when the related revenue is recognised.

Contract assets are assessed for impairment
under the same approach adopted for
impairment assessment of financial assets carried
at amortised cost.

A contract liability is the Group’s obligation to
render the services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration from the
customer. A contract liability is recognised by the
Group when the customer pays consideration in
advance before the Group renders the service to
the customer. Contract liabilities mainly included
the advance payments received from provision of
foundation work and ancillary services.

On the consolidated balance sheet, the Group
reports the net contract position for each
contract as either an asset or a liability. A
contract asset represents an asset where costs
incurred plus recognised profits (less recognised
losses) exceed progress billings; a contract
liability represents a liability where the opposite is
the case.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

219

2.20

Interest income

Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset except for
financial assets that subsequently become
credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial
assets the effective interest rate is applied to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset (after
deduction of the loss allowance).

Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity or paternity leaves are not recognised
until the time of leave.

(b) Pension obligations

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident
Fund scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in accordance
with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance of Hong Kong. Under the rules of the
MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees in
Hong Kong are each required to contribute 5%
of the employees’ gross earnings with a ceiling of
HK$1,500 per month to the MPF Scheme.

The Group also participates in an employee
social security plan (the “Social Security Plan”)
and contributes a fixed amount for each
employee as required by the regulations in
Macau.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

ey

(b) Pension obligations (Continued)

The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the MPF Scheme and the Social Security Plan
is to make the required contributions under the
scheme.

(c) Retirement benefits

The Group operates defined contribution plans
and pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis.
The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expenses when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

(d) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits when it is
demonstrably committed to a termination when
the entity has a detailed formal plan to terminate
the employment of current employees without
possibility of withdrawal. In the case of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy the
termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than twelve
months after balance sheet date are discounted
to present value.
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SUMMA-RQ OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21

Earnings per share

(1)

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by

dividing:

(i)

the profit attributable to owners of the
company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares

by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the
financial year, adjusted for bonus elements
in ordinary shares issued during the year
and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures

used in the determination of basic earnings per

share to take into account:

the after-income tax effect of interest and
other financing costs associated with
dilutive potential ordinary shares, and

the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING - 2 EASHBEBE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)

222 Leases 222 fHE

As explained in Note 2.2 above, the Group has
changed its accounting policy for leases where
the Group is the lessee. The new policy is
described below and the impact of the change in
Note 2.2.

Until 31 March 2019, leases of property, plant
and equipment where the Group, as lessee,
had substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership were classified as finance leases
(note 13). Finance leases were capitalised at the
lease’s inception at the fair value of the leased
property or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments. The corresponding
rental obligations, net of finance charges, were
included in other short-term and long-term
payables. Each lease payment was allocated
between the liability and finance cost. The finance
cost was charged to profit or loss over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period. The property, plant and
equipment acquired under finance leases was
depreciated over the asset’s useful life or over
the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease
term if there is no reasonable certainty that the
Group will obtain ownership at the end of the
lease term.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 |Leases (Continued)

Leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership are retained by
the lessors are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net of
any incentives received from the lessors) are
charged to the profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.

Income from lease of machinery is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant
leases.

From 1 April 2019, leases are recognised as a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at
the date at which the leased asset is available for
use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and
non-lease components. The Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to the lease and
non-lease components based on their relative
stand-alone prices. The Group has elected not
to separate lease and non-lease components
and instead accounts for these as a single lease
component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are
initially measured on a present value basis. Lease
liabilities include the net present value of the
following lease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance

fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 |Leases (Continued)

EARHBEME (4)

222 ME#E)

o variable lease payments that are based on
an index or a rate, initially measured using
the index or rate as at the commencement
date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise
that option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability, if any.

The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, which is generally
the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to
borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a
similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.
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SUMMAR? OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 |Leases (Continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate,
the Group uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting
point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was
received, and makes adjustments specific to the
lease.

Lease payments are allocated between principal
and finance costs. The finance costs are charged
to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each
period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost
comprising the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of
lease liability;
o any lease payments made at or before

the commencement date less any lease
incentives received;

° any initial direct costs; and

o restoration costs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22

2.23

Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated
over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the
lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option,
the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and
all leases of low-value assets are recognised
on a straight-line basis as an expense in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. Short-term leases are leases with a lease
term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets
comprise small items of office equipment.

Lease income from operating leases where the
Group is a lessor is recognised in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial
direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the
underlying asset and recognised as expense
over the lease term on the same basis as
lease income. The respective leased assets
are included in the consolidated statement of
financial position based on their nature. The
Group did not need to make any adjustments
to the accounting for assets held as lessor as a
result of adopting the new leasing standard.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements and
Company’s financial statements in the period
in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders or directors, where
appropriate.

—EoBEEH .

o,

e

2

ZNEEEBARAA

S

Einancial’Statements

qanmh
e SR LIS R R I

Sy

EARHBEME (4)

2.22

2.23

ERAREE-—RREENT
ERFHLREER (ARE
ERE) NIBBERET AR
E-HARBSEEETRE
BREZE AEREEE
R EER A ERFHR
TUAHTE -

ERAGERRR R R & LA K
FTEEREEEEMRSHRBNY
NFIRESRENGEZ2AEK
nRERBER - NPHEE
EHEEHA12{8 A A T
HE - KEEEEZZHEE

INEUHE N R o

AEBERHEANKEH
EMHERAREHANEZE
BB A 2 H RS R AR
W B -HEEEHENTY
FEHERAMERBEERN
FREERERENEREE
HEWARRNEEER S
ER -RHEEERAMNE
FRABREMBIMARK - RE
B HARR AR EE LR
HERHEARENEED
SAtREREBFLEMARE -

IRE 7 K

AN 2 &) R 20k B9 BB A
ARABERIEE (WES)
R B EIR R AEEE
RAMBRERRARA T
BRERAIBEME -

e

T
,-jqui

137



— Notes to the! Co #s,oijiéatea

\\‘ M

s ti%ﬁ%zﬁt?wf—- TN

e

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.24

2.25

138

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised
at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the
Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in the profit or loss over the
period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of
property, plant and equipment are included in
non-current liabilities as deferred income and are
credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the expected lives of the related assets.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group.
It can also be a present obligation arising from
past events that is not recognised because it is
not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation
cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow
is probable, they will then be recognised as a
provision.
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Notes to the ConsolldathClal Sfatements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety
of financial risk: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall
risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of the financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out under policies
approved by the directors of the Company. The
Directors provide principles for an overall risk
management, as well as policies covering specific
areas.

(@) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets
and liabilities which are denominated in a currency
that is not the Company’s functional currency.

The Group’s transactions are mainly denominated
in HK$ and Macao Patacas (“MOP”). The majority
of assets and liabilities are denominated in
HK$, MOP and Euro (“EUR”), and there are no
significant assets and liabilities denominated in
other currencies. Management considered that
the foreign exchange risk for MOP is minimal
since exchange rate fluctuation was minimal.

As at 31 March 2020, if HK$ had strengthened/
weakened by 5% (2019: 5%) against EUR with
all other variables held constant, the Group’s
net assets at the year end and profits for the
year would have been HK$433,000 (2019:
HK$1,327,000) higher/lower, respectively, mainly
as a result of foreign currency gains/losses on
translation of the bank borrowings dominated in
EUR.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cantinued)

3.1

140

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk is mainly attributable
to its cash and bank balances and borrowings.
Except for borrowings with variable interest, the
Group has no other significant interest-bearing
liabilities. Borrowings at variable interest rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
Cash and bank balances at fixed rates expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The
Group has not used any interest rate swaps to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

As at 31 March 2020, if the interest rates
on borrowings had been 100 basis-points
higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year would
be HK$1,024,000 (2019: HK$826,000) lower/
higher mainly as a result of higher/lower interest
expense on floating rate borrowings.

(c) Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from
trade and retention receivables, deposits and
other receivables, contract assets, cash in bank
and restricted bank balances.

To manage the risk arising from cash in bank
and restricted bank balances, the Group only
transacts with reputable banks which are all
high-credit-quality financial institutions. There has
no recent history of default in relation to these
financial institutions. The expected credit loss is
close to zero.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Credit risk (Continued)

For deposits and other receivables, management
makes periodic collective assessments as well
as individual assessment on the recoverability
of deposits and other receivables based
on historical settlement records and past
experience. The management believes that the
expected credit loss is close to zero.

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s
policy that all customers who wish to trade on
credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, all trade and retention
receivables and contract assets are monitored on

an ongoing basis.

The Group applies the simplified approach to
measure expected credit losses prescribed by
HKFRS 9, which permits the use of a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade and
retention receivables and contract assets.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
and retention receivables and contract assets
have been grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics and the days past due.
The contract assets related to unbilled work
in progress and have substantially the same
risk characteristics as the trade and retention
receivables for the same types of contracts. The
Group has therefore concluded that the expected
loss rates for trade receivables are a reasonable
approximation of the loss rates for the contract
assets and retention receivables.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cantinued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Credit risk (Continued)

The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of trade and retention
receivables and contract assets over the period
before the consolidated balance sheet date
and the corresponding historical credit losses
experienced within this period. The historical
loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and
forward-looking information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the customers to settle the
receivables. The Group has identified the Gross
Domestic Product (GDP) of the cities in which
it operates to be the most relevant factor, and
accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based
on expected changes in these factors.

The Group overall considers the shared credit
risk characteristic and the days past due of
the trade and retention receivables as the
measurement for the expected credit loss. During
the year, excluding the impact of certain retention
receivables assessed to be impaired, expected
loss rate of trade and retention receivables
are assessed to be less than 0.1%. The loss
allowance provision for these balances was not
material during the years ended 31 March 2020.

The Group categorises trade or other receivables
for write off when a debtor fails to make
contractual payments. Where trade or other
receivables have been written off, the Group
continues to engage in enforcement activity to
attempt to recover the receivable due. Where
recoveries are made, these are recognised
in consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Co,h

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that an entity
will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities that are settled
by delivering cash or another financial assets.

The Group maintains liquidity by a number of
sources including orderly realisation of short-term
financial assets, receivables and certain assets
that the Group considers appropriate and long
term financing including long-term borrowings
are also considered by the Group in its capital
structuring. The Group aims to maintain flexibility
in funding by keeping sufficient bank balances
and interest bearing borrowings which enable
the Group to continue its business for the

foreseeable future.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the balance sheet date
to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interests
payments computed using contractual rates, or
if floating, based on the current rates at the year
end date). Where the loan agreement contains
a repayable on demand clause which gives the
lender the unconditional right to call the loan at
any time, the amounts repayable are classified
in the earliest time bracket in which the lender
could demand repayment. The maturity analysis
for other borrowings is prepared based on the
scheduled repayment dates. Balances due within
12 months equal their carrying balances, as the

impact of discounting is not significant.
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e ——— FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cantinued) 3 BRRBER (&)
4 7 = '
r /7.’; { 1 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BERRAZEE)
(d)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (@  REELEE (E)
On
demand
and less Between Between
than1 1and2 2and5 Carrying
year years years Total amount
BREXR
SPR-F -E@ME ZZIF @ RHEH
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TER TERT THER TER TERT
As at 31 March 2020 #202053A31H
Trade and retention payables B8 5508
kB e 124,299 - - 124299 124,299
Other payables H At AT 5RIR 5,814 - - 5814 5814
Amount due to a director ER—BEERE - 3,254 - 3,254 3,145
Long-term bank loans RERITER 9,165 7,893 2,491 19,549 18,579
Short-term bank loans EHRITER 101,391 - - 101,391 100,903
Lease liabilities HEERE 4,422 - - 4,422 4,364

245,091 11,147 2,491 258,729 257,104
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) — .~ 3 SRR
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 HBEEBREXE) }
(d)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (@  TAEEZEE(E
On
demand
and less Between Between
than1  1and2 2andb Carrying
year years years Total  amount
BREXK
YR—F —ZWFE —ZRF #it REeE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
L FTExT FTEx FEx  TEx
As at 31 March 2019 R2019%
3A31H
Trade and retention payables B E 5508
kRB& 34,833 - - 34833 34,833
Other payables H A fE < 5008 1,839 - - 1,839 1,839
Amount due to a director [ —%
ESHE - - 3,186 3,186 3,075
Long-term bank loans REBITER 5,065 1,642 384 7,091 6,837
Short-term bank loans BHRITER 80,018 = - 80,018 79,910
Obligations under finance leases REMEEM 7,897 1,449 - 9,346 9,151
129,652 3,091 3,570 136,313 135,645

—ECEEFR o =NERELEEERLT
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cantinued)

3.2

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists of
equity and borrowings. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares
or sell assets to reduce borrowings. The Group
monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. The
gearing ratio is calculated as net debt divided
by total equity. Net debt is calculated as total
borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. The
gearing ratios were as follows:

3 BKERER (&)

3.2

BEAXRERERE

AEEEREANBRERR
EAEBEERHELENR
N T A AR 2R 3 R K
REMEERFA ARER
@ ARG RENERE
BAREEARKA

REBNBEARGBEREER

RAGTR o MR SRR E AR
B ARERGABIMN TR
RHRESHE - MRREEE
T BT E B E R
DERR - AEBAEER G
RERENR - BEAMBLLEI
BEFERNEERTHE -8
RFEARETRRE MRS
EEY - BEAGBHENT :

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Borrowings (including obligations BR(BEREHERT)
under finance leases) (note 23) (H1:t23) 119,482 95,898
Less: cash and cash equivalents B RERBEEEY
(note 18) (Htit18) (207,321) (196,964)
Net cash IR & F (87,839) (101,066)
Total equity Emiass 697,927 625,916
Gearing ratio BEAMENLE N/ATE A N/AZ 7E F
As at 31 March 2020, the Group was in net cash R2020F3A31H K& &

position, taking into accounts its borrowings and
cash and cash equivalents.
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Notes to the CQnM%T"d'étedZEm.,_QC|al

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3

Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
assets (other than financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income) and
financial liabilities, including cash and cash
equivalents, restricted bank balances, trade
and retention receivables, deposits and other
receivables, trade and retention payables, other
payables and borrowings approximate their
fair values, which either due to their short-term
maturities, or that they are subject to floating

rates.

The carrying amount of amount due to a director
was a reasonable approximation of its fair value.

The Group’s financial instruments are measured
in the consolidated balance sheet at fair value by
level of the inputs to valuation techniques used to
measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised
into three levels within a fair value hierarchy as

follows:

2020

Financial assets at fair value BAFER AHAM
through other comprehensive ZEHBAZ
income (note 15) SREE (MiF15)

2019

Financial assets at fair value B EF AHAM
through other comprehensive 2HEKBAZ
income (note 15) SREE (MiF15)

cgrae,

3

CECEEFR o ZHEESEEFIRAA

tatements

e R i

BMEREE ()

3.3

Level 1
B8

HK$
THT

AT EfE

AEENEREE (BAF
Bt AREMEEEAZ SR
BERIN RemAaE (8
RASLRSEFEY R
BIERITHE R ~ RUE H50R
RREE  RE MEMER
RIE - BNESHENRE

© ~ H b e 5RIE K AE F)
A2 58 B8R ARIF B A =R
R REEERBENK
HEEFEFNAFERSE

BN —REERENKREE
RERXNFENSEOH -

AEBEz BT ARANUG
SR HEZAERTEAER
ERRGEEERBRER

FEAR - ZEG ABIZR
NEBEEASBEANT=
;

Level 2 Level 3

) - E=FE

HK$ HK$

FAT FAT

- 20,120

- 20,920
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cantinued)
8.8 Fair value estimation (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2020, there
were no transfers of financial assets of the
Group between different levels of the fair value
hierarchy.

For the year ended 31 March 2020, there
were no significant changes in the business or
economic circumstances that affect the fair value
of the Group’s financial assets.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED »
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Notes to the Co,h

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(@)

Construction contracts

The Group reviews and revises the estimates
of contract revenue, contract costs, variation
orders and contract claims prepared for each
construction contract as the contract progresses.
Budgeted construction costs are prepared by
the management on the basis of quotations
prepared by the management on the basis of
quotations from time to time provided by the
major contractors, suppliers or vendors involved
and the experience of the management. In order
to keep the budget accurate and up-to-date,
management conducts periodic reviews of the
budgets of contracts by comparing the budgeted
amounts to the actual amounts incurred. Such
significant estimate may have impact on the profit
recognised in each period.

The Group recognises its contract revenue
based on the satisfaction of the performance
obligation either input method or output method,
by reference to the contract costs incurred up
to the end of reporting period as a percentage
of total estimated costs for each contract or
according to the percentage of work performed
to date of individual contract of construction
works as a percentage of total contract value.
Because of the nature of the activity undertaken
in construction contracts, the date at which the
contract activity is entered into and the date
when the activity is completed usually fall into
different accounting periods. The Group reviews
and revised the estimates of contract revenue,
contract costs, variation orders and contract
claims prepared for each construction contract
as the contract progress. Management regularly
reviews the progress of the contracts and the
corresponding costs of the contract revenue.
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CRITICAL-ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(o)

Estimated useful lives and residual values of plant
and equipment

Management estimates useful lives of the plant
and equipment by reference to the Group’s
business model, its assets management policy,
the industry practice, expected usage of the
assets, expected repair and maintenance, the
technical or commercial obsolescence arising
from changes or improvements in the market.
Residual values of the machinery and equipment
are determined based on prevailing market
values for equivalent aged assets taking into
account the condition of the relevant assets or
the value of scrap metal and other economic
considerations. Depreciation expense would
be significantly affected by the useful lives and
residual values of the plant and equipment as
estimated by management.

If the residual values of plant and equipment
had further decreased by 10%, the depreciation
expenses would increase by HK$6,351,000
for the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019:
HK$5,344,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(©

Estimated impairment of plant and equipment

The Group assesses whether there are any
indicators of impairment for plant and equipment
at the end of each reporting period. Plant and
equipment are tested for impairment when there
are impairment indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a
cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use.
The calculation of the fair value less costs of
disposal is based on available data from market
quotations of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. Management determines the market values
of plant and equipment by using valuation report
from independent qualified professional valuer.

Such valuations with reference to comparable
market transactions are made based on certain
assumptions, which are subject to uncertainties
and might differ from the actual result. In making
the judgement, reasonable consideration has
been given to the underlying assumptions by
adjusting the differences to reflect current
prices in active market for plant and machinery
of different model, condition and age. These
estimates are regularly compared to actual

market data and sales transactions in the market.
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CRITICAL-ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(d)

Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets are
based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The Group uses judgment
in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation, based
on the Group’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in
Hong Kong and Macau. Significant judgement
is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current
and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in
the period in which such determination is made.
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REVENUE FROM CONTRACT WITH il

CUSTOMERS AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue from contract with customers, which is also the
Group’s turnover, represents gross contract receipts on
foundation works and ancillary services in the ordinary
course of business. Revenue recognised is as follows:

Foundation works and ancillary
services

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified
as the executive directors of the Company. The
executive directors regard the Group’s business as
one single operating segment and reviews financial
information accordingly.

Revenue from foundation works and ancillary services
are recognised over time during the year 31 March 2020
(2019: same).

(@) Segment information

The Group’s revenue is mainly derived from
customers in Hong Kong. The principal assets
of the Group were also located in Hong Kong as
at 31 March 2020. Accordingly, no analysis by
geographical segment is provided.

CECEEFR o ZHEESEEFIRAA

& T A2 N I B AR 75

EEANKRARS BER

BEEGHBAEERREEBREF
HWETEEHBREHERE DI
R MABAEEMNEETE - BRN
WA

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&T F&T
916,831 452,268

ARRNPITETRHEESEER
BERRA -HITEFTHAKEN
EBB oA EE—KEOH A
HEERMYHER -

RE £2020F3A31H IFFE i
H T2 K M 8 AR 75 &9 U A T B e
R (20194 : HE) °

(a) o ERE

AEEBNKRAEZRAE
BEF o # £2020%F3 A31
B AEENEZEEENN
RE - Bt - WERHRIER
R D B EITHI AT o
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REVENUE FROM CONTRACT WITH .
CUSTOMERS AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

(b) Revenue derived from major customers

External customers which individually contributed
over 10% of the total revenue of the Group for
any of the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019
are as below:

Customer A =2EHR
Customer B EE
Customer C (note) =2EA KT

Note: The corresponding revenue did not contribute
over 10% of total revenue of the Group for the
respective year.

5

EFENBARDBER (&)

() REEXEEPHEA

RE E20204F %2019 3 A
318 L E A —EFZE B
ABAEERABFENRI

AE B BE10% 2 SNRE
mF

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT Fit
467,528 =
274,498 326,384
N/ATRE R 90,753

Kt BRRAHAEER
HEFEZBRAN
BRI A HEB10% °
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OTHER LOSS, NET, AND OTHER INCOME -~ .~ 6  H#ifSE— FEUREMARA
_ == n \
2020 2019, TN N
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Other loss, net HfbEsE— 558
Gain on disposal of plant and B A B2 3R Y
equipment g 5 -
Write-off of plant and equipment I S e Ak B2 AR (540) (1,000)
(535) (1,000)
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Other income E g A
Leasing of machinery THE#m 531 484
Government grants 5T 48 B 301 -
832 484
—E-TEER o SAREEEARAT 155
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EXPENSEé BY NATURE

Cost of sales

Construction contracts costs
(note (a))

Depreciation
— owned plant and equipment
— leased plant and equipment
- right-of-use assets

Repair and maintenance

Others

Administrative expenses
Staff costs, including directors’
emoluments (note (b))
Auditors’ remuneration
Depreciation
— owned plant and equipment
— right-of-use assets

Operating lease rental in respect of

— office and storage premises

— directors’ quarters (note 30(a))

Professional fees
Motor vehicle expenses
Bank charges
Exchange gains

Others

Total cost of sales and administrative

expenses

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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e

e

$HE R
BB KK (B itE)

e
— BB &K
—HEBW KRR
—EREEE

mEERRE

Hth

TTHRAX
BTRA (8
(Bt )
2 B B
e
—BEHMR LR
—EREEE
UTEENEEHERS
—-WMRERBEWE
—EEB/E (WiE30@)

HXEH

MERAX

RITFAX

BEE 37, W2

Hh

HREZEME)

HERA R
TBRX B

RUEEE I MBAX

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$’000
TERT FHET
756,249 420,092
23,326 22,966

- 1,215

454 -
1,172 251
8,964 3,362
790,165 447,886
14,965 13,925
1,682 1,557
570 518
6,893 -
4,227 9,803
2,168 2,168
4,596 4,155
2,896 1,905
472 502
(632) (2,517)
5,310 5,487

. 43,147 . 67905

833,312 485,389
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EXPENSES BY NATURE (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

Construction contract costs included but are not

limited to costs of construction materials, staff costs

(refer to note (b) below), consultancy fee, parts

and consumables, subcontracting charges and

transportation.

Wages and salaries

Pension costs — defined contribution
plans (note)

Employment benefits

Less: amount included in cost of sales

—EoEFH

ITERFE

RRE KA —EHE
WG B (A7)

EERA

B REAHER AR 2 &8

s =MEEEEARAT

——

B E B W% ()

@ EBEAHRABEETRR
BEMBKA - BETRA (2

#

RTXME®D) - ERER -

THRERER D BERARE
WER -
(b)

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
142,046 84,917
4,266 2,750
3,707 938
150,019 88,605
(135,054) (74,680)
14,965 13,925
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Notes: (Continued)

()

Five highest paid individuals

.

EXPENSES BY NATURE (Continued) -
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e

e

7 BEMER SRR (E)

Bz - (&)

(©

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the five individuals
whose emoluments were the highest in the Group

include three directors (2019: three) whose emoluments

were reflected in the analysis presented in note 30(a).

The emoluments paid to the remaining two individuals

(2019: two) are as follows:

Salaries, other allowances and
benefits in kind

Bonus

Pension costs
— defined contribution plans

Fra o HARRS

KB WEF

EAT

RS R
—ERUHKE B

2

The emoluments of these individuals fell within the

following bands:

HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000

1,500,001% 7T £2,000,0007% 7T

No emolument was paid by the Group to any of the

directors or the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for the loss of office.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED »
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£ FE M E R M E30()
BT ET o [ E M E
(20194 : MB) AT XA
BemT

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$’'000

TR THET

2,940 2,920

245 245

33 36

3,218 3,201
BZEANTHOMEN FATE

B

Number of individuals

AH
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET TET
2 2
AEEMERNTMNESKE
FRSHFALMNEMHE
ERMARKEHMARSE
[ iy A R R SR B B A (R
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8  FINANCE (COSTS)/INCOME, NET .~ g WA (BA) WA — B

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHT T T
Finance income U3 N
— Interest income on bank deposits  — R 1717 2 # FI| B U A 2,287 3,481
Finance costs % &R
— Interest expense on bank loans —RITERWF B (1,827) (1,440)
— Interest expense on bank —RITELZWF B X
overdrafts (20) (46)
— Interest expense on obligations - BMEREEENFEMAEZ
under finance leases - (791)
— Interest expense on lease —HEEENNERX
liabilities (507) =
— Interest expense on amount due B —REEHEN
to a director (note 27(b)) FEFRZ (Krat27mb) (70) (65)
(2,424) (2,332)
Finance (costs)/income, net s (BA) WA 88 (137) 1,149

CECEEFR o ZHEESEEFIRAA
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9 INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) . - g

__’Y S 4 The amount of income tax charged/(credited) to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
represents:

Hong Kong profits tax EENEH
Current income tax BV HA BT 15 %%
Deferred income tax (note 20) BEIEFTIS T (A 7£20)
Macau complementary tax BPITEH AT
Current income tax BERFT 15 %t
Over-provision of current income EFRVHAFTIS TR AY
tax in prior year BREE

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% (2019:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.

Macau taxation is calculated at tax rates applicable to
jurisdiction in Macau at 12% (2019: 12%).

FEHmMx, (ER)
RéFe2mlERI s GEA) 8
FriStieREiE ¢
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TFAT
1,706 (518)
9,031 (3,172)
- (3,001)
(76) (436)
10,661 (7,127)

#916.5% (20194 : 16.5%) 5T &

SRR IB IR AR E B E AN
T = 12% (20194 : 12%) 1 & -

160 SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED « ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (Continued)~ - 9
The tax on the Group’s profit/(loss) before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise
using the tax rate of Hong Kong as follows:
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETE B AT (E18)
Calculated at tax rate of 16.5% #216.5% M R 5T E B Hi1R
Tax effects of: NTEBENTETE
Tax rates of overseas operation N E T T R
Income not subject to tax BAERBTBA
Expenses not deductible for tax AR A
purposes
Recognition of tax losses previously 32 LA 1 37 & 7 22
not recognised HIEEE
Tax losses for which no deferred WEBERELEMEHEE
income tax asset was recognised MR IEE 1B
Utilisation of previously R AT EERZ
unrecognised tax losses TiIB B 1E
Over-provision of income EKEMBRABEEE
tax in prior year
Others HAh
Income tax expense/(credit) RS (K&E)
DIVIDEND 10

On 23 June 2020, the Board of Directors proposed a
final dividend of in respect of the year ended 31 March
2020 of approximately HK$33,600,000 (2019: Nil),
representing HK$0.02 per ordinary share (2019: Nil).
Such dividend is to be approved by the shareholders
at the Annual General Meeting of the Company. This
proposed final dividend is not reflected as a dividend
payable as of 31 March 2020, but will be recorded as
a distribution of reserves for the year ending 31 March
2021.

CECEEFR o ZHEESEEFIRAA

ncial®
e

.

FEREYUER) (&)

AEEBRAEHANET, (B18) 6
PEERATENEAENERMR
BOEEWNT

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHE T FHET
83,679 (57,497)
13,807 (9,487)
35 1,163
(488) (842)
20 38
(2,334) =
171 2,441
(252) (4)
(76) (436)
(222) =
10,661 (7,127)

KRS

MR20205E6 8238  EE @ &%
A £2020F3A318 It FE IR
R EF B & R E i@ AR0.027 7T
(2019 : %) + & #£49383,600,0007%
T BEARBBEFRRERRNFER
RAFAG EHE - B2 B TEE
R A 7202043 A 31 A &9 FE £ F
B B RE £202143 A31
HIEFEZRHEBEDIK -

e
e BRUMBERN

.
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11 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ~. o

(a)

162

Basic

Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by
dividing the profit/(loss) attributable to equity
holders of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the
respective years.

Profit/(loss) attributable to equity ARNFIERIFE A
holders of the Company (HK$'000)  FEfh s H,/ (B518)
(F&xT)
Weighted average number of AEEBRERBF A
ordinary shares for the purpose I3 AR pE 3T &K
of calculating basic earnings (FA%)

per share (thousands)

Basic earnings/(loss) per share
(HK cents) (L)

Diluted

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share is of the same
amount as the basic earnings/(loss) per share as
there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares
outstanding for the year ended 31 March 2020
and 2019.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

BREF, (HIE)

(@)

FREARBMN, (BE)

BN

BREARRET(BE) IR
BEARRREFA ARG
A/ (B1R) BRIAEBEE
B 31T E BB T 8G
=

2020 2019

73,018

(50,370)

1,680,000 1,680,000

4.35 (3.00)

BREERT, (FE) HE
BEAXZBF,(FE)ER -
It 75 B R 1E B £20204F &
20193 A31H - F [ &
RITEREEEE LA

e ANNUAL REPORT 2020



12

o T
Notes to tmmggﬁé

-l
Sl

e

SUBSIDIARIES

Name

=1

Directly held by the Company:

HADFEEER:

Sam Woo Group Limited
(“SW (BVI)")

(T=#(BVI)))

Capital Plus Group Limited

Indirectly held by the Company:

HEDAEERS:

Sam Woo Bore Pile Foundation

Limited (“SWBP”")

S EBRAR (=L

Sam Woo Construction &
Engineering Limited

“HNERERER A

Sam Woo Engineering Equipment

Limited (“SWEE?)

AR AER AR ([=FEH])

Place of
incorporation and
kind of legal entity
AL E R
EEERER

British Virgin Islands,
limited liability
company

RRENES
ERAA

British Virgin Islands,
limited liability
company

RBRAES
BRAT

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

&t BRDA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

&t BRDA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

&t BRDA

—EoBEEH

—

Particulars of
issued share
capital

ERTRAHR

10,000 ordinary
shares of US$1
each
10,000k Bk A E
1ETR LBk

2 ordinary shares
of US$1 each

2REREE
1ETREER

10,000,000
ordinary shares of
HK$1 each
10,000,000
BREEIETH
LRk

100,000 ordinary
shares of HK$1
each

100,000
BREGEIETH
LRk

500,000 ordinary
shares of HK$1
each
500,000/ & KA
BB T E B

7 iy
ted:

f

12

gt~
ncial®
.

op: P

Effective interest

held as at

FiBERER

2020 2019
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

s ZHEEEEERAH

Principal activities
and place of operation

TEXBREBMN

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Foundation works and
ancillary services in Hong
Kong

REBETHETIRER
RELHE RS

Trading of and leasing of
machinery and equipment
in Hong Kong

REBEEREEHN
Rk

Leasing of machinery and
equipment in Hong Kong

REBREHE LR

535 7 M) oE

e

163
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SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) -

Name

1

Indirectly held by the Company
(Continued):
HAAREERSS ()

Sam Woo Foundation Limited

Sam Wooltt ZH R A 7l

AA Foundation Limited
(formerly known as Sam
Woo Construction Limited)

SMHEFRAR
(RIfE=RMEEBRAR)

Sam Woo Givil Contractors Limited

=MERIRBERAA

Sam Woo Givil Works Limited

=MEAFRAR

Sam Woo Foundation Limited

“MEETIRBRAT

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED »

Place of
incorporation and
kind of legal entity
TR it B R
EEERER

Macau, limited liability
company

R BRAA
Hong Kong, limited
liability company

B ARAR

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

B BRLA
Hong Kong, limited

liability company

B ARAA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

B ARAA

d‘ﬁr'f;mﬂ

MW‘ -

Particulars of
issued share
capital

BORARR

2 ordinary shares
of MOP$15,000
each
RERAEE
15,0008 9% Ky
LR
40,000,000
ordinary shares of
HK$1 each
40,000,000%% Z A%
EEVETHLE
&

10,000 ordinary
shares of HK$1
each
10,000 SR EE
1B TR AR

2 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each
RERAEE
1B TR LBk

2 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each

2B EREE
BT E AR

12

al Statements

B 8 2 7

Effective interest

held as at

FisERER

2020 2019
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

‘P

(%)

Principal activities
and place of operation

TEXUREENY

Foundation works and
ancillary services in
Macau

RRFETHETRE
R AR A B AR

Foundation works and
ancillary services in
Hong Kong

REBETHETRE
R AR A B AR

Foundation works and
ancillary services in
Hong Kong

REBETHETRE
R AR A B AR

Inactive

EEEX

Foundation works and
ancillary services in
Hong Kong

REBETHETIRER
ALK B RS
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SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name

1

Indirectly held by the Company
(Continued):
HAQRMERE : (8)

Sam Woo Finance Limited
“NBBERAR
Sam Woo Offshore Engineering

Limited
“MEFIRARAF

Sam Woo Asia Development
Group Limited
“NENEREBEERAA

Sam Woo Foundation
Group Limited
“ANESEBRAR

Redland Contractors Limited

PREEARAR

Place of

incorporation and
kind of legal entity

AR LR
EERBESR

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
B BRRA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
B BRRA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
B BRRA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
B BRRA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

& ARAA

“ECEFEFR

Particulars of
issued share
capital

BERTRAHE

2 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each
2EREE
BT L B

1 ordinary share
of HK$1 each
1R ERER
BT L B

1 ordinary share
of HK$1 each
1R ERER
BT L B

1 ordinary share
of HK$1 each
1R ERER
BT LB

2 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each

2REREE
1B TR LBk

12

Effective interest

held as at

Fiis B ER

2020 2019
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

s ZHEEEEERAH

WEAT(F)

Principal activities
and place of operation

TEXUREELE

Inactive

EEEY

Inactive

EEEY

Inactive

EEEY

Inactive

EEEY

Foundation works and
ancillary services in
Hong Kong

REBEMNETR
RER A0 B AR
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e

LEASES g

This note provides information for leases where the
Group is a lessee.

(@) Right-of-use assets

Of which are:

Properties

Machinery and equipment (note)
Motor vehicle

mﬁ§m

H
%
WX 524 (WY i)
FTED

As at 31 March 2020, the net book value of
right-of-use assets amounted HK$16,151,000
have been pledged to secure lease liabilities of

the Group.

Lease liabilities

Of which are: e
Current lease liabilities mEEER
Non-current lease liabilities ERBEE

Note:

In the previous year, the Group only recognised lease

assets and lease liabilities in relation to leases that
were classified as “finance leases” under HKAS 17
Leases. The assets were presented in property, plant
and equipment and the liabilities as part of the Group’s

borrowings. For adjustments recognised on adoption of

HKFRS 16 on 1 April 2019, please refer to note 2.2.

No additions to the right-of-use assets during the year

ended 31 March 2020.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

13 #HE
A EREEBAKEELABEA
MNEENER -
(a) FREEE
31 March 1 April
2020 2019
20204 20194
3H31H 4818
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET F&T
3,133 9,961
16,086 64,256
65 130
19,284 74,347

R2020E3A31H @ BRE %
{8 /416,151,000 7T 2 £
REECKER  DMEANR

o

v
/

i
S

SEHEREZHER -

31 March
2020
20205
3H31H
HK$’000
FHET

4,364

1 April
2019
20194
4H1H
HK$’'000
FA&T

14,280
4,699

4,364

18,979

Hi -

HEEFE -
T)’E%? Be

ZKEIE“%EEENE
AR FE175RHE

%ﬁ%fﬂﬁ%ﬂﬁj CORiR=gg)

fﬂfé?&fﬁfﬁ El
ERYE - KR
S RAKBIERLZ —

e ES

- BRE
25

o - B BER2019F4A1H
RMB B IEHRE ERIFE16

SRS HER AR

22-°

R

HZE2020F3A31HIEFEL
EERABEERE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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LEASES (Continued)

(0)

Amounts recognised in the statement of profit or
loss

Depreciation of right-of-use assets of
HK$454,000 have been included in cost of
sales and HK$6,893,000 have been charged in
administrative expenses for the year ended 31
March 2020.

Expenses relating to short-term lease for office
and storage premises of HK$4,227,000 and
directors’ quarters of HK$2,168,000 have been
included in administrative expenses.

The total cash outflow for leases for the year
ended 31 March 2020 was HK$21,517,000.

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The Group leases offices, warehouses and staff
quarters. Rental contracts are typically made
for fixed periods of 1 year to 3 years with no
extension options.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions including lease payments and lease
terms.

As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, no lease is
committed but not yet commenced.

Termination options

Termination options are included in a number of
warehouses and staff quarters leases across the
Group. These are used to maximise operational
flexibility in terms of managing the assets used
in the Group’s operations. The majority of
termination options held are exercisable only by
the Group and not by the respective lessor.

—EoBEEH .

hﬂg-

= a%‘*’“* h\"f"; p
Notes to tMﬁQg;zTrdétea

cgrae,

e

-

13

ZNEEEBARAA

-

y T a

£inan

ncial*
e i

i,

mEE)
(o) RIBERERN T HE

ME 2020563 A31H IFF
EimE @ 454,000 JT #) (£
AREEENEETAIHE
X 7K | 16,893,000 7T 2 F£
TR 0Bk o

BRRAEREBYEZE
B & /) A 4,227,000
T & B T 18 & /92,168,000
BILERATHEAX °

B E2020F3A318 15
EHEMBESRLAREE
21,517,000/ Tt °

AEENHERS REARK
73

AEEHERAE  BAER
ET1EE HEANARR
1E3FHETEHRATL - I
EEMEE -

MERFIZE R £
B = & AR B 5K e 15
- EREAENREEEY
fR °

R2020% K201943 A 31
B WEDAGE MRS
MEE -

AR EE

AEEETREREBIRS
ZHETEBRRILER
o ZEEREIIANEE
EEEEASELEMAE
ENEERLMNE - IRBAR
REPD#R LB BREE R R A
SEmIEAREEEATRE -

%atements

— GAMBRAN
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14

tQ,,tO the Consol

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT A

At 31 March 2018 R201843HF31H
Cost A

Accumulated depreciation 2t E
Net book amount REEE
Year ended 31 March 2019 #Z2019543A318
tFE
Opening net book amount FOREFE
Additions NE
Written-off !
Depreciation &
Closing net book amount FRERFE
At 31 March 2019 $K2019F3A31H

Cost B A

Accumulated depreciation K E
Net book amount BEE
Year ended 31 March 2020 HE202053A31H
HEE
Opening net book amount ENREHE
Reclassified as right-of-use RERERB B
assets at the initial application REERF 1655
of HKFRS 16 ENNRREAE
BE
Transfer from right-of-use assets BREFHREE
Additions NE
Write-off g8
Disposals HE
Depreciation ne
Closing net book amount FRERFE
At 31 March 2020 P202043 318

Cost A
Accumulated depreciation 2iME

Net book amount REFE

14 H#HEERE
Machinery Furniture
and and Motor

equipment fixtures vehicles Total
BRRRE HBRREE AE @t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THET THT THET
804,783 1,287 9,380 815,450
(231,729 977) (6,992) (239,698)
573,054 310 2,388 575,752
573,054 310 2,388 575,752
13,492 34 36 13,562
(1,000) - - (1,000)
(23,592) (127) (980) (24,699
561,954 217 1,444 563,615
816,884 1,299 9,415 827,598
(254,930) (1,082) (7,971) (263,983)
561,954 217 1,444 563,615
561,954 217 1,444 563,615
(64,256) - (130) (64,386)
47,716 - - 47,716
19,621 168 1,436 21,225
(535) - 5) (540)
- - (63) (63)
(23,054) (115) (727) (23,896)
541,446 270 1,955 543,671
818,118 1,467 8,997 828,582
(276,672) (1,197) (7,042) (284,911)

541,446 270 1,955 543,671

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED e« ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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14  PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) L 14 BWRREE)

(@)  The net book amount of plant and equipment (a)  H201943H31H © 1B # &t
held under finance lease obligations as at 31 EHREETHEOEM L
March 2019 comprises (note 23(e)): HEOREFERE (M

23(e)) :
HK$'000
T T
Cost - Capitalised finance leases MA-BEBETEARN
MEMEE 68,432
Accumulated depreciation R E (4,046)
Net book amount REFE 64,386

(o)  As at 31 March 2020, plant and equipment (b) FR202043A31H €& A
amounting to HK$52,333,000 (2019: 52,333,000/ T (20194 :
HK$76,372,000) were secured for the Group’s 76,372,000/ JT) HY 1 A X
bank loans (note 23(f)(i). REREAEBBITERD

AR (B RE23(1) (i) °

() During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group (c) MHBEZ=2020F3A8318 Lt
has exercised the purchase option to purchase FE O OAEEBRAHER
the leased assets related to machinery and BRTHEEERILE A B
equipment amounted to HK$47,716,000 when 47,716,000/ 7T B FE # A &
the lease period is over. BB THERME -
15 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 15 RAFEFAEMEZEAKAZE
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME mMEE
Equity investments at fair value through other BAFESAEMEEmIAZ AR
comprehensive income wE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Opening amount FU ¢ 20,920 20,520
Fair value (loss)/gain NTE(BE) e (800) 400
Closing amount FREHE 20,120 20,920

—E-BEER o SHREEEERAT 169
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)

Equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income is unlisted equity securities in Hong Kong.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group holds 5% of issued
capital of Gold Champion Enterprises Limited which
is an unlisted entity principally engaged in investment
properties holding (2019: same).

None of the financial assets is impaired.

Management considered the fair value of the unlisted
securities mainly represented the fair values of the
investee’s investment properties, net of its net current
liabilities. These investment properties which are
situated in Hong Kong are valued by an independent
valuer, RHL Appraisal Limited, with reference to
prices realised on actual sales and/or asking prices
of comparable properties of similar size, development
scale, nature, character and locations. The valuations
have been made on the assumption that the owner sells
the investment properties on the market in their existing
state without the benefit of a cash rebate, deferred
terms contract, leaseback, joint venture, management
agreement or any other similar arrangement which
could serve to increase the value of the properties.
Management considered that the net current liabilities
approximated their fair values due to their short-term
maturities.

The fair values of financial assets through other

comprehensive income is within level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy (see note 3.3).

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED »

15

BAFPEFARMEZEBRAZE
MEE(E)

BAFEFAEMZERA Z AR
RE (&)

BRAFEFARMEEEAZ SR
BERRBRBZIFLMBRAFES -

R2020%3A31H  XEBMEBF S
BEXEERAA ([£8]) B &7
BA5% - e EABEBNHEREY
EERZIFELETEE (20194 : 18
@) o

MESREELRRE-

BEERS  FLMEHRZAFE
TERERETRENEZAFE
(IBFEERBDEEFR) - ZFR
BEMELMREE  DEEEHELUK
M BRAEME  BEACE
A LB ENERHER TR
B8 K% Sk BB 1% i B 3L E AT X
MITHHERE AR A BETHE -
BETDRRER AN ERRAET
B EHERBEYMEMER SO
BRIEGRAK  EREHE 620
¥ EREHHEREMELAETY
XEEZBULENTER - BEE
R mE) B EF AR 2 B &
IEERFE -

BRAFEFARMEEEAZ SR
BEZAFEBRAFERBRZE
=R (RME3.3) -

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES, - _ 16
AND DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables e E 5 FRIA
Retention receivables IR <
Trade and retention receivables BWE ZGHRENMRE S

Less: loss allowance (note (b) and (c)) i : E18# 4 (4757 (b) % (c))

Deposits, prepayments and other e~ AR I &M RE U

receivables (note (a)) FRIE (M3t (a)
Less: non-current portion B JERNEER
Current portion B ER & 5

Note (a): The balance mainly represents rental deposit,
prepayment for sub-contractor fee, prepayment
for plant and equipment and other miscellaneous
prepayments.

The credit period granted to trade customers other than
for retention receivables was generally ranged from
45 to 90 days. The terms and conditions in relation to
the release of retention vary from contract to contract,
which may be subject to practical completion, the expiry
of the defect liability period or a pre-agreed time period.
The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

CECEEFR o ZHEESEEFIRAA

EWESREARRES LR
&\ TEAEIE R E U 2O

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
172,269 14,780
89,403 56,087
261,672 70,867
(25,009) (25,009)
236,663 45,858
7,820 7,950
(836) (2,098)
6,984 5,852

Kiita) mEHRIZBRESRE -
DREBREMNKIE - &
R BN FRIBNA R E A
FERFAMN KA ©

REKREERIN  BHEF —KE
RASZOHMEEN - RERES
MR BRI RS R QM AT
Rl - ATREZAFEIRRT - REEE
HAL TR S A E BV B fE I 1R 7 & R
B o AEEY ES A TAIERmIE
R o
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TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES,

AND DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The aging analysis of the trade receivables based on
invoice date was as follows:

1 to 30 days 1Z230H
31 to 60 days 31260H
Total et

Retention receivables are settled in accordance with the
terms of the respective contracts. In the consolidated
balance sheet, retention receivables were classified as
current assets based on the operating cycle. The aging
of the retention receivables based on invoice date was

as follows:

Within 1 year —F R
Between 1 and 5 years —ERF
More than 5 years AR F

16

BREZRERRES  URE
ToENREREMERRE
(&)

FEd B 5 R AR B 3 R A MM R ik
DT

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER THET
122,195 14,780
50,074 =
172,269 14,780

FEM R £ B IR E B A KRR
BE-NRAEERBRA - B
REEDERRDEE - ENEE
FHEERE S RIEER B K
BT

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAT
36,683 6,766
42,586 48,799
10,134 522
89,403 56,087

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED e« ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES, 16
AND DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade and
retention receivables that are assessed for impairment
are as follows:

FY e

Increase in loss allowance recognised £ A7 18 25 iE R
in profit and loss during the year E5 8 B 1 hn
(note (b) and (c)) (&t )R (c)

Opening amount

FREHE

Closing amount
Note (b)  In February 2017, a subsidiary of the Company
has filed a civil procedure in Macau court against
a customer to recover certain retention receivables
amounted to HK$10,134,000. In June 2018, the
Macau First Instance Court delivered a judgement
against the claims, resulting in a full provision
recorded by the Group against the outstanding
retention receivables during the year ended 31
March 2019.

In January 2019, the subsidiary of the Company
has submitted an appeal of the judgement to the
Macau Second Instance Court. The Macau Second
Instance Court has delivered a judgment in favour
of the subsidiary of the Company, thereby requiring
the case to be reconsidered in the Macau First
Instance Court in October 2019. In December
2019, the customer further submitted another
appeal to the Court of Final Appeal against the
decision of the Macau Instance Second Court.

In early June 2020, the Court of Final Appeal has
decided the customer’s appeal to be unsuccessful.
Therefore, the case will be put forward to the
Macau First Instance Court again.

CECEEFR o ZHEESEEFIRAA

: Lﬁua f{%%“*ﬁé,ﬂ\ji%ﬁ% M;J"EI —”

EWESREARRES LR
& EAHREARE M EKKE

(&)
A RENERE ZHRBERRBS
ERESESWNT
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FH&T
25,009 -
- 25,009
25,009 25,009
Kiatm)  T2017828 - AR At

B R RS B P MR P
IR REAEEFL
U 10,134,000 7t 2 &
TFREKIREE - R2018%F
68  SBPI A EART
ROBEBRZHAR K
& B RE it R E E2019453
AS1RAIEFEHREERE
WRB S L 2 5E#HE -

MR2019F1 A - AN A
&8 A B R P R AA B R
HE HRZ E5F o BT
N P N/NEII S F/NET
BsaF - M2019510A8 #
RFTERPIVIR AT E
E 22019128 BF
B ARPIRE AT R
SRPY R AART 2 R E R £
‘gﬁ °

20206 8 ] B P&
BN A Tl e
E it - R B R IR
P AR SAPE 2B IR o
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TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES,
AND DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Note (b)

Note (c)

(Continued)

Taking into consideration the uncertainty
surrounding the outcome of the case, management
has decided not to reverse the provision on the
retention receivables and the appeal is still on
progress as at 31 March 2020.

As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, a subsidiary of
the Company had an amount of HK$14,875,000
retention receivables outstanding from another
customer. During the year ended 31 March 2019,
the employer of the customer lost its land use right
in the relevant construction site to Macau Court
of Final Appeal. Management is in the process
of seeking to negotiate with the customer for the
recovery of the retention receivables. However, in
view of the uncertainty in the current situation, the
management made a full provision on this retention
receivables during the year ended 31 March 2019.

The carrying amounts of trade and retention receivables
approximated their fair values and were denominated in

HK$.

Impairment and risk exposure

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade and retention
receivables and contract assets.

Information about the impairment of trade receivables
and the Group’s exposure to credit risk, foreign
currency risk and interest risk can be found in note 3.1.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED »
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BUREZRERRE S - u&ﬁ
& A RE R H b BB W
(%)

HieEwm) (&)

ERIEEZRERZD
HEIEE - EEERE D
[l 3¢ FE W IR B & 2 Bkt
il £ &F 7202053 A31H
HFEHETT ©

Kiatc)  H2020%F K201943 A31
BARRME AR A R
H—EEF 214,875,000
BILEWREBS - REZE
20193 A31H ILFE -
BPIREBARHAZE S Z
EBEXREERBBEET
AL FERE - ERE
ESREZRPETE
B AN E ERRE S - A
i - &N B ATE R 2 TR
THRE  BEEEDREZE
201943 A31 R IFE E ¥
L IEERIR B SRR 8
A -

KB SHERRECHREESR
HRFERE - XABTFHE -

AR K LR

AEBERBEEVHREELF
SECAF EEMEEBRE - B
ERKREZFEARRESARA
MEERABREFENESNEEE
o

ERREEZFBERERAREE
BE R - SME R B K A R @R e B

LB M 3.1 -
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CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRA--‘CT‘ RS 17

LIABILITIES

Included in current assets/(liabilities) STARBEE,(BE)
are the following: HWEeREINT :

Contract assets (note i) ABREE (M)

Contract liabilities (note i) EREE W i)

(i) Contract assets related to construction services

consist of unbilled amount resulting from
construction when the cost-to-cost method of
revenues recognised exceeds the amount billed
the customer. The contract assets are transferred
to trade receivables when the rights become
unconditional.

(if) The contract liabilities primarily relate to

the advanced consideration received from
customers.

—ECEEFR o =NERELEEERLT

(i

ANEERAWAS

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TH&T
379 8,616
(11,366) (34,311)
(10,987) (25,695)

HEERBEBIENEE

BREAZERBELNHCHE
REARLLBERABBE R
EPRYRENSRRANR
FYRESHE - ANEEDR
RENE BEGEREEE
FEWE 5 KA ©

EHABETIEEATFPIKRE
MBNRERRM -
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u—— O CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND-- 18
RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES

Cash at bank RITE S

Cash on hand FHERE

Cash and cash equivalents HEeRREEED

Restricted bank balances IR HI R T AS £

Cash and cash equivalents and HERREEEBMAR
restricted bank balances R HIR 1T A fR

Maximum exposure to credit risk FrAEN TS EERR

Note: As at 31 March 2020, the restricted bank balance
represents a deposit of HK$3,145,000 (2019:
HK$3,075,000) placed by a director (note 22).

RERRESEWUARZREIR

1TEEe%
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TFAT
207,226 196,919
95 45
207,321 196,964
3,145 3,075
210,466 200,039
210,371 199,994

KBzt . B2020%F3A31H » ZBR &l
# 17 4 82 X 23,145,000/% 7T
(2019%F : 3,075,000/ JT.) -1 —
FEEFANZRS (ME22) -
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND S e 18
RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES (Continued)

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents
and restricted bank balances were denominated in the

following currencies:

ol

%EMTH

S ate
3

BeRRSZENUR S RAR

TR (E)

B4 B4 ZEY RS RSET
1o 84 ) B T LA ) S M 0 -

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAT
HK$ T 210,235 199,801
MOP JEPTHE 109 98
Others Hty 122 140
210,466 200,039
SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE PREMIUM AND 19 B RO EERFE
RESERVES
(a) Share capital (a) fi% A
Number of
shares HK$
[ &vig S 4= BT
Ordinary shares, authorised: LERCEE)
At 31 March 2019 and R2019%F3 A31H &
31 March 2020 20203 HA31H 4,000,000,000 10,000,000
Ordinary shares, issued ZER(ERTRHBR) :
and fully paid:
At 31 March 2019 and 20193 A31H &
31 March 2020 20203 A31H 1,680,000,000 4,200,000
—ECEEFR o =NERELEEERLT

T

N
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19 SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE PREMIUMLAND
RESERVES (Continued)

Share premium and reserves

At 31 March 2018
Changes in accounting policies

At 1 April 2018 (restated)

Loss for the year

Fair value gains on financial
assets at FVOCI

At 31 March 2019
Changes in accounting policies

At 1 Aprl 2019 (restated)

Profit for the year

Fair value losses on financiel
assgts at FVOCH

At 31 March 2020

12018E3A318
2HREY

H018%4A1E (E5))
EEER

BRAYEH AZHZAAAZ
SBEEDTRYE

H019%F3A31R
SHBRED

H01954R 18 (&)
EEEil
BATEF AL p2ERAL
SBEEINTEFE

R2020E3A318

19 BRE-ROBEREEGE)

(b) B 10 % B I 4

Financial assets

at fair value

through other

Available-for-  comprehensive

Share  sale financial income fair Other Retained

premium  assets reserve  value reserve reserves earnings Total

RATETA

UETT 0N

THLE  2EHEE
RftEE  SHEERE  <ATERE U RBEA it
HK§ 1000 HKS'000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK$ 000
ThT T T TR Tk AT

(nots)
()

194,087 110 - 10500 476,163 681,520
- (770) 70 - (9,834) (9,834)
194,087 - 710 10,500 466,329 671,686
- - - - (50,370) (50,370)
- - 40 - - 400
194,087 - 1,170 10,500 415,959 621,716
- - - - (207) (207)
194,087 - 1,170 10,500 415,752 621,509
- - - - 73,018 73,018
- - (800) - - (800)
104,087 - 370 10,500 488,770 693,727
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19  SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE PREMIUM AND -~ .~ 19 RB& BREREREE ()
RESERVES (Continued)
(o)  Share premium and reserves (Continued) b) BB BERGEEE)
Note: B1:E -
Other reserves of the Group represented the difference REBMEMEEEEESEA
between the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired FTUREE R M B A R A S R
pursuant to the reorganisation over the nominal value BREE BRI T AR
of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange FIEAmENEZZEEIEER
thereof and the difference between the aggregation of 2003 F ek N EAFT L EE D
the nominal value of the share capital of SWBP and = 03 5 B = A0 AR O BR AR
SWEE acquired over the nominal value of the share EEEMN SN EHREE BI&
capital of SW (BVI) issued in exchange thereof pursuant AR 1 2% 17 B = F(BVI)AX 2N |
to the reorganisation completed in 2003. BEHE%E -
20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 20 EEREH
The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax BEERBEERNELEFRBEAGD I
liabilities were as follows: R
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FHERT THET
Deferred income tax assets: RIEFREHEE
Recoverable after more than 1216 A & 1 =]
12 months 2,877 8,547
Deferred income tax liabilities: RIEFREHEE -
Payable or to be settled more R1218 B & B sk 48
than 12 months (52,872) (49,556)
Payable or to be settled within R121E A R FE A sk 4575
12 months (3,551) (3,5006)
Deferred income tax liabilities, net RIEFFSHEE—FE (53,546) (44,515)

—E-BEER o SHREEEERAT 179
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20

h—f“.' - _‘r_“-.w—-""/—ﬁ# _____ b
| Y
DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continuéd) - ' 20 EEMEBH(E)

Deferred income tax and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets

BEFAEREERBEBERB KA
S8R il 01T A N 75 B HA A 1R A A B D

against current tax liabilities and when the deferred I AR - BEEREHA

income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority.

R — o ER % BR AR BA B T DA 3K -

The movement on the deferred income tax account was BIEFSTHEE 2T :
as follows:
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TAT
Balance at 1 April, as originally K418 2 &%

presented (IRE25) (44,515) (60,149)
Changes is accounting policies SRR ES (M 72.2)

(note 2.2) - 2,462
Balance at 1 April, as restated RAR1R 2 &8k (REY) (44,515) (47,687)
Recognised in the consolidated RERE2EREERNA

statement of comprehensive income R (Kfa29)

(note 9) (9,031) 3,172
Balance at 31 March MR3A31H Z &k (53,546) (44,515)

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
without taking into consideration the offsetting of

balances within the same tax jurisdiction, were as SREE) W

follows:

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED e« ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) .’

Deferred income tax liabilities

20 EEFER ()

EEFTEHAE

Accelerated

tax
depreciation
MEHETE
HK$’000
T T
Balance at 1 April 2018 M2018F4 A1H 2 &% 91,382
Recognised in the consolidated Rire2EKERANER
statement of comprehensive income 147
Balance at 31 March 2019 201953 A31H &
and 1 April 2019 2019F4 A1 H 2 & 91,529
Recognised in the consolidated Rizs 2mERER Wﬁﬁm
statement of comprehensive income (3,265)
Balance at 31 March 2020 20203 A31H Z % 88,264
Deferred income tax assets FIEFTEREE
Unrealised Tax
profit losses Total
AEREF BIEEE @zt
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THIT THET THET
Balance at 1 April 2018, as restated 20185418 2 & #
(EE51) 11,670 32,025 43,695
Recognised in the consolidated AMFE2ERRRARR
statement of comprehensive income (3,123) 6,442 3,319
Balance at 31 March 2019 R2019F3A31H K
and 1 April 2019 2019F4A1H 2 & 8,547 38,467 47,014
Recognised in the consolidated RiErA 2 ANERNER
statement of comprehensive income (7,040) (5,256) (12,296)
Balance at 31 March 2020 202093310 2 &tk 1,507 33,211 34,718

—ECEEFR o =NERELEEERLT
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DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current income tax assets against current income tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate
to the same tax jurisdiction. The following amounts,
determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the
consolidated balance sheet.

BEEFTEHEE
BEFBHEE

Deferred income tax liabilities
Deferred income tax assets

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
losses carried forward to the extent that realisation of
the related tax benefit through future taxable profits
is probable. As at 31 March 2020, the Group had
unrecognised tax losses of approximately HK$3,897,000
(2019: HK$19,595,000) that can be carried forward
to offset against future taxable income, of which an
amount of HK$844,000 and HK$752,000 will expire
in 2021 and 2022 respectively (2019: HK$844,000
will expire in 2020 and 2021) and an amount of
HK$2,301,000 (2019: HK$17,487,000) has no expiry
date.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED »

20

I PS8 (42)

EEPTEHEE (&)

BEMEREERBBRA AR
oR BT HE R 5 B HA P 1S 0 B E £
B SR B ESH S - RIREMS
PR [R —Bi 7% Bl AR R AR B AT T 2A
B - NEEREERBERT I
R MFHEEHHEERET) I
N

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHTT
(56,423) (53,062)
2,877 8,547
(53,546) (44,515)

1wl 75 A8 B8 £ 75 ) 25 A 38 48 AR 2R FE R
Fis M EIR - AR BLATAS B MY A 18
EERERERIEFT S BB E - 722020
F3H31H - NEE A R E R
TA 518 493,897,0007% 7T (20194 :

19,595,000/ 70) * ZE 2 B Al &
ERAERERARERREA &
#844,000/%8 Jt & 752,000 T #%
2 Bl 2021 6 K% 20224 2| Hf (2019
£ : 844,000/ TT 1P 20204F K 2021
& 3| H3) 2,301,000/ jt (2019
F 117,487,000/ 7T ) WEEEIEAH o
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TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES,

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables
Retention payables

Total trade and retention payables

Accruals and other payables
(note)

.....

e 8 5 500R
ENRES

ENESHRAMRESHER
JE &t ZRIA M B Al e 3R0R

(Hat)

Note: The amounts mainly represent accruals wages and

other payables for constructing work-in-progress, legal
and professional fees and transportation costs.

The aging analysis of the trade payables based on

invoice date was as follows:

0 to 30 days

31 to 60 days

61 to 90 days

181 to 365 days
More than 365 days

0£30H

31ZE60H
61Z=90H
181%365H
i 18365 H

—EoEFH

ZHEEEEERAH

EHESXEARRES - B

H R H AT RRIE w
: | 3
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET BT
102,976 19,550
21,323 15,283
124,299 34,833
24,655 9,921
148,954 44,754

Wi ZEFBRIEARBEEET
BOREREEXEREEHK
RO e IR R E AR A ©

FE B AR B E R A IRk

TR
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
93,074 14,651
8,962 3,292
- 705
16 72
924 830
102,976 19,550
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TRADE Al\]D RETENTION PAYABLES,
ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

In the consolidated balance sheet, retention payables
were classified as current liabilities. The aging of the
retention payables was as follows:

Within 1 year —F R
Between 1 and 5 years —FRHE
Over 5 years HFU

The carrying amounts of trade and retention payables
approximated their fair value and were denominated in
the following currencies:

HK$ BT
MOP JELPT
Others Hih

AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR

Pursuant to the Deed of Indemnity, Mr. Lau Chun Ming,
a director of the Company, irrevocably undertakes to
deposit a sum of HK$20,000,000 into a bank account
under the name of the Group for the purpose of
indemnifying the Group against any claims, challenges
and rejections from the Hong Kong tax authority and/or
Macau tax authority and costs incurred in relation to the
Group’s tax liabilities arising up to October 2014.

21

22

EREZRERRES B
HRH AN RIE(F)

REREEARRAN  BNRE:
PEAERBDEE - ENREBESHE
B

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TExT
7,516 2,872
13,613 12,405
194 6
21,323 15,283

AR SR RRE S HETER
®ENDTERE - LA TFHRE
5HE

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T&T
120,144 30,206
3,601 4,431
554 196
124,299 34,833

BN —-—RESEHE

BERERZE  ANARESZIRHA
AT BB EEASE
WARSFB I RSB PI R 6
PIRE B EMER - ERED -
AR AEBE E2014F108 E £
MR BEERENKAE  MAEE
% T #R178R = 77 A1 320,000,000
PETT o
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Notes to the (ZOI’T-"°‘|1"’I ated-Einanci

AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR (Continued)

In the event that no claim in relation to taxation is
instituted by both Macau tax authority and Hong Kong
taxation authority against the Group within seven years
after the date on which dealings in the shares on the
Main Board first commenced, i.e. 16 October 2014
(“the Listing Date”), the balance shall be released
and returned to Mr. Lau Chun Ming on the seventh
anniversary of the Listing Date.

In June 2017, the final and conclusive tax assessment
and final tax demand note for the years 2013 and 2014
were issued by the tax authority in Macau. The Group
has no outstanding amount on the required tax for the
years of assessment of 2013 and 2014 in Macau; the
Macau tax assessment for the years 2013 and 2014
have been concluded, final and settled. There is no tax
liability so far demanded by Hong Kong tax authority in
respect of the transactions and income contemplated
under the Machinery Lease Agreement and the
Machinery Agency Agreement.

In June 2017, the directors (including all of the
independent non-executive directors) of the Company
resolved to partially return HK$17,000,000 out of
the deposit of HK$20,000,000 pursuant of Deed of
Indemnity together with all the bank interests earned
up to 12 July 2017 amounting to HK$1,006,000 in
view of the updated tax positions mentioned above and
the estimate on maximum exposure made by the tax
advisers of the Company. The remaining HK$3,000,000
represented the estimated remaining tax exposure of the
Group. The payment of HK$18,006,000 was made to
Mr. Lau Chun Ming in July 2017.

The balance of amount due to a director is secured
by restricted bank balances of HK$3,145,000 (2019:
HK$3,075,000) and interest bearing at effective interest
rate of 2.24% (2019: 1.80%).

—E-BEER o
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ZNEEEBARAA

al’s

-

fatements

o i e AT TR AR Y L

ER—-—RESERE(E)

WMARRDEXHABEREREE 2
B (Bl2014F10A16H ([ L A
M) BEFA - BB R
BEMGHMIMESASEEIEEE
BRIEM R ZR - AISRERKR LW A
MECAFTE AR NRRE TR
B ST A o

M2017566 H » BFIB AT 2 2
HH2013F K2014%F & & FOR E 1HE
B REKARBNE  AEET
2K (838 MR PI20134F K20144F
IS FEFEANIE - MRFI2013
FR2014FTME Tkt ~ IR RE
BT BARBESWENKEH
ERBEREBRERRETIRSH R
WA Z KB AIFRIE -

R it SR R SRR R AR A
RSB E L & LR BB G - R
2017F6H AR AIE S (BIEAT
EBNFRNTES) ZAFERE
4% I8 720,000,000/ TT1F 7K H &Y
#84317,000,00078 L8R :Z E1F K
HZE201757 A12H Fr B ELA — 1))
$F 77 17 X F 21,006,000/ T ° &
T3,000,0007% 7T #&5 7~ & B &9 (& 51
BT ER - KR2017F7 A E [
2|4 BA 45 4 37 1+118,006,00058 7T °

EN—REBRBZ EHAZRS
$R1T 45 843,145,000/ 7T (20194 :
3,075,000/ 7T ) 1 - Wik EFE A
%2.24% (20194 : 1.80%) 5t & °
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¥ AT . 2020 2019

' HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Non-current JEME
Obligations under finance leases MEMERMT - 1,431
Long-term bank loans RERITER 10,045 1,969
10,045 3,400
Current &
Short-term bank loans RHRITER 100,903 79,910
Current portion of long-term bank R—FANEHREER
loans due for repayment within RHISRITERA
one year BVEREB 7> 8,534 4,868
Obligations under finance leases due 7 — 4 A 2| HR{E 8 &Y
for repayment within one year BMEREERM - 7,720
109,437 92,498
Total borrowings BERAERE 119,482 95,898
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23  BORROWINGS (Continued) TReWEE 03

(@) The maturity of borrowings was as follows:

(1)

(i)

Bank loans

The maturity of bank loans are as follows:

Within 1 year —F A
Between 1 and 2 years —EMF
Between 2 and 5 years —FRF

Obligations under finance leases

The maturity of obligations under finance
leases would be as follows:

Within 1 year
Between 1 and 2 years

—FR
—EMEF

“—EoTEFR o =HNERFEEEERAT

)

S ’ =t : e ‘\
R TS
@ EROIBEROT s

() WITEK

RITERH I HER

R
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
109,437 84,778
7,596 1,588
2,449 381
119,482 86,747

(i) HAEHERT

BEHEE TR
FRWT

2019
HK$'000
TAET

7,720
1,431

9,151
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BORROWINGS (Continued) AP

The maturity of borrowings was as follows:

(Continued)

(iii) The obligations under finance leases are

as follows:

Gross finance leases

— minimum lease payments
Within 1 year
Between 1 and 2 years

Future finance charges on
finance lease

Present value of obligations
under finance leases

The weighted average interest rates were as

follows:

Short-term bank loans
Long-term bank loans
Obligations under finance leases

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

MEMERE

@ ERWIEERET : (&)

(i)

RMEHERE
—&EHEEMRK

—FR

—EMF

ARERH B ERE T
Fl S

REMEREINRE

BEHE R (TR
=

2019
HK$'000
TAET

7,897
1,449

9,346

(195)

9,151

() MEEHFEMT

RHEIRITE R
RHIRITER

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHEx T T
3.6% 3.2%

4.3% 4.6%

N/A FEA 4.0%
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BORROWINGS (Continued)

(c) The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings

were denominated in the following currencies:

HK$
EUR

(d) The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings

approximated their fair value as the impact of

discounting is not significant. The fair values are

within level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

(e) As at 31 March 2019, the finance leases are

secured by certain plant and equipment with
carrying amounts of HK$64,386,000 of certain

subsidiaries and guarantees provided by the

Company.

() The Group’s banking facilities and obligations

under finance leases are subject to annual

review and the utilised facilities are secured or

guaranteed by:

Secured
Unsecured

—E_TFFR

. 23
AT
&1 T
AEH
AR A
=MREEEFRAF

-

™ (&)

©

AEBERERNREERS
S EHEHE ¢

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THET
110,830 69,363
8,652 26,535
119,482 95,898

HRITREEEN - A5H
MERRAESEEAFER
5o ATEBRATEER
BEZR -

M201943H318 ' gt &M
ENETHBARKAES
64,386,000/ 7T K & T Ak
KR BIEERIR R B AR AR
HER o

AEEMRITEERBEN
ExESFORETEN

BE#AEEHRATERAE
ISR
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAET
18,579 15,988
100,903 79,910
119,482 95,898
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“23  BORROWINGS (Continted) P

& () The Group’s banking facilities and obligations
under finance leases are subject to annual
review and the utilised facilities are secured or
guaranteed by: (Continued)

(i) an unlimited guarantee given by certain

subsidiaries as at 31 March 2020 (2019:
same); and

(if) certain plant and equipment of the Group
as detailed in notes 14(a) and (b).

The Group did not breach any financial bank
covenant during the year ended 31 March 2020
(2019: none).

24 COMMITMENTS

(@) Capital commitments

As at 31 March 2020, the Group did not have
any capital commitment (2019: Nil).

24

i

AEEMRITEEMREM
ExESFORETERN
AEHREEHRNTRIEAE
EIRRER: (B

()  F2020€3H318 -
maTWER RS
B AR REHE (R (2019
F R &

(i) AEEZETHERR
Hf (F RHiEE14(a)
K (b)) °

#H £202063A31H Ik 4
B ALEEUVEERIANE
RhERITH (20194 « &) o

BRI

R2020F3A31H ' A& H
A 4 AT o] & AN & HE (2019
F ) o
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25

COMMITMENTS (Continued) e 24
(b) Operating lease commitments - as lessee

The future aggregate minimum lease rental
expenses in respect of hiring equipment, office
and storage premises, and quarters for workers
and directors under non-cancellable operating
leases are as follows:

No later than 1 year TER—F
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years iEr—

(c) Operating lease commitments - as lessor

As at 31 March 2020, the Group did not have
any operating lease commitments as a lessor
(2019: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 25

As at 31 March 2020, the Group has given
guarantees on performance bonds of HK$17,751,000,
HK$16,500,000, and HK$49,930,000 respectively, in
respect of three construction contracts of the Group
in its ordinary course of business (2019: two). The
performance bonds are expected to be released
in accordance with the terms of the respective
construction contracts.

CECEEFR o ZHEESEEFIRAA

FENEBREF

AYE(E)

(b)  REHEESHEE—IEAEEHEA
BRI s 2 ER A
Al BFTEREEDE
NREBEIREEBEEHIARK
EHEERATBEBERUT
MR

2019
HK$'000
TET

9,040
3,428

12,468

) REHEAE—(EREEA

M202093A31H * A&
Y EALBAZFNDITEE
A 45 % 70 & A& (20194
L

HREE

R2020%F3A318 - AEEHEH
AEBERAREBHEEAN=IEZ
EEHMELREIELERS B
/17,751,000 7t * 16,500,0007%
7T 549,930,000/ 7t (20194 :
1H) - ZZEBAORETBF KBTS
B DM IRRERR -
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NOTES T6 THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT .- 26

,ayrz%;azem;

——

_-—"""

OF CASH FLOWS

(@)

Reconciliation of profit/(loss) before income tax to (@)
net cash generated from/(used in) operations:

Profit/(loss) before income tax

Depreciation of plant and equipment

(note 14)

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
(note 13)

Gain on disposal of plant and
equipment

Write-off of plant and equipment
(note 14)

Finance income (note 8)

Finance costs (note 8)

Net exchange differences

Changes in working capital:
— Trade and retention receivables
— Deposits, prepayments
and other receivables
— Contract assets
— Trade and retention payables
— Accruals and other payables

— Contract liabilities

Net cash generated from/(used in)
operations

SEREREBRWE

BRATS IR A, (B518) B
REXBFE/ (A BRE
SFEEMEIER ¢
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
BRET{S B AT
(E18) 83,679 (57,497)
WAk R S AT &
(HieE14) 23,896 24,699
EREEENE (H713)
7,347 -
H S AL % 2R R Y L
(5) =
il S8 Ak B2 5% A
(HieE14) 540 1,000
B A (H17#8) (2,287) (3,481)
S B8R (#i78) 2,424 2,332
HERER (645) (2,530)
114,949 (35,477)
HBEEEE
—EREZHRBERRE S (190,805) 75,403
—%&&  BRRERHEA

JE YR IE (210) (1,140)
—EHEE 8,237 (8,385)
—ENE S RIBERRE 89,466 (18,599)
— FEST FRIE K H M FE -

FRIBIE AN 14,734 978
—E&HAa%E (22,945) (75,332)
EEEME S (FTA)

e FE 13,426 (62,552)
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26 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATE’MENT B 26 %éﬁéﬁi%@ﬁﬁ%&%} T——

OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(o)

In the consolidated statement of cash flows,

proceeds from disposal of plant and equipment

comprise:

Net book amount (note 74)
Gain on disposal of plant and
equipment (note 6)

Cash proceeds from sales of
plant and equipment

—BoBEER .

BREFEE (Mt 14)
S M R BRSO M e
(H:£6)

HEMM REENRE
PS50

=NEEEEARDT

3
.
REARSRERT  HE '

W ERENIEREAER
1

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TER FTAT
63 -
5 =
68 =
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26 NOTES %6 THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(c) Net debt reconciliation

This section sets out the reconciliation of liability
from financing activity for each of the years

26 HERTRERMEEE)

(c)

B R

AEEIN 25| 2 B FEHR
BEBELZABENYE -

presented.
Liabilities from financing activities
RETBELLER
Cash Obligations
and cash Lease under finance  Short-term Long-term
equivalents liabilities leases  bankloans  bank loans Total
ReR HE ik RH
RESEN HEaE HEER RATER RTER @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn Tn Tn Tn Tin Tin
As at 1 April 2018 R2018F4A1R 256,401 - (26,276) (29,066) (25,769) 175,290
Capital elements of finance EARER3H)
lease payments ERED - - 17,125 - - 17,125
Drawdown of bank loans ~ RREUR{TE 5 - - - (193,624) - (193,624)
Repayment of bank loans ~ (E&3R17 55 - - - 140,250 18,932 159,182
Foreign exchange HERE
adjustments - - - 2,630 - 2,630
Decrease in cash and cash F4 B4 SEN
equivalents Y (59,437) - - - - (59,437)
Asat3tMarch 2019 H2019%3A31R 196,964 2 9,151) (79,910) (6,837) 101,066
As at 1 April 2019 201954 A1 196,964 - (9,151) (79,910) (6,837) 101,066
Changes in accounting St HREH
policies - (18,979) 9,151 - - (9,828)
Principal elements of lease &R Z A&
payments - 14,615 - - - 14,615
Drawdown of bank loans ~ RERS {7 &3t - - - (290,144) (19,961) (310,105)
Repayment of bank loans (38 /7 & 3% - - - 268,506 8,219 276,725
Foreign exchange SNERE
adjustments - - - 645 - 645
Increase in cash and cash B4 R SE
equivalents #m 10,357 - - - - 10,357
As at 31 March 2020 R2020F3A31H 207,321 (4,364) - (100,903) (18,579) 83,475
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 27 A LRS
Related parties are those parties that have the ability Rl A LB R iE ] - A
to control, jointly control or exert significant influence AL E 77 5 ] 6 H A A SR R E
over the other party in holding power over the investee; TEEINATITEERNTE NN
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its AL BEAESHZERBEHED]ERFE
involvement with the investee; and the ability to use EwlEE AR R BT TSN
its power over the investee to affect the amount of the T+ AN AESWRETNENY
investor’s returns. Parties are also considered to be BN BELRRSEMNAL - ZHRA
related if they are subject to common control or joint 2= | Sl Bk S PR B B9 A T IR AR /5
control. Related parties may be individuals or other AT o BAHE A TR B E A SEAM
entities. BB
(a) The directors of the Company are of the view that (a) AKRNBEERE - NHAF
the following companies were related parties that EBHEANEFBETRFNE

had transactions or balances with the Group:

Name of the related party

BBALERE

Mr. Lau Chun Ming

tEEB AR AL

Relationship with the Group
HEAKBEMNER

Director of the Company

2R A ST £ RARIES
Cheer Crown Limited A related company beneficially wholly owned by Mr. Lau
Chun Ming

EERARLIQA

Cheer Profit International
Enterprise Limited

ENBEEREEEBRA A

Cheer Wealth International
Development Limited

E2RERERER QA

East Ascent Enterprise Limited

RAMEERAA
Healthy World Investment Limited

REREBRRAR
Long Ascent Development Limited

RAZRARAA
Sky Ease Holdings Limited

—EoBEEH

HERALEE 2 EEREANER QA

A related company wholly owned by certain directors of
the Group and their family member

HAKBETEERARGKKEZERGHNBAE AT

A related company wholly owned by certain directors of
the Group and their family member

HAKBEETEERARGKKEZERG N AT

A related company wholly owned by certain directors of
the Group and their family member

HAKBEETEERARGKKEZEREG N AT

A related company wholly owned by certain directors of
the Group

HAKBEETEZ2EHGNEH QA

A related company wholly owned by certain directors of
the Group

HAKBEETEZ2EHGNEH QA

A related company wholly owned by Mr. Lau Chun Ming

HERAEE2EH G AR

s ZHEREEEERAH
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27  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contirtied) 27 BMBWALTXRS(H)
./
(b)  Transactions (o) X 5
In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the BRGET B REREMIT D
consolidated financial statements, the following FT4% 58 & SN 7N 52 (B B2 B Bt
transactions were carried out with related parties AN TR T 17 € MR TT
at terms mutually agreed by both parties: ARG :
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FTHEL
Paid to related parties: EEBEALRE:
Rental expenses to Cheer Crown INFEZHERA R
Limited (note i and iv) e (F#2ikiv) 2,160 2,160
Rental expenses to East Ascent IRTRACEBRAT
Enterprise Limited (note ii and iv) MM R (B Eikiv) 46 46
Rental expenses to Cheer Profit IHTEFBREXER
International Enterprise Limited (note ii and iv) ‘A &Y £ B>
(Wi #tiikiv) 46 46
Rental expenses to Long Ascent IRTRAZEERAT
Development Limited (note ii and iv) B & B X (A i Riv) 600 600
Rental expenses to Cheer Wealth International 3 {5 F & 16 B 2 & B[R
Development Limited (note i and iv) NAMALRAX
(Wi #tiikiv) 876 876
Rental expenses to Healthy World IR FREREER AR
Investment Limited (note i and iv) WML R (HZikiv) 600 600
Expense payable to a related party: PE R A RIS :
Interest expense payable to a director ERNESHMERAZ
(note i and v) (K &tiikv) 70 55
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Notes to the CQDM%T'H‘ét

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continted)

(0)

Transactions (Continued)

Note i: Rental expenses for storage of machinery and
equipment are based on terms pursuant to the
tenancy agreements as mutually agreed by the
relevant parties.

Note ii: Rental expenses for directors’ quarters are
based on terms pursuant to the tenancy
agreements as mutually agreed by the relevant
parties.

Note iii: Interest expense was payable to a director, Mr.
Lau Chun Ming, in respect of the amount due to
a director (note 27(d)).

Note iv:These related party transactions also constitute
continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Note v: This relating party transaction also constitutes
continuing connected transaction as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, but its
size is such that the transaction was exempt
from the disclosure and shareholders’ approval
requirements for continuing connected
transaction.

Key management compensation

Key management includes directors (executive and
non-executive) of the Group. The compensation
paid or payable to key management for employee

services is disclosed in note 30(a).

Balance - non-trade

Payable to a director:
Mr. Lau Chun Ming (note 22)

ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

Management consider that Silver Bright Holdings
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, is the ultimate holding company of the Group,
which is a company indirectly owned by a discretionary
trust, the beneficiary of which is Ms. Leung Lai So.

cgrae,

27

Bf—-—2EERE
BIIRBA K & (Byaz22)

28

CECEEFR o ZHEESEEFIRAA

e R i

BB A LS ()
B %5 (&)

Hiazi:  RAETFHEMRR
BOESFR TR
RERE T KR
TE BV AR KD O 15K -

REEESEEMHE
RS TERARH
& 77 H R E MR
HIEI IR

A BB Ty mh e A
—ZEERAME
NEEZIRB L
(Mt EE27(d)) °

K7 atii :

B aiii -

Kiaziv -

Kiatv . ZEEBALRS
iR EMARAE
1AAENTEE 2T
BEBRAER S BiZ
ERGHEREHRE -
B RAEA S hA B B2 AN
A SR AL IR T
BRERS

(c) FEZETE A B W
ZERAEBBRAKEE
= (BITRIFTT) - BER

RECNRENTERER
A B BB FE30() IR

(d #HH-FES

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT THET
3,145 3,075

BREERRE

&I E R ASilver Bright Holdings
Limited ( — R & & 52 22 B+ & 51
AL B A R]) A7 B & AR TER
NAE) ZAAHENRBHLZET AT
m AN REGTEREEESR -

tatements

edhn_,_gual 5
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"

BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT

OF THE COMPANY

Assets
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets
Prepayments
Amount due from a subsidiary

Restricted bank balances
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity
Liabilities
Current liabilities

Amount due to a director
Accruals and other payables

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

BE
FRBEE
B R RIHRE

RBEE

A RIE

J& W — T Bt BB 2 =)
IR

X BRI SR 1T 45 B4
RehkBReFEY

EERE

R
BEXK#E
AR
fe fh8

REmARE

&&E

nREBAE

e —REEHIA
& IR K E A
F& 5 3R IA

RBEAR

EERkAEARE

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the
Board of Directors on 23 June 2020 and were signed on

its behalf.

Lau Chun Ming
21 4 BA
Director

EF

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED »

29 ARAFANEEREXRKHESD

AR

2020 2019
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FTER TR
5,927 5,927
28 73
199,175 177,817
3,145 3,075
482 21,326

. 202830 aves
208,757 208,218
4,200 4,200
(@) 201,318 200,859
205,518 205,059
3,145 3,075
94 84

| 3,239
208,757 208,218

KRAAIHEE B BERE R2020%F
6H23HEEZEESH & - WA T

AETREREZ

Leung Lai So

RE

3

Director

EF
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OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

note (a):

Reserve movement of the Company

At 31 March 2018
Profit for the year

At 31 March 2019

At 31 March 2019
Profit for the year

At 31 March 2020

H2018%F3A31H
FEHF

R2019%F3A31H

#2019%F3A31H
FE A

#202063A31H

.....

AAANEEREERGEEY

(&)
Htit(a) -
ARATNREEEZE
Share Other Retained
premium reserve earnings Total
R A3 B Hit & REEF @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAT TAT FHET FHET
194,087 5,927 51 200,065
_ = 794 794
194,087 5,927 845 200,859
194,087 5,927 845 200,859
- - 459 459
194,087 5,927 1,304 201,318

Other reserve of the Company represents the difference
between the net asset value of SW (BVI) acquired over
the nominal value of the share capital of the Company

issued in exchange thereof.

—EoEFH

ZHEEEEERAH

AR B EY H A R 68 4R AT O = A
BV E EFERBEAN R R ST
BEREEMBITRAHEMNER -
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—— — i) BENEFlTS'AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 30 EEEANEER
{ » s '
» .,57]; Y (a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEMe
The remuneration of each director of the W7 EE T A S TR
Company which were included in the staff costs KA QABEEEHE S
as disclosed in note 7 is set out below: R -

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE00FIANALEE

Employer’s

contribution

Discretionary  Directors’  to pension
Fees Salaries bonus quarters scheme Total

Exm

Bty
e ¢ BBRL4  ESEE  FLOHEX @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TR TER TER TEn

Executive directors HITES

Mr. Lau Chun Ming? Bl - 797 66 643 - 1,506
Mr. Lau Chun Kwok* iR - 840 70 600 - 1,510
Mr. Lau Chun Ka ARREE - 840 70 600 - 1,510
Ms. Leung Lai So 2BHELT - 456 38 325 - 819
Independent BUkHTES

non-executive directors
Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Tt 2%

Roderick 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Chu Tak Sum KEREE 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Amold EXBEE 240 - - - - 240

720 2,933 244 2,168 - 6,065
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BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIFi‘EC\'II"‘ORS:-‘ i 30

EEEARMES (2
(Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EEMe (E)

Executive directors
Mr. Lau Chun Ming®
Mr. Lau Chun Kwok*
Mr. Lau Chun Ka
Ms. Leung Lai So

Independent
non-executive directors

Professor Wong Sue Cheun,
Roderick

Mr. Chu Tak Sum

Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold

s Chairman

unEs

BIE
i i
BEx A
REHELT

BUFHTES

THEHER

AERTE
ERBEE

Chief Executive Officer

—E_TFFR

For the year ended 31 March 2019

HE2019F3A31R LR

Employer's

contribution

Discretionary Directors”  to pension
Fees Salaries bonus quarters scheme Total

Exm

RiRL5E
we H&  WER4  E3EE  ELAOEX @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAT TAL TAL TATL TATL
- 797 66 643 - 1,506
- 840 70 600 - 1,510
- 840 70 600 11 1,521
- 456 38 325 - 819
240 - - - - 240
240 - - - - 240
240 - - - - 240
720 2,933 244 2,168 11 6,076

8 *E
* TE A
© CHREEEERAT
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BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(@)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

The remuneration shown above represents
remuneration received from the Group by these
directors in their capacity as employees to the
Group and/or in their capacity as directors of the
companies now comprising the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, none of
the directors of the Company (i) received or paid
any remuneration in respect of accepting office;
(i) received or paid emoluments in respect of
services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries
undertaking; or (iii) waived or has agreed to waive
any emolument (2019: same).

Directors’ retirement benefits

None of the directors received or will receive
any retirement benefits during the year ended 31
March 2020 (2019: same).

Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the year ended 31
March 2020 (2019: same).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2020, no
consideration was paid by the Company to third
parties for making available directors’ services
(2019: same).

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED »
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EEEANRERS (E)

BEEMe (&)

LitEi SRR AR
EEERR HRSAEE
BT RARNESERAEE
WER B B % -

REZE2020F3H31H LEF
ER - BEARBES)HT
B2 X2 B W ER S 32 AT A T B
Sl ()R =N R =B NN =1
HH B A B A EES R
TS ER Bk S (S E R B & ¢ 3k
(i) ZE KR B RET MBS
(20194 : AR

B 2RIKER

H E2020F3A31H L FE
B E E B UER 3k W ER
R R R4 A (20194F : 48
@) e

E=ZHBEN

H E2020F3A31B IEFE
B E B WE 3k G Uk ER
R BE B & ) (20194 : 48
@) °

MEREERGMAS =7
SR E

#H £2020F3H31H It F
B AARUESRERES
AR 75 M M AT 28 = 75 AR
B (20194 : #8M@) °
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BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(e) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and controlled entities with such
directors

During the year ended 31 March 2020, there
were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing
arrangements in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and controlled entities with
such directors (2019: same).

() Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Other than those disclosed in note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements, no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year (2019: same).

EVENT OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING
DATE

After the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019
(“COVID-19 outbreak”) in early 2020, a series of
precautionary and control measures have been and
continued to be implemented across Hong Kong.

The Group has paid close attention to the development
of COVID-19 outbreak and kept evaluating the impact
on the financial position, cash flows and operating
results of the Group to prevent the outbreak from having
material adverse effects on the businesses. However,
if the COVID-19 outbreak continues for a longer period
of time, the financial performance of the Group for the
year ending 31 March 2021 might be affected but the
financial impact cannot be reasonably estimated at this
stage.

—EoBEEH .

o DX
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ZNEEEBARAA

] %’,
ted-Einanc

ial

f

— RmEEER

EEERR AR (E)

) FRMEE EGEIEA
EEMBRAEERIFLHNE
REBEUER - ARBRZ
FATHEMRZNER

#H £202043A31H IE 4
B WERES - ST
FEABRBREBREETRE
HHRERREUER UK
BEZEALTHEMLR S
(2019%F : #HMA) °

(f) BEERRS THEREHOH

BAER

Bk &% & B 75 ok MY 527 P
BEEI  RERKFALE
A E - EARAER—
FANBARRBEEEER
MEEAEA R AEAR
AXBEENEARS &
BEMABKEE (20195 © #
@) e

BERBUKRBESR

R20204F ¥ /& 20194 #7127
MEERIE ([2019B R ESHER
Bl 1% BEBRIR—RIER R
THIFENE WSS EERNZERS
HE ©

AEB—FHZYEE2019T MK S
MEBENBERETEETHHAER
FERR MERMEEEENT
2 UPRBEHEBERNENT
o R HE2019B MR SRR
BHEXE—BENE  A&ER
202143A31B L FEM I KRR
ReETTE BEANMEYERE
EERE MRS EGHE -
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— Financial Summary

] B, i

TERBHE

A summary of the published results and of the assets, liabilities AEBRSEOARYBRFENE FIZEXLE
and equity of the Group for the last five financial years is as NEE- - BENNMESBMNT -

follows.
Year ended 31 March
B E3A31BLEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
Results ES FET FAET FHET FET FAT
Revenue WA 916,831 452,268 518,479 817,682 1,061,482
Gross Profit E 7 126,666 4,382 44,045 145225 210,012
Profit/(loss) before & BT 15 %5 Bl
income tax wmF L (E518) 83,679  (57,497) 5,625 91,215 165,509
Income tax (expense)/ FriEf(Ax),/
credit Eiin) (10,661) 7,127 (106)  (12,235)  (12,632)
Profit/(loss) for the year FE=RHM/
(E518) 73,018  (50,370) 5,519 78,980 152,877
As at 31 March
M3A31H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FAT FH T T T FHT
Assets BE
Non-current assets EMEEE 586,788 595,180 608,385 654,959 608,314
Current assets MENE E 456,582 262,754 385,418 551,115 546,640
Total assets BEBE 1,043,370 857,934 993,803 1,206,074 1,154,954
Liabilities 8&
Non-current liabilities SERE A E 69,613 59,537 78,281 127,437 185,214
Current liabilities mEBE 275,830 172,481 229,802 382,406 314,689
Total liabilities EE8H 345,443 232,018 308,083 509,843 499,903
Total equity RSB 697,927 625,916 685,720 696,231 655,051
Note: Hiat -
The summary above does not form part of the audited financial Pl ES A B SEZTFREK D —ZF
statements. 4 e
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